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Corporate Information
NAREHR
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Financial Highlights
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2022 2021 Change
—E-CF —E-—% o)
RMB million RMB million %
AR¥BEER AREBET %
Financial highlights MBHE
Revenue Wegs 112.1 153.3 -26.9
Gross profit (loss) EF(ER) 31.8 (84.5) N/A TN A
Loss for the year FANEBE (57.0) (515.2) -88.9
Basic loss per share FRREAREE
(RMB Cents) (ARES) (0.84) (8.94) -90.6
Diluted loss per share BREEEE
(RMB Cents) (AR®ES) (0.84) (8.94) -90.6
Total assets BEE 2,072.0 2,281.3 -9.2
Total equity (Restated) R REE (K EY) 44.5 35.1 26.8
Ratio highlights tEEBE
Gross profit (loss) margin EF(ER)X 28.4 (55.1) N/A 7~ F
Working capital ratio (times) LEESLE(E) 0.9 0.9 -
Quick ratio (times) RB)LL (1) 0.1 0.1 -
Gearing ratio (%) BRBEFEZE (%) 92.0 92.0 -
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Chairperson’s Statement
FREHE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Hua Yin International Holdings Limited (“Hua Yin International” or the
“Company”), | submit herewith the annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2022.

When it seems COVID-19 is gradually under control in the second
half of 2021, a new wave of outbreak of Omicron and Delta variants
has started to spread widely at the beginning of 2022, which causes
a surge in the number of confirmed cases, especially the pandemic in
Jilin Province and Shanghai in China being the most severe. In the past
three years, despite China's economy recovered from the COVID-19
pandemic earlier than those of Europe and the United States, it was still
greatly affected. In particular, waves of pandemic put great pressure on
the development of certain industries this year. Faced with continuous
economic downturn and other adverse impacts, the PRC central
and local governments have issued relevant policies to stimulate and
drive the economy as well as offer support and preferential policies to
relevant industries. As for the real estate sector, “properties for living and
not speculation” has been the focus but measures such as easing the
supply of housing loans, reducing the down payment ratio, and relaxing
the restrictions on the purchase of second and third homes has been
used to stabilize the real estate and the upstream and downstream
markets, thereby maintaining a stable and moderate development of the
real estate sector.

In light of the current adjustment of the real estate polices in China and
the implementation of a series of economic stimulus policies, the local
governments are especially allowed to issue bonds to support industrial
development, which provides us more opportunities to develop
unique cultural tourism and open up resources in Changbaishan by
leveraging its advantages in accordance with the strategic objectives
previously determined. The Board has proposed to the management
the direction to look for opportunities in other industries to diversify the
Group's investment and business risks in the interests of the Group's
shareholders as a whole.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my deepest gratitude
to the shareholders, investors, business partners and customers who
have given us great support, as well as the directors, management and
employees who have worked hard with the Company. The continuous
and stable development of the Group is inseparable from their strong
support.

Cui Xintong
Co-Chairperson
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B ERwED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s overall revenue
was approximately RMB112.1 million (year ended 31 March 2021:
approximately RMB153.3 million), representing a decrease of 26.9%.
The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately RMB31.8 million,
a turnaround from the gross loss of approximately RMB84.5 million for
the year ended 31 March 2021. Net loss for the year was approximately
RMB57.0 million, representing a significant reduction in loss by
approximately RMB458.2 million (year ended 31 March 2021: net loss
for the year of approximately RMB515.2 million).

Outlook

Looking forward, the management is dedicated to the development
of traditional cultural inheritance and training, tourist spot operation
and management, healthcare, cultural innovation, tourism products
and related consumer goods and infrastructure around themes such
as culture, health, education, new concept tourism, tourism-related
consumer goods; and related supporting industry development. In
the meantime, to carry out research to prepare for the development of
different businesses and new business opportunities. This enables the
Group to (i) enrich the Group’s business portfolio; (i) create a sustainable
business development model; (iii) diversify the Group’s business risk
from its property development business; and (iv) most important of all,
bring value to its shareholders, employees and other stakeholders.

Property Development

The Group’s project in Jiutai District, Changchun City, namely Guangze
Jiuxi Red House, was previously expected to be completed and
delivered in the last financial quarter of 2022. With the new wave of
CQOVID-19 pandemic spreading in Jilin Province since the 2022 Chinese
New Year, the completion and delivery of the project was delayed. The
project’s updated completion and delivery date is expected to be in the
second quarter of the financial year ending 31 March 2023.

In June 2021, the Group completed the disposal of Ground Real Estate
Group Company Limited and its project companies in Jilin City, and
recorded a net gain on disposal of approximately RMB64.3 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SPEERECEE il

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property Development (continued)
Contracted Sales

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group continued its
pre-sales of Guangze Jiuxi Red House — Phase | and Guangze China
House — Phase IA which amounted to approximately RMB208.4 million
for the year.

Properties completed, delivered and sale of properties
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2022

The Group recorded a decrease in sale of properties by approximately
RMB42.1 million or 39.3% from the sales of approximately RMB107.1
million for the year ended 31 March 2021 to the sales of approximately
RMB65.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2022.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the sale of properties (excluding
car park units) related to the remaining units of the completed property
projects in prior years, mainly from residential units of Guangze Tudors
Palace and Guangze Red House — Phase Il; and commercial units of
Guangze Amethyst City and Guangze Red House — Phase Il and Il with
an aggregate GFA of 10,056 sg.m.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the sales of properties (excluding
car park units) related to the remaining units of completed projects;
and was mainly contributed from the sales of Guangze Tudors Palace,
Guangze Amethyst City, “42& ” and “fE & PUZ=", Guangze China House
Phase |, Guangze Red House Phase Il and Ill which amounted to an
aggregate of approximately RMB92.0 million and an aggregate GFA of
12,974 sq.m..

For car park units, the Group recognised sale of car park units of
approximately RMB7.8 million from the sale of 144 car park units for the
year ended 31 March 2022 as compared to approximately RMB15.2
million from 131 car park units for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property Development (continued)
Projects under development and held for development

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has two residential projects under
development, namely Guangze Jiuxi Red House in Jiutai District,
Changchun City and Guangze China House — Phase IA in Baishan City.
There two projects were originally planned to complete in 2021/2022
financial year. However, due to the COVID-19 outbreak in Jilin Province,
they had been delayed. The expected time for completion and delivery
has been revised to second- and third-quarter of 2022/2023 financial
year.

The Group also has a cultural tourism property projects located
in Changbaishan, Baishan City, namely Ground Pine Township
International Resort (“Fusong Property Project”). In prior years, the
Company had plan to divest the Fusong Property Project or to offer for
the government’s re-purchase. The management has during the year
obtained approval from the Board to initiate a further research, forecast
and assessment on the potential development of the Fusong Property
Project. Up to now, the work is still ongoing.

Property Investment

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s self-owned investment properties
and leased investment properties are the retailing shopping units
at Guangze International Shopping Centre with respective GFA of
65,477 sq.m. and 19,644 sg.m. (At 31 March 2021: 52,971 sg.m. and
16,610 sg.m.). During the year ended 31 March 2022, the investment
properties had an average occupancy rate of 77% (year ended 31
March 2021: 75%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SPEERECEE il

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Restatement of comparative information

Comparative information in relation to loans from a controlling
shareholder and exchange reserve was incorrectly stated as certain
repayments of loans from a controlling shareholder during the year
ended 31 March 2021 had been inadvertently recorded in the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income as exchange
differences on translation of foreign operations. Certain comparative
figures have been restated such that (i) on the consolidated statements
of financial position the loans from a controlling shareholder decreased
by approximately RMB48.8 million and the exchange reserve debit
balance decreased by approximately RMB48.8 million; and (ii) on
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the exchange
differences on translation of foreign operations turned from a debit
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amount of approximately RMB36.4 million to a credit amount 2.
of approximately RMB12.4 million. There was no impact on the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March
2021.
Key changes to profit or loss BRZ2TEEE
Revenue Wz
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
S —— HE—T——F
ZHA=+—HLEFE ZA=T—RHILFEE
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARMT T AR®TTT
Sale of properties SHEMZ 65,040 58.0 107,142 69.9
Rental income el A 14,052 12.5 11,281 7.4
Property management M E R RSN
service income 33,011 29.5 34,913 22.7
112,103 100.0 153,336 100.0

The Group’s revenue decreased from RMB153.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2021 to RMB112.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 or an decrease by 26.9%, mainly due to the decrease
in sale of properties by 39.3% or RMB42.1 million as compared with
the corresponding year. The decrease in sales of properties during the
year ended 31 March 2022 was attributable to the fact that there was
no property projects newly completed and delivered during the year
ended 31 March 2022; and a gradual decrease in sales and delivery of
remaining units of the prior years completed property projects.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Key changes to profit or loss (continued)
Revenue (continued)

Rental income increased by 24.6% for the year ended 31 March 2022
as compared to last financial year mainly attributable to the rent free
period offered to tenants over the COVID-19 pandemic period during
the year ended 31 March 2021 and the increase in average occupancy
rate during the year ended 31 March 2022 in respect of the shopping
mall units in Baishan City, the PRC.

Property management service income decreased from RMB34.9 million
for the year ended 31 March 2021 to RMB33.0 million for the year
ended 31 March 2022 mainly attributable to the reduction of monthly
management fee during the year ended 31 March 2022 in respect of
the shopping mall units in Baishan City, the PRC.

Gross profit and gross margin

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group had a gross profit
of approximately RMB31.8 million (year ended 31 March 2021: a
gross loss of approximately RMB84.5 million) and a gross margin of
approximately 28.4%. Such turnaround was attributable to the fact that,
for the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group (i) sold certain car park
units at Guangze Amethyst City — Phases | and Il at a loss; and (i) made
further write-downs of RMB43.6 million mainly on the remaining car
park units at various completed property projects.

Other income and gains

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded other income
and gains of approximately RMB134.6 million mainly contributed from (i)
the net gain arising from the completion of the disposal of Guangze Real
Estate Group Company Limited and its project companies in Jilin City of
approximately RMB64.3 million; (ii) a revaluation gain of approximately
RMB48.2 million arising from the transfer of certain shopping units
at Guaugze International Shopping Centre previously classified as
“completed properties held for sales” to investment properties; and
(iii) a reversal of write-downs of the Group’s cultural tourism property
project, namely Ground Pine Township International Resort amounting
to approximately RMB20.7 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SPEERECEE il

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Key changes to profit or loss (continued)
Selling and distribution costs

The increase in selling and distribution costs by approximately RMB2.4
million from approximately RMB9.0 million for the year ended 31
March 2021 to approximately RMB11.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2022 was primarily attributable to further promotion activities
held in respect of Guangze Jiuxi Red House in order to stimulate more
pre-sales, which resulted in an increase in the promotion and advertising
expenses during the year.

Administrative expenses

The increase in administrative expenses by approximately RMB5.5
million from approximately RMB33.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2021 to approximately RMB38.6 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 was primarily attributable to the fact that (i) the Group
rented an office in Shenzhen resulting in an increase in office and rental
expenses of approximately RMB1.0 million during the year; and (i) for
the year ended 31 March 2021, there was a reversal of over-provided
lease liabilities of approximately RMB5.1 million which was credited to
profit and loss in the last corresponding year.

Other expenses

The Group’s other expenses decreased significantly by approximately
RMB226.1 million from approximately RMB232.7 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021 to approximately RMB6.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

Other expenses for the year ended 31 March 2021 mainly related to
write-downs of RMB181.9 million in relation to the property under
development for Ground Pine Townshop International Resort in Fusong
County and other completed property projects in Jilin City as a result
of the persistently unfavourable change in the operating environment
in the surrounding area and impairment loss on other receivables of
RMB13.0 million caused by the worsening local economic environment
in Jilin Province resulting in the significant increase in credit risk of
certain debtors. No significant write-downs and impairment losses were
incurred during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) B 7S E R (48)
Key changes to profit or loss (continued) Bz TE85 (&)
Finance costs A& A AR

Year ended 31 March
BE=H=1+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-C=F i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Interest on bank and other borrowings  $R1T R EHMEER 66,333 96,142
Interest on Convertible Bonds AR ESFFLE 3,427 7,233
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEFB 4,230 2,156

Other borrowing costs accrued on U FIEWGRIE 2 BB B A
receipts in advance from customers - 6,296
73,990 111,827

Less: interest capitalised into W BRPYEZERERE

properties under development (11,532) (6,695)
62,458 105,132

The finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2022 decreased by BE_Z-_—_F=-A=+—HILFE &
RMB42.6 million from approximately RMB105.1 million for the year ERABABE—_ZT-_—F=A=+—H1t
ended 31 March 2021 to approximately RMB62.5 million for the year & & £9 A K # 105,100,000 7T 8 2 A R #
ended 31 March 2022, which was mainly attributable to () a decrease 42,600,000 TEBIL T - —F=H=+—
in interest on bank and entrusted loans as a result of (a) the repayment ~ HIEFE L AR 62,500,0007T © EEHRK
of certain bank loans and entrusted loans during the year; and (b) () (@ FRERE T BHRITERREZTER

derecognition of borrowings upon completion of the disposal of Ground X (b) T8 3% th & B Z M & R H AL 0 & 7R Z
Real Estate and its project companies in Jilin City; and (i) a decrease in B E A a1£ 4K I FFEREFK &rﬁfﬁf‘f&

interest on convertible bonds (“CBs”) upon maturity of CBs due in 2021  EFRF 2@+ k(i) =F= EﬂJHHZ—Hﬁ’
in July 2021 and new issue of June CBs due in 2023 in December WEHFER T _—FLAZHERER=E
2021, T RARBTZ T _=F3HAH

BfEF1& - ATRREZFHF SR
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Key changes to profit or loss (continued)
Change in fair value of investment properties

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s investment properties
stated at fair value had a further decrease in the fair value of RMB81.7
million mainly attributable to the deterioration of the market rent.

Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments

In December 2021, the Group issued CBs due in 2023 to the controlling
shareholder with an aggregate principal amount of HK$103,076,730.
The derivative financial instruments represented the Company’s early
redemption right features of the CBs due in 2023. A loss in fair value
of approximately RMB44.9 million was recorded for the year ended 31
March 2022 as a result of the volatility of the Company’s share price
and deterioration of its time value.

Income tax

The Group’s current income tax includes Corporate Income Tax (CIT)
and Land Appreciation Tax (LAT). For the year ended 31 March 2022,
the Group recorded an income tax credit of approximately RMB11.1
million (year ended 31 March 2021: income tax charge of RMB5.6
million). The credit in CIT and LAT for the year ended 31 March 2022
was mainly attributable to the LAT finalisation with Yanji Local Tax
Bureau resulting in a reversal of provision of approximately RMB19.2
million, partially offset by provision arising from current year’s sales. A
tax credit from deferred tax of RMB11.1 million was recorded for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (year ended 31 March 2021: tax charge
of RMBO0.7 million) was mainly attributable to the fair value loss on the
Group’s investment properties during the year.
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¥ o B (&)
BmsEERE (H)
REVEZDAEBEED

BE_ZT-—_F#-A=+—RALFE KX&
BRANEBEIEZREMEAABEE -
FRA AR S1,700,0007C © TEHRTIH
HE=E(t -

TESRMTIRCZAREEESD

RZZEZ—F+=hf  AEERZRARRESE
TZZE=FHHRRKRES  AeBE
/103,076,730 » fTEERM I EAARR
AT = FRIE AR R E S AV IR RIS O i
B o ARARTRERDRERHREBEARAT
B RBE_Z-_—_F-A=-+—HILFE
SIS DA EEEELNARE 44,900,0007T ©

REBHMERBRECEMSH (2
i) R 3G E R ([ g ER ) o
BHE-_Z-_—_F#=A=+—HItFE K&
BRSPS E 2L AR 11,100,0007T
(B2 -——F=ZA=+—BLEFE: M
BRI ARKS5600,0007T) HE-Z
—ZF=ZRA=+—HUIFE  tEMEHRK
THIEER RS T ERERNEES S
BB E THIBER  BREBEHAR
#19,200,000 7T : Bf D AN FIHEFTEE
BT - BE T - —F=f=+—
HIEFESSREERB 2 HBEERARE
11,100,000 T (BE—T-—F=A=+—
HIEFE : BIEEA AR 700,0007T) -
FEHRFAREEREEYEFMEENR
ABEEIEFTE o



FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Key changes to financial position
Investment properties

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s investment properties are certain
shopping mall units in Baishan City, Jilin Province, namely Guangze
International Shopping Centre, which include self-owned portion and
leased portion. These investment properties were stated at fair value
and were valued by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited/
Savills Real Estate Valuation (Guangzhou) Limited Beijing Branch
(independent professional qualified valuers) at RMB615.8 million (as at
31 March 2021: RMB547.1 million). The balance as at 31 March 2022
increased compared to that as at 31 March 2021, mainly attributable
to the transfer of certain self-owned shopping units at Guangze
International Shopping Centre with an aggregate GFA of 12,505 sq.m.
which were previously accounted for as “completed properties held
for sales”; and offset by a loss in fair value of RMB81.7 million of the
investment properties recognised for the year ended 31 March 2021
(year ended 31 March 2021: loss in fair value of RMB45.8 million).

Properties under development and completed properties
held for sales

The Group’s properties under development and completed properties
held for sales are located in Jilin Province. The increase in properties
under development and completed properties held for sales from
RMB1,211.8 million as at 31 March 2021 to RMB1,262.8 million as at
31 March 2022 was mainly attributable to the continual development
of the Group’s projects under development, namely Guangze Jiuxi Red
House and Guangze China House — Phase 1A. As at 31 March 2022,
accumulated write-downs of RMB992.2 million and RMB34.1 million
were made on properties under development and completed properties
held for sale (as at 31 March 2021: RMB1,012.9 million and RMB33.3
million) respectively.

5 1ol e (48)
BIBIRR 2 EER B
REMH

RZZEZZF=A=+—H ' A5EEKEY
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IR WEBEXEERTHANE —RKTH
HEREREXERERAFBEMNE—XK
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Key changes to financial position (continued)

Trade and other receivables

s ()

BHERREERE (&)

P & 5 Bk e H At FE WU IR

As at 31 March

R=B=+—H
2022 2021
—E-C=F —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARET T ARBTT
Trade receivables JEUE SRR () 20,679 19,512
Less: Provision for impairment W ORERE (5,575) (5,691)
15,104 13,821
Other receivables H At fEYGRIR
— Deposits for land development — ITHMBEERAT S
expenditure (ii) 22,095 22,095
— Deposits for construction and — BERTBEYEIEE
pre-sale of property projects ki oia (i) 6,741 6,741
— Prepaid business tax and other taxes — FE{H& 555 & HAbFEE 36,352 15,367
— Other receivables, prepayments — Hfb U FRIA - FENFIE
and deposits & 46,323 45,936
Less: Provision for impairment R ORERE (70,934) (64,279)
40,577 25,860
55,681 39,681

()  Trade receivables were mainly related to rental receivable from tenants
and property management fee receivables from property unit owners. At
31 March 2022, the trade receivable balance remained stable as compared
to that at 31 March 2021.

(i) Land development expenditure made by certain subsidiaries of the Group
represented monies advanced to the local government for land development
works at various land sites. The Group will be reimbursed for the amount
advanced to the local government in carrying out the land development
respective of whether or not the Group will obtain the land use rights of the
land in the future.

(i) The balances represented various deposits paid directly attributable to

construction and pre-sale of property projects which would be refundable
upon completion of the property projects.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) B 7S E R (48)
Key changes to financial position (continued) BERRZ EESE) (&)
Trade and other payables EBAESERRREMESRIE

As at 31 March

R=A=+—8
2022 2021
—E-C=F i
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARBT T AREETTT
Trade payables BB SR () 57,870 56,587
Accrued construction costs TR AR () 284,075 271,097
Interest payable FERTFILE (ii) 60,996 94,571
Other creditors and accruals H b e ROE K T B A 53,277 48,995
Other deposits received BREMES 25,678 35,960
481,876 507,210
() The increases in trade payables and accrued construction costs from () BN EZEFALFEREERADHIH —F
RMB56.6 million and RMB271.1 million as at 31 March 2021 to RMB57.9 ——#=ZA=+—RAAR%56,600,0007T &%
million and RMB284.1 million as at 31 March 2022 respectively were mainly AR#271,100,000 EFFE =T - —F =
attributable to the construction costs incurred relating to Guangze Jiuxi Red A=+—B AR%57,900,0007T & A R #
House project; and partially offset by the gradual settlement of construction 284,100,0007T * F 2 57 PO B & LR AL
cost payable balances arising from the completed properties projects. TR BREENANES  WHHRER
IHEIBE 2 ENRERARRE ZE L 45

sy o

(i) The decrease in interest payable from approximately RMB94.6 milion as at (i) ENMEH-FT=_—F=A=+—HHHA
31 March 2021 to approximately RMB61.0 million as at 31 March 2022 was R #94,600000t AL EZE_T-__F=H
primarily attributable to the settlement of interest payment during the year. =+—H#HAR%K61,000,0007T - TEEEH

ERFREBREXAT -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Key changes to financial position (continued)

B s 1ol e (4&)
BMBRR T ELE ()

Contract liabilities BHAaE
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
2022 2021
—E-C=F T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE AR®T T ARBTT
Deposits from sale of properties HEME R () 371,944 216,718
Receipt in advance from TEWEREREE A
management services (ii) 12,025 11,192
383,969 227,910

(i)  Deposits from sales of properties represent contractual payments received
from customers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of properties.
The deposit will be transferred to profit or loss upon the Group’s revenue
recognition criteria are met. The increase in balance was mainly attributable
to cash received in respect of pre-sale of Guangze Jiuxi Red House and
Guangze China House — Phase IA.

(i) Receipt in advance from management services represent the property
fee received in advance for property management. The receipts will be
transferred to profit or loss upon the Group’s revenue recognition criteria are
met.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A

() HEVEZASERASBBRENEARTP
WEZ & #IF0R - ZA] &R AEE T AU
HAERRERER TR AMIENERR
HEAREENRANEEEHR=E — AME

EEEZERE -

(i) FHREERBEMERDEEERK 2 DE
B o FRWFHIEHR AR E R A U am R

RUESE Ec et ki



FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and financial resources
Cash position

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of cash and bank deposits
of the Group was approximately RMB93.2 million (as at 31 March
2021: approximately RMB117.9 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 20.9% as compared with that as at 31 March 2021
which was mainly attributable to the settlement of construction costs,
interests, operating expenditure partially offset by the cash receipt from
pre-sale.

Debt and gearing

The Group’s bank and other borrowings as at 31 March 2022
decreased by RMB88.5 million to RMB711.6 million which were payable

Bt EE ()
RBEERIHBER
BEMR

RZE_—F=A=+—H0  AKEREK
RITF 2 BRE E 49 A A R % 93,200,000
T(RZE-—F=A=+—H: HARK
117,900,0007T) ' |ZFZ—F=A=+—
HIZN4120.9% « DEZHRBERS WA
B T RERA - FE - BB M

At
o

EBREFRERELR

R-ZE-—F=ZA=+—H A"EBRTR
EaEER D> AR 88,500,000 LE AR

as follows: 711,600,000 7T * FEIZA TNERZAT -
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Current BNHE 420,697 448,497
Non-current JEENER 290,897 351,593
711,594 800,090
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans and entrusted loan payable: 7B 5| HAREE 2 SRITE K
; “%E/T)\
Within one year or on demand —FRHIREK 420,697 430,897
In the second year F_F 61,897 60,897
In the third to fifth year, inclusive FEoEZENF (BREERFE) 229,000 290,696
711,594 782,490
Other borrowings repayable: AR THHEEEcEMEE -
Within one year —FR - 17,600
711,594 800,090

Both current and non-current portion of bank and other borrowings
decreased from RMB448.5 million and RMB351.6 million as at
31 March 2021 to RMB420.7 million and RMB290.9 million as at
31 March 2022 respectively as repayment was made during the year.

RITREMEENAE K IERNE I 5 5
AT —F=A=+t—HHARK
448,500,000 7C & A R # 351,600,000 7T &
LPEHE_T_—_FZA=+—HHARK
420,700,000t & A & # 290,900,000 7T
REBERFENIELER
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and financial resources (continued)
Debt and gearing (continued)

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 March 2022 was as follows:

¥ o B (&)
RBEERMHBER (&)
EXRERAFELR(R)

AEER-_ZE_—_F=A=+—HZEXE
R =M

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

(Restated)

(FEES))

Loan from controlling shareholder TN 234,819 72,615

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 711,594 800,090

Trade and other payables FERE 5 BR TR H b B 508 481,876 507,210

Less: Cash and cash equivalents A BeRREEEY (93,151) (117,938)

Pledged and restricted deposits B ZR HI7F 57 (7,596) (8,715)

Net debt &R FE 1,327,542 1,253,262
Liability component of AMRESFaERD

Convertible Bonds 79,267 72,879

Equity s 44,541 35,093

Adjusted Capital KHRHEER 123,808 107,972

Capital and net debt BRREBFE 1,451,350 1,361,234

Gearing ratio BERBELE 92% 92%

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 remained
stable.

Cash flows for the Group’s operating and investing activities

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded net operating
cash outflow of not less than RMB94.7 million (year ended 31 March
2021: outflow of RMB152.8 million (restated)). The outflow was mainly
attributable to the settlement of PRC corporate income tax of RMB12
million and interest expenses of not less than RMB66.3 million paid
during the year ended 31 March 2021. For investing activities, the
Group recorded a net cash outflow of RMB2.1 million (year ended 31
March 2021: inflow of RMB121.9 million). The inflow in last financial
year was mainly as a result of the consideration received for disposal of
subsidiaries in relation to the disposal of the Group’s financing guarantee
business which generated a net cash inflow of RMB122 million.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and financial resources (continued)
Utilisation of proceeds from fund raising activity in prior year

On 16 March 2021, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Fosun Hani Securities Co., Limited in respect of the placement of
up to 290,885,000 shares (the “Placing Shares”) at a placing price of
HK$0.35 per Placing Share to not less than six placees (the “Placing”).

On 24 March 2021, the Placing was completed and a total of
290,885,000 Placing Shares were issued under the general mandate of
the Company and the net proceeds from the Placing were approximately
HK$99.8 million (equivalent to approximately RMB84.2 million). Details
of the Placing are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 16
March 2021 and 24 March 2021.

The table below shows the current year utilisation of the proceeds
brought forward from fund raising activities made in previous years:

B35 1 RE (4R)
RBEERMEER ()
LA EBETH G RAZEAER

RZZF=—F=A+/"H  KARERELE
MEHBRARG L EEHZE - AmTd
7~ B AL & 5 % 290,885,000 A i 15
([EREk]) - EEEBATRIEER0.35
B ((BAEFE]D -

RZZFZ—F=AZ+WMA - BEFELE
e 0 A $£290,885,000 A% it & I H E 1R
BARRRZ —ME#RET  BEEBEHME
FRIBREE#) /99,800,000 7T (FE R A A
R84,200,0007T) ° I EFHEFIBEHNA
NEBAE-_ T -_—F=ZA+BK-Z
——FZAZtWMHBEZRE -

TRIVRARFREBEESFEFAREL
REZERBR

Utilised net  Unutilised net Utilised net Unutilised

proceeds proceeds proceeds net proceeds

as at asat as at as at

Intended use of the net proceeds Allocation 31 March2021 31 March2021 31 March2022 31 March 2022

R-E--% R-B=-% R-E-Z% R-B-Z%

=A=1-H =RF=t-H =B=t-H =A=1-H

Bz REBAZ Bz REAZ

e EREvRERE 2B HERETE  FERERE  FENERE  MERETE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ANREFTT NS NS NEEFT NRETT

Settlement of the costs and expenses & REEEHER 50,503 - 50,503 50,503 =

of the Group’s existing projects ZBARRES

Settlement of the Group’s finance costs & EREE 7 BIERKA 25,252 - 25,252 25,252 =
Settlement of the Group’s administrative Z&EAREE 7175

and operation expenses REERAX 8,445 4,421 4,024 8,445 -

84,200 4,421 79,779 84,200 -
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COMMITMENTS FOR DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had contracted but not provided
for commitments in respect of properties under development of
RMB7.3 million (as at 31 March 2021: 25.3 million). The development
expenditure was prepaid and funded by the Group’s internal resources
and/or project loans.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties that may cause the Group’s
financial conditions or results materially different from the expected or
historical results are described below.

Risks pertaining to the property development and
management business

The Group’s property projects are located in Jilin Province, the PRC
and the related assets accounted for 65.1% of the Group’s total assets
as at 31 March 2022 (as at 31 March 2021: 71.4%). The Group is
therefore subject to the risks associated with the PRC property market
both nationally and regionally. The Group’s property development and
management business in the PRC may also be exposed to the risks of
policy change, interest rate change, demand-supply imbalance and the
overall economic conditions, which may pose an adverse impact on
the Group’s business, financial conditions or results of operations. The
Group is looking for projects at other regions in the PRC and overseas
in order to diversify the risk.

Risks pertaining to the property investment business

The rental rates and the occupancy rates depend on various factors,
including but not limited to, prevailing supply and demand conditions,
economic conditions as well as the quality of the properties. There is no
assurance that the Group will be able to look for new tenants within a
short period of time or procure new leases or renew existing leases at
the prevailing market rates. The Group has other exit options to realise
the property as and when considered necessary.

Financial risks

As a matter of policy, the Group continues to manage the market risks
directly relating to its operations and financing activities and does not
undertake any speculative derivative trading activities. All treasury risk
management activities are carried out in accordance with the Group’s
policies and guidelines, which are reviewed as and when needed.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
Currency risk

As at 31 March 2022, the Group was exposed to currency risk on
financial assets and liabilities that were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars (HK$ and United States Dollars (US$)). At 31 March 2022,
approximately 4.4% and 60.9% of the Group’s total cash and bank
balance (including pledged bank deposit) were denominated in HK$ and
US$ respectively (as at 31 March 2021: 59.0% and 0%) and 100% of
the Group’s total borrowings were denominated in RMB (as at 31 March
2021: 100% denominated in RMB). The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign current assets
and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises. The Group will continue to monitor the change
in the trend of interest rates and the potential causes that trigger large
fluctuation in the exchange rates of RMB against HK$ and US$, and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure if necessary so
as to mitigate the foreign currency exposure arising from the Group’s
business operation and to minimise the Group’s financial risks.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s total bank and other borrowings bore
interest at fixed rates ranging from 5.39% to 10% per annum. Therefore,
the Group is not exposed to significant interest rate risk.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which would cause a financial loss to the Group due to the failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties arising from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash and trade and other receivables. Substantially
all of the Group’s pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash
were deposited in creditworthy global banks and stated-controlled
financial institutions in the PRC, which management considers they are
without significant credit risks. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has minimal concentration of credit risk as the trade receivables
from the largest single customer represented less than 5% (as at
31 March 2021: 5%) of the total trade receivables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SPEERECEE il

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise this credit risk relating to trade and other
receivables, the management has established credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In this regard, the management considers that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Other than disclosed elsewhere, the Group did not have any other
significant investments held as at 31 March 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of
property units developed by subsidiaries of the Group that provided
guarantees to secure obligation of such purchasers for repayments.
As at 31 March 2022, guarantees amounting to RMB378.0 million
were given to banks with respect to mortgage loans procured by
purchasers of property units (as at 31 March 2021: RMB790.9 million).
Such guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real
estate ownership certificate to the purchasers and (i) the satisfaction
of mortgage loans by the purchasers of properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by these
purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principals together with accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group is entitled to take
over the legal title and possession of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the mortgages.
During the year, the Group did not incur any material losses in respect
of any of these guarantees. The Directors consider that the likelihood
of default in payments by the purchasers is minimal and therefore the
financial guarantee measured at fair value initially is immaterial. Also,
in case of default in payments, the net realisable value of the related
property units would be sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore no
provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.
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CHARGE ON ASSETS EEER

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had the following assets pledged RZZ_—F=H=+—H ' ASEEE
against bank and other loans granted: R BITREMEFRERTINEE -

As at 31 March

R=A=+-—H

2022 2021

—E-— =E3= =4z

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREEFIT

Investment properties B Y 442,931 507,000

Properties under development BERPYE 665,600 664,800

Completed properties held for sale BEREC BRI 8,069 11,034
EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES BE & #H M E

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 235 (as at 31 March 2021: 239) RZ-ZE-Z—F=A=+—H XAEEHH
full-time employees. Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)  235& (R _ZE-_—F=H=+—H : 239
incurred for the year ended 31 March 2022 amounted to approximately ~ %) 2#B{ES - BHE T - —_F=A=+—
RMB27.1 million (year ended 31 March 2021: RMB21.4 million); the R IEFFEMELX B IR ABE(BEES
increase was mainly attribute to the gradual increase in staff number Bl & ) %) /& A K % 27,100,0007T (& = —
for the new project, namely Guangze Jiuxi Red House. The Group's ZZ—H=A=+T—HBLFE: AR¥
remuneration policy is in line with prevailing market practice and ~ 21,400,0007t) : BRI RF EHNELH
performance of individual staff. In addition to salaries, the Group also B /&EZRNEALN < ¥ 5EHEE B & g
offers other benefits to its staff, including share options, discretionary I © NEE 2 HMBERERITHISEN R E
bonus, training allowance and provident fund. TEARBEE - BRI REETRE
BETRMHEEMET  BEBRE WIBE
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Cui Xintong

Ms. Cui Xintong (“Ms. Cui”), aged 32, was appointed as an executive
Director and the deputy chairperson of the Board of the Company
in September 2016, and was further appointed as the chairperson
of the Board, a member of Remuneration Committee, a member of
Nomination Committee and authorised representative in December
2017 and the chairperson of the Rumination Committee in April 2019.
She has been re-designated from the position of chairperson to co-
chairperson of the Board and appointed as the chairperson of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 26 November 2021. On 29
June 2022, Ms. Cui resigned as the chairperson of Remuneration
Committee but remained as the member of Remuneration Committee.
She is also the controlling shareholder of the Company and a director in
various subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Cui is responsible for exploring new business opportunities,
formulating business plans and executing systematic prospecting,
maintaining relationships with existing and potential business partners,
developing, coaching and managing a team to deliver professional
service and ensure business sustainability. Ms. Cui was an assistant
president of FEEIEEIZEREEFR /A (Ground Investment Holding
(Group) Limited®, a related company established in the PRC) from
September 2013 to February 2015. Ms. Cui obtained her Bachelor
degree of Science in Business Administration from Northeastern
University, Boston, USA in August 2013. Ms. Cui is the daughter of Mr.
Cui Mindong, the non-executive Director of the Company. She is also
the director of Ka Yik Investments Limited and Charm Success Group
Limited, each of which has interest in the shares and/or underlying
shares of the Company.

Li Junjie

Mr. Li Junjie (“Mr. Li”), aged 63, was appointed as executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company in September 2020.

Mr. Li has worked in various county and city government departments
in Yanbian Prefecture, Jilin Province for more than 31 years. He is
responsible for government general management, strategic policy and
decision-making, investment promotion, urban and rural economy, and
management in new development zone. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Li had joined the government department in Yanbian prefecture,
Jilin Province since December 1982 and held important positions in
different cities. He served as the Executive Deputy Mayor of Helong City
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Government of Yanbian Prefecture, Jilin Province from 1998 to 2005.
He served as Executive Deputy Mayor and District Director of Yaniji City
Government, Yanbian Prefecture, Jilin Province from 2006 to 2013. He
served as the Chairman of the Standing Committee of Yanji Municipal
People's Congress in Yanbian Prefecture, Jilin Province from 2013 to
2018. When he retired from the government in December 2018, he
worked as President in Yanji Chamber of Commerce of Enterprises until
now. Mr. Li graduated from the Physics Department of Jilin Provincial
Institute of Education in 1986 and completed the postgraduate course
of Peking University’s enterprise development strategy major in July
1999.

Cong Peifeng

Mr. Cong Peifeng (“Mr. Cong”), aged 45, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company in December 2017 and was re-
designated as an executive Director of the Company in March 2021.

Mr. Cong has over 20 years of experience in tourism management and
hospitality management. He has been the deputy general manager of
the administration and human resources department of /2K &%
A& @ AR A (Ground Investment Holding (Group) Limited*) since
2016, and has been a distinguished lecturer of tourism management
profession at Changchun Vocational Institute of Technology since
2014. Mr. Cong had served as supervisor, deputy manager or manager
of different departments in South Lake Hotel from 2002 to 2016. He
received a Bachelor degree in Economics from Changchun University
in 2000 and graduated from the postgraduate programme of Tourism
Economic of Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences in 2002.

Xu Yingchuan

Mr. Xu Yingchuan (“Mr. Xu”), aged 50, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company in March 2021 and has been a
director in various subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Xu joined the Ground Real Estate Group (“Real Estate Group”)
in October 2009, as a design director, responsible for the design
management of Amethyst City in Jilin City. He was promoted to vice
general manager of research and development centre of the Real Estate
Group in November 2010 and responsible for the design management
of Amethyst City and Guangze International Shopping Centre of the
Real Estate Group. He was further promoted to the general manager
of the research and development centre of the Real Estate Group in
September 2011 and responsible for design management of all projects
of the Group. Mr. Xu was appointed as project general manager of &
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EHEEEMAEMBEAR AT (Yanji Huize Real Estate Development
Company Limited®) in May 2012. Mr. Xu is responsible for the overall
operation of the Guangze Red House. Prior to joining the Real Estate
Group, Mr. Xu was a chief project management officer of K&EFRE
HEFZE AR A "] (Changchun Zhongdong Real Estate Development
Company Limited*) from October 2007 to September 2009. Mr. Xu was
the officer of architecture department in &R RTEFEBR A
&) (Jilin Jianyuan Design Group Company Limited*) from August 1994
to October 2007. Mr. Xu obtained his Bachelor degree of Science in
Architecture from Jilin Institute of Architecture and Civil Engineering (&
ML TF2E0R), the PRC in July 1994,

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Sui Guangyi

Mr. Sui Guangyi (“Mr. Sui”), aged 59, was appointed as
Co-chairperson and a non-executive Director of the Company in
November 2021.

Mr. Sui is a non-executive Director and honorary chairman of New
Concepts Holdings Limited (82 5% [ (15 %) A B2 A 7)) whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock code: 2221) with effect from 15 October
2021. He served as the non-executive director of China Investment
Fund Company Limited (FEIEREE S AR A F) (“CIFCL”, formerly
known as China Ding Vi Feng Holdings Limited) whose shares are also
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 612) from
August 2015 to January 2020, and as the Chairman of CIFCL from
October 2015 to January 2020. Mr. Sui obtained a bachelor's degree
in Surveying and Mapping Engineering from Yunnan Technology College
(EREERIITEEERY) in 1990. Upon Mr. Sui's appointment as the
co-chairperson of the Board, he will be responsible for overseeing the
continuing evaluation of existing business performance of the Group,
and the expansion and business diversification strategies of the Group.
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Cui Mindong

Mr. Cui Mindong (“Mr. Cui”), aged 56, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2021.

Mr. Cui has been the chairman of 2% E1E iR & E AR A7 (Guangze
Investment Holdings Group Company Limited*) from 2010 up to now.
For the period from 2001 to 2010, Mr. Cui was the chairman of & &
E2EBAER AR Jiin Province Guangze Group Company Limited®).
Mr. Cui was working as a manager of & /& R A RED A7 (Jiin
Province Grain Reserve Company - Changchun Branch) for the period
from 1999 to 2001 respectively. Mr. Cui graduated from Jilin Agricultural
University major in agricultural studies in 1988; and obtained an EMBA
degree at Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2008. Mr. Cui
is the father of Ms. Cui Xintong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Tsang Hung Kei

Mr. Tsang Hung Kei (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member and chairperson of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company in April
2019. On 29 June 2022, he has been appointed as chairperson of the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Tsang has more than 26 years of experience in financial
management and reporting and corporate governance. He is a Fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Tsang
had years of working experience in an international accounting firm
and is currently the chief financial officer of Pak Fah Yeow International
Limited (stock code: 239), a company listed on the main board (the “Main
Board”) of the Stock Exchange and an executive director of its major
subsidiaries. Mr. Tsang is also an independent non-executive director of
China Success Finance Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 3623). Mr.
Tsang was an independent non-executive director of Palace Banquet
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1703) from March 2021 to January
2022 and China Wah Yan Healthcare Limited (stock code: 648) from
July 2018 to January 2021. The issued shares of all three companies
are listed on the Main Board. Mr. Tsang holds a Bachelor degree in
computer science and accounting at the University of Manchester,
United Kingdom.
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Wang Xiaochu

Mr. Wang Xiaochu (“Mr. XC Wang”), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company in July 2018.

Mr. XC Wang has more than 23 years of experience in the legal
profession in business investment, financing and mergers and
acquisitions. He has served as corporate legal counsel for a number of
sizeable companies since 2007, such as Jilin Investment Group, Jilin
Agricultural Investment Group Co. Limited, etc. He is also currently
a legal advisor to the Jilin Provincial Government, a decision-making
advisory committee member of the Jilin Provincial Government, and a
member of the 13th CPPCC National Committee of Changchun. Mr. XC
Wang graduated from the China University of Political Science and Law
in 1985 and was qualified as a Chinese lawyer in 1988. He has also
published various academic theses on the theory and practice of Civil
and Commercial Law.

Wang Xueguang

Mr. Wang Xueguang (“Mr. XG Wang”), aged 47, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director, a member of Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company in November 2021.

Mr. XG Wang has 25 years of working experience with main focus on
non-litigation businesses relating to finance and asset operation, as well
as equity investment and state-owned enterprise reform. Mr. XG Wang
was the Former Deputy Director and Secretary-General of the Financial
Securities Professional Committee of Changchun Lawyers Association*
(REMEMHEERMIFFEEEZES®). Mr. XG Wang worked as a legal
consultant in the Agricultural Bank of China - Jilin Province Branch* (#
Bl 2 28R 17 & 9 17) from September 1997 to July 2006. He worked
as a lawyer in Jilin University School of Law Jida Law Firm (F# & K
BN E T FT) from November 2006 to March 2010. He worked at Jilin
Laurel Law Firm* (F M2 ZAIEHS AN as a lawyer from March 2010
to April 2019. Since May 2019, Mr. XG Wang worked as a lawyer at
Beijing Guo Zhen Law Firm* (At R BEIIREZEIEHFT). Mr. XG Wang
graduated from the Economic Law Department of the Law School of
Jilin University in 1997. In 2005, he obtained a master's degree in law
from Northeast Normal University (51t B &5 A £2%).
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Zhu Zuoan

Mr. Zhu Zuoan (“Mr. Zhu”), aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company in December 2017 and
resigned in November 2021.

Mr. Zhu has over 38 years of experience in banking industry. He had
served as section chef, vice president, president or general manager
in Agricultural Bank of China (Jilin Province Branch), Agricultural Bank
of China (Tonghua City Centre Sub-Branch) and various branches of
Agricultural Development Bank of China from 1980 to 2014. Mr. Zhu
has served as an executive director of EEERIREERER AR
(Shanghai Hui Cheng Investment Management Limited*) since 2017.
Mr. Zhu graduated from Jilin College of Finance and Trade (currently
known as Jilin University of Finance and Economics) majoring in
Agricultural Financing in 1984 and obtained qualification of the research
course in Economic Management from FHEMEZER (Party
School of Chinese Communist Party of Jilin Province®) in 2008. He
has also obtained the qualification of senior economist granted by the
Agricultural Bank of China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ng Man Kit Micky

Mr. Ng Man Kit Micky (“Mr. Ng”), aged 46, joined the Company as
the finance and investor relations director in January 2015, where he
was responsible for the Group’s financial management and general
management of operation in Hong Kong until he was appointed as
chief financial officer and company secretary of the Company in March
2016. Mr. Ng is also a director in various subsidiaries of the Company
and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. He reports to the chairperson of the Board directly and assists
the Board in ensuring effective information flow among the Board
members and that the Board policy and procedures are followed. Mr.
Ng has extensive auditing and accounting experience having been
with an international professional accounting firm for 15 years and is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng
obtained his joint degree of Bachelor of Science in Mathematics and
Management Science from the University of Hull, United Kingdom in
July 1998 and a Postgraduate diploma in Business Administration from
the University of Birmingham, United Kingdom in June 1999. Mr. Ng
had duly complied with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During
the year, the Group was principally engaged in property development
and management including planning, designing, budgeting,
licensing, contract tendering and contract administration, and
property investment. The principal activities and other particulars
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of the analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by
operating segments are set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group, including description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, important events
since the end of the financial year, future development and analysis
of the Group’s key financial performance indicators are set out in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 25 to this annual
report; while the Group’s environmental policies and performance can
be found in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
65 to 88 to this annual report. During the year, the Company has
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company.

In addition to the above mentioned, the Directors would like to maintain
the Group’s relationships with its stakeholders. The Group’s success
depends on, among other things, the support from key stakeholders
which comprise employees, customers and suppliers.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The objective of the Group’s human resource management
is to reward and recognise performing staff by providing a competitive
remuneration package with appropriate incentives, and to promote
career development and progression by appropriate training.
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Customers

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. It is the
Group’s mission to provide excellent customer service whilst maintaining
long term profitability, business and asset growth. Various means have
been established to strengthen the communications between the
customers and the Group in the provision of excellent customer service.

Suppliers

Sound relationships with key suppliers of the Group are important in
supply chain, meeting business challenges and regulatory requirements,
which can derive cost effectiveness and foster long term business
benefits. We have developed long-standing relationships with a number
of our suppliers and take great care to ensure that they share our
commitment to quality and ethics.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Other than disclosed elsewhere, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. CUI Xintong (Co-chairperson)

(Redesignated as Co-chairperson on 26 November 2021)

Mr. LI Junjie (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CONG Peifeng
Mr. XU Yingchuan

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CUI Mindong

(Appointed on 26 November 2021)
Mr. SUI Guangyi (Co-chairperson)
(Appointed on 26 November 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei

Mr. WANG Xiaochu
Mr. WANG Xueguang

(Appointed on 26 November 2021)
Mr. ZHU Zuoan

(Resigned on 26 November 2021)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Sui Guangyi, Mr. Cui Mindong and Mr. Wang Xueguang shall
retire from office as Director by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election in
accordance with the Bye-Law 83(2) of the Bye-laws.

Ms. Cui Xintong and Mr. Wang Xiaochu shall retire from office as
Director by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election in accordance with the
Bye-Law 84(1) of the Bye-laws.

Biographical details of Directors and Senior Management are set out on
pages 26 to 31 to this annual report, and details of the Directors to retire
and subject to re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company are also contained in the circular to be despatched
together with this annual report.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a written annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on Stock Exchange. The
Company considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract or a letter
of appointment with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report, (i) no other transactions, arrangement or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its holding companies, or any of their subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with the Directors had a
material interest and (i) no other contracts of significance between the
Company, or its subsidiaries, and its controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end
of the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors or their respective
associates are interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s businesses.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors and other officers of the
Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which shall or may incur or sustain by
or by reasons of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duties or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the
Company has appropriate liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2022, the Directors and chief executives of the
Company had the following interests or short positions in shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) in the Listing Rules:
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(continued)

(a) Interests in ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Shares”)

EERARATRBTERAERE
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e

Approximate
percentage of

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A

Name of Directors/ Nature of No. of issued voting
Chief Executives interest Position Shares held Shares
HEE BT
B REER G
BES{THABHE ERME BR iR EE Batt
(Note 1)
(MzE1)
Ms. Cui Xintong Interest in a controlled Long 3,6569,748,124 54.10%
(“Ms. Cui”) corporation (Note 2)
EFEgt([Ext]) MEEEE 2 e GER)
Interest in a controlled Short 120,000,000 1.77%
corporation (Note 3)
REVEEE 2 R (PH5E3)
Mr. Sui Guangyi Interest in a controlled Long 1,050,000,000 15.52%
corporation (Note 4)
FEEZSTE MNEEEEE 2 R GETY
(b) Interest in the underlying shares of the Company (b) R A RIEER D 2 =
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Directors/ No. of issued voting
Chief Executives Nature of interest Position shares held Shares
KRS BT
B g ss REZR G
BETHRABHR EEME B#E RSB [EPild
(Note 1)
(F5E1)
Ms. Cui Settlor of a trust Long 708,652,248 10.40%
EZt EFEERFEA HE (Note 5)
(MtE5)
Mr. Xu Yingchuan Beneficiary owner Long 1,000,000 0.01%
RER)I | oA EnEA A e (Note 6)
(MtEE®)



INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

EERARTARBTERAERAE
RAREEEEEER G - 8
EEH%@&E%#JZ*E%:?&‘}%E
(&

OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(continued)

Notes:

1.

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 6,764,285,867 issued voting
Shares as at 31 March 2022.

These 3,659,748,124 Shares consist of (i) 434,320,694 Shares held by
Charm Success Group Limited (“Charm Success”); and (i) 3,225,427,430
Shares held by Ka Yik Investments Limited (“Ka Yik”). Charm Success
and Ka Yik are companies wholly owned by Deep Wealth Holding Limited
(“Deep Wealth”), which is in turn held by TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as trustee of the
Ground Trust. The Ground Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Ms. Cui as
settlor and protector, and TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as trustee on 27 July 2016. By
virtue of the SFO, Ms. Cui is deemed to be interested in the securities of the
Company held by Charm Success and Ka Yik, and such interest duplicated
the interest of Charm Success, Ka Yik and Mr. Lee Ken-yi, Terence (“Mr.
Lee”) (Ms. Cui’s spouse) for the purpose of SFO.

Charm Success entered into a sale and purchase agreement on 24
December 2021 pursuant to which Charm Success would sell 120,000,000
Shares to the buyer within 270 days from agreement date (or later as parties
may agree).

These 1,050,000,000 Shares are held by Hong Kong Toprich Investment
Limited. Hong Kong Toprich Investment Limited, Final Destination Limited,
Eternity Sky Limited and Flying Goddess Limited are all wholly-owned
subsidiaries of China Investment Fund Company Limited (formerly known
as China Ding Yi Feng Holdings Limited) (“China Investment Fund”). China
Investment Fund is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Sui Guangyi,
a non-executive Director and co-chairperson of the Company, holds 12% of
China Investment Fund. The interests duplicate each other.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(S

As set out in note 2 above, Ka Yik is a company held under the Ground
Trust where Ms. Cui is the settlor and protector. Ms. Cui is deemed to
be interested in those Shares and underlying shares of the Company by
virtue of the SFO and such interest duplicated Ms. Cui's partial interest for
the purpose of SFO. As at 31 March 2022, those 703,652,248 underlying
shares consist of (i) convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$103,076,730 (convertible into 264,299,307 Shares in total) to be
issued by the Company to Ka Yik pursuant to a subscription agreement
dated 7 September 2021 (supplemented by a supplemental letter dated
28 September 2021 and supplemental agreement dated 22 October
2021) entered into between the Company and Ka Yik; and (i) 439,352,941
convertible preference shares (the “Convertible Preference Shares”) issued
by the Company on 27 July 2016. All of such underlying shares are unlisted
and physically settled under SFO. Mr. Lee is the spouse of Ms. Cui, an
executive Director and co-chairperson of the Board. Mr. Lee is deemed to
be interested in those securities by virtue of being Ms. Cui’s spouse under
the SFO and such interest duplicated to Ms. Cui’s interest for the purpose of
SFO. All of the relevant underlying shares are unlisted and physically settled
under SFO. On 8 July 2022, Ka Yik exercised its conversion right attaching
to the Convertible Preference Shares, 439,352,941 Shares were allotted and
issued by the Company to Ka Yik.

Those underlying shares are the share options granted by the Company
under the share option scheme of the Company, information of which was
shown in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report. All of
such underlying shares are unlisted and physically settled under SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors

and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short

positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning

of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company

and any of its holding companies and subsidiaries, a party to any

arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of

the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests or short positions of the parties
other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

EBRRNE S 2 S

RZZE-_—_F=A=+—H0 ' ' E5&kAEARA
BoITHABLAINZ AERARA R A8
RN 10 P R IR 78 5 S HA B 16411 55 336 15

register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of ~ FRERHA AR BB TF HE LM R 2 iz 5%k
the SFO were as follows: BT :
(a) Interests in Shares (a) R0 =
Approximate
percentage of
No. of issued voting
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Position Shares held Shares
NGB 81T
g s REERG
REREHE ERME B¥E RBEE Btk
(Note 1)
(BEzE1)
Charm Success Registered owner Long 434,320,694 6.42%
ERK ERBEA e (Note 2)
(BizE2)
Charm Success Registered owner Short 120,000,000 1.77%
E FRHB A KE (Note 3)
(Pf3ES)
Ka Yik Registered owner Long 3,225,427,430 47.68%
Riz BREEA e (Note 2)
(Mf3E2)
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. Trustee Long 3,6569,748,124 54.10%
ZEEA e (Note 2)
(Bi=E2)
Deep Wealth Interest in controlled Long 3,659,748,124 54.10%
Holding Limited corporation (Note 2)
(‘Deep Wealth”) RSAEHEE 2 s e (BzE2)
Mr. Lee Ken-yi Terence Interest of spouse Long 3,6569,748,124 54.10%
(“Mr. Lee”) (Note 7)
FoaF i E ([FERE]) g HE (HF3ET)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FERRRE S 2 (&)

SECURITIES (continued)

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A

(a) Interests in Shares (continued) (a) IR 10 #E 2= (4&)
Approximate
percentage of
No. of issued voting
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Shares held Shares
LB 1T
P REERS
RREHE ERME BEE Aotk
(Note 1)
(fF7E1)
Mr. Sui Guangyi Interest in controlled 1,050,000,000 15.52%
corporation (Note 6)
BEREREE REZESER 2 (KtzEe)
China Investment Interest in controlled 1,050,000,000 15.52%
Fund Company Limited corporation (Note 6)
FEEEESBRAT] REZPESER 2 (KtzEe)
Flying Goddess Limited Interest in controlled 1,050,000,000 15.52%
corporation (Note 6)
REZPESER 2 (KtzEe)
Eternity Sky Limited Interest in controlled 1,050,000,000 15.52%
corporation (Note 6)
REZESER 2 Em (KtzEe)
Final Destination Limited Interest in controlled 1,050,000,000 15.52%
corporation (Note 6)
REZESER 2 (KtsEe)
Hong Kong Toprich Registered owner 1,050,000,000 15.52%
Investment Limited (Note 6)
BREREREBRAR EREAA (Mi3E6)
Integrated Asset Beneficial owner 383,099,000 5.66%
Management (Asia) (Note 5)
Limited
NEEEEE (M) EnEEA (Bt=E5)
GRAA]
Mr. Yam Tak Cheung Interest in controlled 383,099,000 5.66%
(“Mr. Yam”) corporation (Note 5)
FEELE([EEE)) RZZEHEE 2 s (Bt3E5)



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

(b) Interest in the underlying shares of the Company

EFBRRNFE 2w (&)

(b) RA X R AEEE MR 17 2 #E 5

Approximate

No. of percentage of
underlying issued voting
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Position shares held Shares
KL BT
FrEERe REERSG
RRAERE Sty B2 BB EE B
(Note 1)
(FI3E1)
Ka Yik Registered owner Long 703,652,248 10.40%
(Note 4)
e BREEA e (BtzE4)
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. Trustee Long 703,652,248 10.40%
(Note 4)
ZEEA 5] (BtzE4)
Deep Wealth Interest in controlled Long 703,652,248 10.40%
corporation (Note 4)
REZESEE 2 e (BtzE4)
Mr. Lee Interest of spouse Long 703,652,248 10.40%
(Note 4)
T [N e (BtzE4)
Notes: MIaE -

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 6,764,285,867 issued
voting Shares as at 31 March 2022.

These 3,659,748,124 Shares consist of (i) 434,320,694 Shares held by
Charm Success; and (i) 3,225,427,430 Shares held by Ka Yik. Charm
Success and Ka Yik are companies wholly owned by Deep Wealth,
which is in turn held by TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as the trustee of the Ground
Trust. The Ground Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Ms. Cui as
settlor and protector, and TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as trustee on 27 July
2016. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Cui is deemed to be interested in the
securities of the Company held by Charm Success and Ka Yik, and such
interest duplicated the interest of Charm Success, Ka Yik, Mr. Lee (Ms.
Cui’s spouse) for the purpose of SFO.

Charm Success entered into a sale and purchase agreement on
24 December 2021 pursuant to which Charm Success would sell
120,000,000 Shares to the buyer within 270 days from agreement date
(or later as parties may agree).

BALER-_E-_—_F=ZA=1+—HB%
TR ERERR () 6,764,285,867 It HE -

$2.3,659,748,124 f& B% 15 B35 () A E R
B 2 434,320,694 B8R (5 + I (i) B R EZ
B 23,225,427, 430 & J& 15 o ZERK MR FE
9/ Deep Wealth 2 & # 75 - Deep Wealth
AlJFR Ground Trust K52 5E A TMF (Cayman)
Ltd. #7% ° Ground Trust BHERZ+ (1A
ZEARREA) RTMF (Cayman) Ltd.
(EEZTEANR=T—EtA=1++tA
BB o RIBFEHF KR ED -
EZ TR ABNER R EMEARRE
S a D MABHERBEEMNMm
T AEmEEN  REREXTRBF
FEZERES -

ERN B —F+ A =1+ HEFIN—
HE B BUEKERHE B B
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FERRRE S 2 (&)

SECURITIES (continued)
Notes: (continued) BHEE - (88)

4. As set out in note 2 above, Ka Yik is a company wholly-owned by Deep 4. # 0 & X207 # - 5 7% B Deep Wealth

Wealth, which is in turn held by TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as trustee of the
Ground Trust where Ms. Cui is the settlor and protector. Each of TMF
(Cayman) Ltd., Deep Wealth and Ms. Cui is deemed to be interested in
those Shares and underlying shares of the Company by virtue of the SFO.
As at 31 March 2022, those 703,652,248 underlying shares consist of (i)
convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount of HK$103,076,730
(convertible into 264,299,307 Shares in total) to be issued by the Company
to Ka Yik pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 7 September 2021
(supplemented by a supplemental letter dated 28 September 2021 and
supplemental agreement dated 22 October 2021) entered into between the
Company and Ka Yik; and (i) 439,352,941 convertible preference shares
(the “Convertible Preference Shares”) issued by the Company on 27 July
2016. All of such underlying shares are unlisted and physically settled under
SFO. On 8 July 2022, Ka Yik exercised its conversion right attaching to
the Convertible Preference Shares, 439,352,941 Shares were allotted and
issued by the Company to Ka Yik.

Integrated Asset Management (Asia) Limited is a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yam. Mr. Yam deemed to be interested in those
Shares by virtue of being its controlling shareholder under SFO. The interests
duplicate each other.

These 1,050,000,000 Shares are held by Hong Kong Toprich Investment
Limited. Hong Kong Toprich Investment Limited, Final Destination Limited,
Eternity Sky Limited and Flying Goddess Limited are all wholly-owned
subsidiaries of China Investment Fund Company Limited (formerly known
as China Ding Yi Feng Holdings Limited) (“China Investment Fund”). China
Investment Fund is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Sui Guangyi,
a non-executive Director and co-chairperson Company, holds 12% of China
Investment Fund. The interests duplicate each other.

Mr. Lee is the spouse of Ms. Cui, an executive Director and co-chairperson
of the Board. Mr. Lee is deemed to be interested in those securities by
virtue of being Ms. Cui’s spouse under the SFO and such interest duplicated
to Ms. Cui’s interest for the purpose of SFO. All of the relevant underlying
shares are unlisted and physically settled under SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the parties
other than Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company and the movements
in the share options are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the financial year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1) On 26 February 2021, the Company entered into a share transfer
agreement with the P B ERE (XY)BRAE (Zhongmao
Business Consulting (Shenzhen) Company Limited* (“Zhongmao”)),
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to
sell the entire equity interests in Ground Real Estate Group
Company Limited* at the consideration of RMB1.0 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1.2). On 4 June 2021, the Company entered
into a supplemental agreement with Zhongmao and & #& 5L
FEAR AT (Jilin Province Hongjing Industry Company Limited*,
“Jilin Hongjing”), pursuant to which the equity interests of Ground
Real Estate Group Company Limited* will be sold as to 85% to
Zhongmao and 15% to Jilin Hongjing; and the long stop date of the
transaction is to be extended. As Jilin Hongjing is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Zhongmao and their ultimate beneficial owner is namely
Mr. Dou Jinlong, who is a relative (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of Ms. Cui, the above transaction constituted connected transaction
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As one or more of
the applicable percentage ratios calculated under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules exceed 5% but none of them exceeds 25%; and as
the consideration does not exceed HK$10 million, the transaction is
a de minimis connected transaction of the Company and is subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt from
the circular (including independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules. The disposal transaction was completed on 23 June
2021.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
26 February 2021, 15 March 2021 and 4 June 2021, respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2)

On 26 July 2021, Ka Yik Investments Limited (“Ka Yik”), the
controlling shareholder of the Company, has agreed to provide a
shareholder’s loan of HK$103,076,730 (the “Shareholder’s Loan”)
on 26 July 2021 to the Company as part of the re-financing of
the Company’s Convertible Bonds due on even date which were
issued to Ka Yik on 27 July 2016 with the principal amount of
HK$87,962,612 and accrued interest of HK$15,114,118. The salient
terms of the Shareholder’s Loan are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand. Ka Yik has confirmed that it will not demand
the Company for repayment of the Shareholder’s Loan within the
next twelve months should the Company not be in the financial
position to make such repayment. The entering of the Shareholder’s
Loan is an exempted connected transaction pursuant to the Listing
Rules 14A.90 as the Shareholder’s Loan is conducted on normal
commercial terms or better; and it is not secured by any assets of
the Group.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
26 July 2021.

On 7 September 2021, the Company entered into the Subscription
Agreement with Ka Yik, pursuant to which Ka Yik agreed to
subscribe for and the Company agreed to issue the Convertible
Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of HK$103,076,730. The
Convertible Bonds carry the conversion rights to convert into up
to 264,299,307 Conversion Shares at the initial Conversion Price
of HK$0.39 per Conversion Share. Upon the full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds at the initial Conversion Price, the Convertible
Bonds will be convertible into a total of 264,299,307 new Shares.
The subscription amount payable by Ka Yik under the Subscription
Agreement shall be satisfied by way of setting off the Shareholder’s
Loan payable by the Company to Ka Yik on a dollar-to-dollar basis.
Since the aggregate subscription price of HK$103,076,730 will be
fully set off against the Shareholder’s Loan, no cash proceeds will be
received by the Company from the issue of the Convertible Bonds.
On 22 October 2021, the Company and Ka Yik entered into the
Supplemental Agreement to the Subscription Agreement, pursuant
to which the parties have agreed to amend the terms in relation to
the maturity and redemption of the Convertible Bonds. Ka Yik is a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Subscription
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules and is subject to the reporting, announcement and
Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3) (continued)

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
7 September 2021, 18 October 2021, 22 October 2021 and 14
December 2021 and circular dated 30 September 2021 and 11
November 2021.

The issuance of the convertible bonds was completed on 14
December 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the sections headed “Connected Transactions”,
“Share Option Scheme” and “Issue of Shares, Convertible Preference
Shares and Convertible Bonds” in this report, the Company did not
enter into any equity-linked agreements during the financial year.

ISSUE OF SHARES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE
SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the shares, convertible preference shares and convertible
bonds issued by the Company and their movements during the year
ended 31 March 2022 were set out in notes 25, 26 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue. The
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the
Group’s total purchases.
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DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (2021:Nil).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company'’s total
number of issued shares as required under the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31
March 2022 were audited by Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”) who would
retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting
and being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed in the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
Mazars as the auditor of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in auditor of
the Company in the preceding two years.

On behalf of the Board
Cui Xintong
Co-Chairperson

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERME

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance
and is committed to maintaining a good governance standards within
the Group. The Board adopts and continuously develops a set of
internal guidelines, practices and policies on the corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company adopted the principles in the applicable code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and complied with
all the applicable code provisions during the financial year, except for a
deviation specified below:

Under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rule, an issuer must establish a
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) chaired by
an independent non-executive Director and comprising a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.

The Company had Ms. Cui, the chairperson of the Board, as the
chairperson of the Remuneration Committee which is deviated from
the Listing Rule. On 29 June 2022, Ms. Cui Xintong resigned as the
chairperson of the Remuneration Committee and remained to be a
member of the Remuneration committee; and Mr. Tsang Hung Kei,
our Independent non-executive Director, has been appointed as the
chairperson of the Remuneration Committee in place of Ms. Cui with
effect from 29 June 2022.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors, as equal board
members, should give the board and any committees on which they
serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and active participation.
Generally, they should attend general meetings to gain and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, certain of the independent non-executive
Directors and executive Directors were unable to physically attend the
Company’s annual general meeting on 25 August 2021, the special
general meeting held on 19 October 2021 and the adjourned special
general meeting on 26 November 2021 but attended these meetings by
means of video conference.

On 1 January 2022, the amendments to the existing CG Code (the “New
CG Code”) came into effect and the requirements under the New CG
Code would apply to corporate governance reports for financial year
commencing on or after 1 January 2022. The Board will continue to
review and enhance its corporate governance practice of the Company
to ensure compliance with the New CG Code and align with the latest
developments.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct for dealings
in securities of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiries by the Company, that throughout
the year ended 31 March 2022 they complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD
Composition

During the financial year and up to the date of this report, the Board
comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Ms. CUI Xintong (Co-chairperson)
(Re-designated as co-chairperson
on 26 November 2021)

Mr. LI Junjie (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CONG Peifeng

Mr. XU Yingchuan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CUI Mindong
(Appointed on 26 November 2021)

Mr. SUI Guangyi (Co-chairperson)
(Appointed as a non-executive Director and
a Co-chairperson on 26 November 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei
Mr. WANG Xiaochu
Mr. WANG Xueguang
(Appointed on 26 November 2021)
Mr. ZHU Zuoan
(Resigned on 26 November 2021)

During the financial year, the Board maintained a balanced composition
of executive Directors and non-executive Directors which generated
a strong independent element to the Board. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the general meeting of
the Company (in case of filling a casual vacancy) or at the annual
general meeting of the Company (in case of an addition to the Board)
following their appointment and at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-laws. A list of the Directors identifying their
role and function is published on the Stock Exchange’s website and
the Company’s website. The biographical details of the Directors in
existence during the financial year are set out on pages 26 to 31 to this
annual report.

Other than disclosed, the Board members have no financial, business,
family or other relationships with each other.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Composition (continued)

The Board received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors a written annual confirmation relating to their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considered all of the independent non-executive Directors were
independent.

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic goals of the Company,
providing leadership and guidance to the Group’s activities and for
oversight of the management of the Company and direction of its
business strategies, with the ultimate aim to maximise the shareholder
value and long-term success of the Company while the management
is responsible for management and administrative functions on running
the day-to-day operations of the Group within the authority delegated
by the Board and properly informing the Board of the status of these
operations. Matters specifically for the consideration of the Board mainly
cover, among others, overall corporate strategies, major business plans
and objectives and risk policy of the Group, annual and interim results,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital investments, material
contracts and transactions, appointment of Directors, other significant
operational and financial matters as well as corporate governance
matters. In addition, the Board has various Board committees and
delegates to these committees various responsibilities set out in their
respective terms of reference.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as
to ensure that their contributions to the Board remain informed and
relevant. Every newly appointed Director shall be given an induction
package covering, inter alia, the Group’s business, the statutory and
regulatory obligations and duties of a director of a listed company.
In addition, all Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
performance and position of the Group to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties. Furthermore, all Directors
are updated from time to time on the latest changes and development
regarding the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and other
regulatory and statutory regime with reference materials in order to
ensure compliance and provide their advice on corporate governance.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Continuous Professional Development (continued)

Directors are requested to provide the Company with their respective
training record pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5. During the financial
year, Directors participated in continuous professional development
through reading materials on regulatory updates, director’s duties and
responsibilities and corporate governance matters and/or attending
relevant seminars or courses provided by professional bodies. Directors
have provided the Company with a record of the relevant training
undertaken during the financial year as summarised below:

Exg(H)
FEEREE (H)

EXARBETREXEALLIRRARAIR
HEEEB 2T - WRFER - EF
E2EREEXER  BRNABAHENE
ERTE  BERENBEARGEELRER
ZHE - R R R B TR I 2 45
M EHRE - EFERARRRHERITIK
FEAMZEZABEIzLHE - BRMEN
S

Attending briefing/

Directors seminars/courses Reading Materials
HEZE NS

=2 = v BEME

Executive Directors HITES

Ms. CUI Xintong ExEit v/ v/

Mr. LI Junjie XS e v v

Mr. CONG Peifeng s & v v

Mr. XU Yingchuan wul e v v

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. CUI Mindong' ERREAE v v

Mr. SUI Guangyi’ PBEER LA v v/

Independent Non-executive Directors B IEHITES

Mr. TSANG Hung Kei LR E A v v

Mr. WANG Xiaochu FREVIEAE v v

Mr. WANG Xueguang' FEHREA v/ 77

Mr. ZHU Zuoan? RYERF A2 v v

Note: B3 -

1. Appointed on 26 November 2021 1. RZZEZ—F+—A=Z+BEZE

2. Resigned on 26 November 2021 2. RZEZ—F+—AZ+XAEE
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Meetings, General Meetings and Attendance of
Directors

During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Company held
four regular Board meetings held at approximately quarterly intervals,
an annual general meeting (“AGM”) and two special general meetings
(“SGM”). The attendance of each Director is as follows:

ExE (&)

EEZ2E8 RRASRESLHE
B

BE_T-__F-A=1+—HLYRFE
A ARAHBTORNEREFTSSH (K
HWEBFE—X)  —RERBFARE (KRR
BERE ) RZRBERERIAS ([BERE R
K& - BEFZHERHIIWMT -

Attended/Eligible to attend

HEEEREE
Board Meeting AGM SGM
EEggR BEBFRE BREKRE

Ms. CUI Xintong EFELt 4/4 1/ 2/2
Mr. LI Junjie FEELE 4/4 1/ 2/2
Mr. CONG Peifeng Emg ka4 4/4 11 2/2
Mr. XU Yingchuan TR A 4/4 1/ 2/2
Mr. CUI Mindong' ERREA 3/3 - 0/2
Mr. SUI Guangyi' FEEZELAE 3/3 - 0/2
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei EIBESLE 4/4 1/ 2/2
Mr. WANG Xiaochu TEEVILE 4/4 11 2/2
Mr. WANG Xueguang' FEREAE 3/3 - 0/2
Mr. ZHU Zuoan? RYER A2 2/2 1/ 2/2
Note: MIaE -
1. Appointed on 26 November 2021 1. RZZEZ—F+—A=Z+BEZ{E
2. Resigned on 26 November 2021 2. RZZEZ—F+—AZ+AHF
Apart from the said Board meetings, routine/operational matters R LilEEFE &R - FEESSHEZF

1/ B8EBELZEENEBERRAZRRS
NERBAXHEERNERERHARRZA
additional verbal and/or written information from the company secretary ~ RIF/EREEINOBE R HETH T ER R
of the Company as and when appropriate. The Chairperson of the  ZIBESEXERGHRER  -EE2EFEH
ERFBEFARE - WHEEZ - 5 - 125
?EAZIfﬁf MR BEBEERE X

requiring Board approval were arranged by means of circulation
of written resolutions with supporting materials, supplemented by

Board attended the AGM and invited the chairpersons of the audit,
remuneration, nomination committees to attend. In case of absence of

committee chairperson, the Chairperson invited another member of the B BEZEE S —“KEBLERRAFTAE
committee attended to answer questions at the AGM. VARRZ FEIRE o
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CO-CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

According to the Code Provision C.2.1, the role of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”) should be separated and performed
by different individuals to ensure a balance of Power and authority so
that power is not concentrated in any one individual.

The Co-Chairpersons, Ms. Cui Xintong and Mr. Sui Guangyi are
responsible for overall corporate planning and strategic policy making
and the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practices. Mr. Li Junjie was appointed as an
executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company. He is
responsible to execute the corporate planning and strategic policy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10(A) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
every board of directors of a listed issuer must include at least three
independent non-executive directors, at least of three independent non-
executive directors must have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise, an issuer must
appoint independent non-executive directors representing at least one-
third of the board, and the audit committee must comprise a minimum
of three members.

Mr. Zhu Zuoan (“Mr. Zhu”) has tendered his resignation as an
Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 26 November
2021. Mr. Zhu also resigned as the chairman of the nomination
committee and a member of audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Wang Xueguang (“Mr. Wang”) has been
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director, the member of
audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee
with effect from 26 November 2021.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Group had at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors at all times. The Company
was in compliance with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2),
3.10(A) and 3.21 for the Listing Rules during the year.

All of the Independent Non-executive Directors have entered into letters
of appointment with the Company for a specified period of one or three
year (renewable), subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company at least once every three years
in accordance with the Bye-laws.

HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has three Board committees, including the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee to
help with the discharge of its responsibilities.

Remuneration Committee

During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, Mr. Zhu Zuoan ceased
to be a member of the Remuneration Committee upon his resignation
as an independent non-executive Director on 26 November 2021; Mr.
Wang Xueguang became a member of the Remuneration Committee
upon his appointment as an independent non-executive Director on 26
November 2021. As at 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee
comprises Ms. Cui Xintong (chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Tsang Hung Kei, Mr. Wang Xiaochu and Mr. Wang
Xueguang. On 29 June 2022, Ms Cui Xintong resigned as the
chairperson of the Remuneration Committee but remained as a member
of the Remuneration Committee; and Mr. Tsang Hung Kei had been
appointed as the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee in replace
of Ms. Cui Xintong. The Remuneration Committee’s duties as set out in
its terms of reference include, inter alia, to make recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management, making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages for individual Directors and senior
management, and administering and overseeing the Company’s share
option scheme(s). No Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee setting out its role and responsibilities are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Board adopted a remuneration policy for directors and senior
management to provide guidelines for structuring all remuneration of
directors and senior management. The remuneration policy is reviewed
annually by the Board and the Remuneration Committee. The policy
sets out, among others, the remuneration structure which mainly covers
director’s fee, basic salary, discretionary bonus, other benefits in kind,
pension scheme, share option scheme(s) and termination payments,
and determination or review of remuneration packages. The Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration packages are determined,
or reviewed annually, taking into consideration the criteria such as
experience, responsibilities, workload, time commitment, individual’s
and the Company’s performance as well as the prevailing market
conditions. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at
least once a year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)
The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the financial

year ended 31 March 2022. The attendance of each member is set out
as follows:

BEEZE2(H)
FEES (8
HE-Z-_—F=-A=+—HLUWERFE

FMEREHBITIRNGH - SKEZHE
RFHOT

Number of meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HEAEREESERE
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei (Chairperson)!  &ieE 4 (£/E) ! 2/2
Ms. CUI Xintong (Chairperson)? EFEZE: (F/E)? 2/2
Mr. WANG Xiaochu FREASTE 2/2
Mr. WANG Xueguang® TFEREAES 1/1
Mr. ZHU Zuoan* RIER S 1/1
Note: s
1) Appointed as Chairperson on 29 June 2022 1) RZZZZFARAZTNHZRRERE
2) Ceased to be Chairperson on 29 June 2022 2) ﬁ(‘: T _FRNAZTNBEEERE
3) Appointed on 26 November 2021 3 MIZE-_—F+— A+ XAEEE
4) Resigned on 26 November 2021 4) RZEZ—F+—RAZF+HEHTE

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
are summarised as follows:

(@) reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of all Directors and
senior management;

(b) reviewed the terms of reference in compliance with the prevailing
CG Code;

(c) reviewed and recommended the Board on the remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management; and

(d) administer and oversee the share options granted under the share
option scheme of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee

During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, Mr. Zhu Zuoan ceased
to be the chairman and as member of the Nomination Committee
upon his resignation as an independent non-executive Director on
26 November 2021; Mr. Wang Xueguang became a member of the
Nomination Committee upon his appointment as an independent non-
executive Director on 26 November 2021; and Ms. Cui Xintong was
appointed as the chairperson of the Nomination Committee. As at 31
March 2022, the Nomination Committee comprises one Executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Cui Xintong (Chairperson of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Tsang
Hung Kei, Mr. Wang Xiaochu and Mr. Wang Xueguang. The Nomination
Committee’s duties as set out in its terms of reference include, inter
alia, formulating, reviewing and implementing nomination policy for
Directors, reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
receiving nominations from shareholders or Directors, assessing
the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors and
undertaking an annual performance evaluation of the Board. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee setting out its role and
responsibilities are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website. The Board adopts a nomination policy for Directors
to provide guidelines for effective functioning in the course of director’s
nomination process. The policy sets out, among others, the selection
procedures and evaluation criteria for selecting and recommending the
candidates for directorship. The Nomination Committee first assesses
the needs of the Board in respect of its structure, size and composition,
identifies potential candidates by considering, among others, their
personal ethics, integrity, skills, professional knowledge and experience
and time commitment and then develops a short list of potential
appointees for recommendation to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the financial year

ended 31 March 2022. The attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

BEEZE2(H)
REZES (A
HE-Z-_—F=-A=+—HLUWERFE

REEEGERITANEH - SREBZHE
KEFIAT

Number of meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HEGEREESERRE

Mr. ZHU Zuoan (Chairperson)’ KER T E (EE) 11

Ms. CUI Xintong (Chairperson)? BEFErt (£E)? 2/2

Mr. TSANG Hung Kei LA 2/2

Mr. WANG Xiaochu TR E 2/2

Mr. WANG Xueguang?® FEES 1/1
Note: 1) Resigned on 26 November 2021 Mzt : 1) RZZZ—F+—AZ+BEE

2) Appointed on 26 November 2021 2) RZBEZ—F+—AZ+BEZT

3) Appointed on 26 November 2021 3 RZZEZ—F+—AZ+BEZT

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year are
summarised as follows:

(@ nominated the incumbent Directors for re-election;

(b) reviewed the nomination policy for Directors;

(c) reviewed the Board Diversity Policy;

(d) reviewed the terms of reference in compliance with the prevailing
CG Code;

(e) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board; and

() assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board also adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) from 2013 which sets out its approach to diversity on the Board.
The Board recognises and embraces the benefits of board diversity to
enhance the quality of performance and endeavours to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. The
Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional qualification and
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will consider candidates on merit and contribution that
they will bring to the Board and then recommended the appropriate
person(s) to the Board for consideration. The Nomination Committee
will review, as appropriate, and monitor the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness.

Audit Committee

Mr. Zhu Zuoan resigned and ceased to be a member of the Audit
Committee and Mr. Wang Xueguang was appointed as a member of
the Audit Committee upon their respective resignation and appointment
as independent non-executive Director on 26 November 2021. As at
31 March 2022, the Audit Committee comprises all the independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Tsang Hung Kei (Chairperson of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Wang Xiaochu and Mr. Wang Xueguang. One
of the three Committee members possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and expertise. The Company was in
compliance with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee’s duties as set out in its terms of reference
include, inter alia, reviewing and monitoring the financial reporting,
overseeing and reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems and the Group’s financial
and accounting policies and practices with the management and the
external auditor and considering the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor and the external auditor’s remuneration
and terms of engagement. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee setting out its role and responsibilities are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the financial year ended

BIE) EEEE RIS BE R R ERY
BRE - SEEBRREANR R Z MR RS
B - EbeE T R A BRI I E R AN R B 2 B
BREFABERED - L EBINEZEE 2
R - BE MR EINSZBENF B KA T
R - RTAE 2R B @R M E 2 B g
B POBE 3X P AR Ko AR A R MR AT RSB o

BE-_T-_—_F=A=t+—BHIFBEE -
31 March 2022. The attendance of each member is set out as follows: BERZEGHBITMAGHR - SKEBZHE
EHEFAT -
Number of meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HE SEREEEERE
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei (Chairperson) ISEAE () 2/2
Mr. WANG Xiaochu FEERE 2/2
Mr. WANG Xueguang' FEHEE 0/0
Mr. ZHU Zuoan? RYER A2 2/2
Note: 1) Appointed on 26 November 2021 M : 1) RZZ-—F+—A=-+ - BEZT
2) Resigned on 26 November 2021 2) RZZEZ—F+—AZ+/HEMT

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the financial year
are summarised as follows:

(@) reviewed the annual results for year ended 31 March 2021 and the
interim results for six months ended 30 September 2021 and the
reports from external auditor, management representation letters
and management’s response in relation thereto;

(b) reviewed the respective reports on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions and internal control;

(c) reviewed the accounting policies and practices as well as the
financial reporting system and risk management and internal control

system of the Group;

(d) reviewed the terms of reference in compliance with prevailing CG
Code;

HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A

BEZZ BERNYTHFEAMETT 2 TR
LI

@ BHBE—_ZT-_—F=A=+—HItF
BEXFERERBE_T_—FNA

=tHIENERAZHEES - ARER
REEBZINEZBENRE BEER
AEREIREOE

b) BHARERERERZRAREZEZ
HERARE

(©) M AKREE T BER RAEHIA R B 758
I N R e TR N BB ER I

(d) BRERITHRE TR BAESE



BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

(e) reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group
pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules; and

(f) reviewed the effectiveness of financial reporting system and internal
control system of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following main corporate
governance functions as set out under the written responsibilities of the
Board:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s terms of reference, policies,
practices, codes and guidelines on corporate governance and to
make recommendations thereof;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report. During the reporting year, the
Board has reviewed and performed the said corporate governance
functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company’s external auditor,
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provided the following services to the Group: A) 2 HNIEAZ EREM A1 AN S B B A LA TS AR 7S -
RMB’000
ARETIT
Audit services E1ZRTE 822
Non-audit services IEEIZ RS 329
Total BET 1,151
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true and
fair view, and were prepared in accordance with the relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards in force, and were
published in a timely manner. The Directors of the Company are also
responsible for selecting appropriate accounting policies and applying
them consistently, ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The Directors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and report that the Company has announced its annual and
interim results in a timely manner after the end of the relevant period as
laid down in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of the auditor
under the heading “Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern”, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to event or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Directors wish to make the following statement with regard to the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern in the independent
auditor's report:

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB56,960,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2022 and as of that date, the Group had net
current liabilities of approximately RMB138,522,000.

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern and, therefore, the Group may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Given the above conditions, the Company's directors have prepared a
cash flow forecast covering a period up to June 2023 after taking into
account of the following arrangements:

() the Group is in negotiation with have financial institutions and
other lenders for the renewals of the Group's short-term bank and
other borrowings that expired or upon expiry and obtaining new
borrowings; and expected to be able to renew existing borrowings
and obtain new bank borrowings subsequent to the date of
reporting period;
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

(i) the Group is expected to generate adequate cash flows to maintain
its operations; and

(i) the Group is expected to obtain continuous financial support from
the Group's controlling shareholder, and the controlling shareholder
has confirmed that it will not demand the Group for repayment of
the loans from controlling shareholder within the next twelve months
should the Group not be in the financial position to make such
repayment.

Based on the above, the directors are of the opinion that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due within the twelve months from 31 March 2022.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements and annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2022; and are of the opinion that the use
of going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 89 to 95 to this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate system
of risk management and internal control and reviewing its effectiveness.
The system is designed to facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, safeguard assets against unauthorised use and disposition,
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and management,
rather than elimination of risks associated with its business activities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (continued)

During the year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted
an annual review on the effectiveness of both the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group during the year, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, with a view to ensuring
that resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programme
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee
will communicate any material issues to the Board.

During the year, the Group had performed internal control review
and assessed effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems. The results of the review and assessment
were reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures to
enhance the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board.
Based on the findings and recommendations as well as the comments
of the Audit Committee, the Board considered that the internal control
and risk management systems of the Group are effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Man Kit Micky, the Company Secretary of the Company, is a full-
time employee of the Company and has confirmed that, in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, he took no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the reporting year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(a) Procedures for convening special general meetings
and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, subject to the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), shareholders of the Company holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all time have
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from
the said date.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A

B B R R EPEE IR IR (4R)

RAEE  EFEERBERZEEHAFE
AEERBREREMABERERGORLE
MERBUETTEE R - BMEMT - KERE
MERERENEAEE - UERAKEN
it AMER LM B REBEREEEEN
B BTEER&R - B3R A REE -
BERZESRMREESBRINEAS
o

RAFE - REBEC R AEREE - FHEAR
SERREERAFEE RGN - ]
LHOEREAEZEZEGRESSE
e tbdN - REFARKENREREERA
EERG  REAKENRAR  ZREES
SR - REPSERIEBANELEZE
SHER  EFEARAKENAMEER
REBREERGBERSEE

DNEME

ARBZ RRMELXREERETRRZR
B8 YOERERFARSETLHAR
FI20FER N D16/ Z HEE XS

Al e

IR RER

QERBRREIAEREZERLZ
B
RIBABMAA - mRARE-NN\—F
RANE(RIERT)  HFARNEZ2ERA
HRE T ORARRE FTRARRRR
REREZEMNZRBEA D —2 AR
AR - RERIR IR B RAEEGHA
RAZMEZHE@ME R EREES
ARBRFRIARE - LEEBMEKRE
RHEMREIE  MRAERRNERZZ
BRERMEARNET  MEXR_—+—H
N EFSREARZAS  AE2E
Kz At (G2 RERALTRREEE
B—FAEZERERAL)ATETAR
RE - EMARZEAAETFR Lt
B HERT =8 A Emig ST -



SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

(a) Procedures for convening special general meetings
and putting forward proposals (continued)

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a
general meeting in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), while the procedures for a shareholder
to propose a person other than a retiring director of the Company
for election as a Director at a general meeting are available on the
Company’s website.

(b) Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board,
together with their contact information, by post to the principal
place of business of the Company or by fax for the attention of the
company secretary of the Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an effective
communication with the shareholders and investors of the Company. A
shareholders’ communication policy adopted by the Board is to ensure
the promotion of effective communication. The principal communication
channels with shareholders and investors are established as set out
below.

General Meetings

Shareholders’ meeting, including AGM or other general meeting, of the
Company provides a communication channel between the Shareholders
and the Board that the Shareholders are encouraged to participate in
such meeting for expressing their views and raising enquiries about the
Company’s performance while the Board members who attended such
general meeting shall reply and answer the enquiries and questions
raised by the Shareholders.

Any vote of shareholders at a general meeting is taken by poll except
where the chairperson, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands. The poll results are published on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website after the conclusion of
the general meeting.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (continued)

Other Communication Channels

The Company will provide corporate communications, including annual
and interim reports, notices of meeting and circulars, to shareholders
in printed form by post and on the website of the Company to facilitate
the shareholders’ understanding.

The Company also maintains a website at www.huayininternational.com,
as alternative communication channel for the shareholders of the
Company and investors, for posting the corporate communications,
disseminating information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other shareholders information as well as
other corporate communications in a timely and convenient manner.

For enquiries about shareholdings, the shareholders of the Company
may contact the share registrars of the Company and for other
enquiries, the shareholders, the investors, media or the public may
contact the Company directly, contact details of which are posted on
the Company’s website.

The memorandum of association and the updated Bye-Laws of the
Company are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
website of the Company.

By order of the Board
Cui Xintong
Co-chairperson

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERERBRS

1. ABOUT THE COMPANY

Hua Yin International Holdings Limited (“Hua Yin”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) (Stock Code: 989), is a property
development company established in Hong Kong and has been
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 1997. The Group also invested
in property development, management and investment to customers
in different sectors in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

2. REPORTING APPROACH
2.1 Reporting Period and Boundary

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
(the “Report”) covers the financial reporting period from 1 April
2021 to 31 March 2022 (the “Reporting Period”). The Group’s
operation in its Hong Kong Office, two investment properties,
three properties under development and five completed
properties held for sale in Jilin are also included in the scope of
the Report.

2.2 Reporting Standard and Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
— Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the “ESG Guide”) issued by the Stock Exchange. During
the Reporting Period, the Group adheres to the principles of
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency in reporting
on measures and performances. A content index has been
enclosed at the end of the Reports for readers to browse the
specific ESG topics. With reference to the Appendix 14 of the
Main Board Listing Rules, the section of corporate governance in
the annual report shows more detailed information on corporate
governance.
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Materiality The Board identified materiality environmental and social issues. The
EEMH relevant content was prioritised and revealed in this Report.
EEEHA TERRENL GRS - BRNANDTERERAREPRESL
W -
Quantitative The Group recorded and disclosed key performance indicators in

21t quantitative terms as appropriate.

AEBEEENER TAR A8 M T BRERIER -

Consistency As far as practicable and unless stated otherwise, the Group adopted

—EE consistent measurement methodology to compare ESG data gradually.
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BEIRE - (' REBEERETHER -
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3. OUR SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE APPROACH 3. IV AT @& R 7 &

3.1 Board Statement on ESG Governance M EEZHENRERE HERER

The Board believes that the most important criterion for the
successful development of companies in the long term is
sustainable development. The Group is committed to integrating
environmental, social and governance considerations into the
business operations and promises to ameliorate sustainability
performance by optimizing the use of resources during
the operation. Since the Board is the highest governance
committee, it manages the overall direction and decision making
related to ESG governance and allocated top management to
coordinate the implementation of ESG initiatives and reporting.
With reference to the result of stakeholder engagement and
materiality assessment, the Board review and discuss the ESG
performance, progress, opportunities and risks on a regular
basis.

3.2 Governance Structure for Sustainable Development

The board of directors (the “Board”) has to oversee the Group’s
ESG governance and comply with the Stock Exchange Listing
Rules. The Board’s committee called the Environmental, Social
and Governance Committee (the “ESG Committee”) has been
established with its constitution and duties. The chairman,
the secretary and the members of the ESG Committee shall
be designated by the Board. The responsibilities of the ESG
Committee are as follows:
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3. OUR SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE 3. R AIFERE & (&)
APPROACH (continued)

3.2 Governance Structure for Sustainable Development N ARERRAELE (E)
(continued)

ESG Committee — ldentify issues that greatly affect the operation of the Group or the interests of
ESGZEE other stakeholders in ESG aspects
BREAE B S MR EEESG T EMNHE EAFEMNHBEEE
— Adopt and update policies of the Group on production safety, environmental
protection, social responsibility management and corporate governance as

necessary
BEFERMNEFAEEERLZE2EE  RERE HSEFEENEEE
JRHIERER

— Review and adopt risks assessment as regards of the impact on health, safety,
environmental and society of the Group
FEEWRABBAAEERRER 2  REME gL L0 R

— Monitor ESG activities of the Group
BRI BRI ESGIEE)

— Review annual report of the Group or special reports (if any) on ESG
FERAEENESGHFEREH TR HmE (10FH)

— Report findings and recommendations of the ESG Committee to the Board
regularly
EHNEEEREESCEZEGNRAEERNESR

— Continue application of the articles of association of Hua Yin
BERAAEEER
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3. OUR SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE 3. RPN A HFERES & (&)

APPROACH (continued)

33Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality
Assessment

Since the opinions of the stakeholders are important to the
Group’s business operations, the Group collects their opinions
and comments through emails and meetings to maintain
effective communication with stakeholders. With regard to the
stakeholders’ concerns, the Board identified and confirmed the
following material issues, both environmental and social, that are

33 FHHESENMEEZME

HRMEEEEN B RAARRENE
BEBHEER  AREBEETE
A& % W SR A ER A FIRO B R ANRT
i WRFENSHBEENBARE
B ARNERRENRT  EFe
AR HER T A T EAREEE RS

related to the commercial activities of the Group:

MHRARMEARRE ML S E -

e Energy saving e Labour standards
EKIBER w1 TR

e Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emission control e Training and development
R = RS HE R PRI B

e Water conservation e Occupational health and safety
EKI 7K BEERNLE

e Waste management e Employees’ wellbeing
BEEYER B ITfERR

e Supply chain management

HrERE e

e Quality assurance

BERE

e Anti-corruption
RES

e Community investment

HEIE

e (Customers’ privacy and data protection

EFPLEBMBIERE
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4. PRESERVING OUR ENVIRONMENT

4.1 Climate Change

Climate change is a common issue to all sectors and
geographical, Hua Yin, a property developer views climate issue
as a key concern in the short and medium term. Climate risks
can be classified into physical and transition risks.

Physical climate risks

Physical climate risk is caused by more frequent and intense
extreme weather and sea level rise. Our properties development
are easily affected by extreme weather (e.g. more frequent
and intense typhoons) and changes in climate patterns
(e.g. higher humidity). Therefore, we shall be exploring and
adopting methods to further decrease the vulnerability of
the developments to severe weather conditions. Meanwhile,
potential market opportunity in upgrading and developing more
sustainable and climate resilient properties developments.

Transition climate risks

As a consequence of climate change action, the evolution of the
regulatory, technological and market landscape creates transition
climate risks. Concerning the operations of Hua Yin, there may
be strict regulatory enforcement in respect of the GHG emission
and resource consumption from properties developments. To
decrease the carbon footprint of our properties development,
the design of more sustainable and resource efficient properties
development may be a solution to the risk, as demonstrated
by the increasing demand for green building certifications in
properties development.
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4. PRESERVING OUR ENVIRONMENT (continued) 4. RERXFIHIRE (&)
42 BIRBUR

4.2 Environmental Policy

The Group has developed and set up environmental policies
for the sake of achieving sustainability goals and fulfilling the
expectations from the stakeholders. While boosting economic
growth and social welfare, the Group agrees to protect the
environment and incorporate the sustainability concept into its
business operations.

Within the Reporting Period, the Group complied with all relevant
environmental laws and regulations, including the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance in Hong Kong and the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC.

Our Environmental Targets

The Group aspires to operate in a sustainable fashion to
safeguard the environment, while boosting economic growth and
social welfare. In view of this, the Group had set the following
environmental target to help achieve the above visions:
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4. PRESERVING OUR ENVIRONMENT (continued) 4. fRERMHVIRIE (&)

4.2 Environmental Policy (continued) 4.2 RIRBUR (1)

The Group is aiming to continue maintain its energy use, and if possible, reduce
energy use in the long term. The implementation of the target will also enable Hua Yin
to further reduce its GHG emission from its operation.
FEENBRREBHFHHERER - YEARENBERLTRERDERER - BIR
MWERLEESTE - PRDHEEPRRERBHIN

The Group aim to achieve the above goals for energy efficiency and GHG emission
reduction by the following measures:

AEBEEEBUTERER DRI EMEZERERIER

— Continue maintain air conditioning temperature to maintain efficient energy use;

BBERFZFHREARFESBEEREA

— Continue energy management across assets, and prevent unnecessary energy
usage.
BETETYREETRRER  WHIETKREMRERER -

The Group is aiming to continue maintain its water consumption efficiency, and if
possible, increase water efficiency in the long term.

AEENBRETRERTEAKKE - WERTENIER T RIS AKSEE -

The Group aim to achieve the above goals for water efficiency by the following
measures:

AEEE RSB THEBER DRRKEEER

Continue upgrade of water fixtures at the Group’s properties, to water-saving
equipment such as dual flush toilets, sensor faucets and other water-saving devices.
BEFBEBETYERAKES - ARATKEME - PIANERKER - RREKEEE
MEAEIKEE ©

The Group is aiming to continue maintain its waste generation, and if possible,
reduce waste generation in the long term.

AEENERSEBEREEELE  YEARENBERATRERVENELE -

The Group aim to achieve the above goals for waste generation by the following
measures:

AEEEERBATHEEER Ll EYEEERZR

— Continue implementing the concept of green office into practice at the office, by
encouraging;
BRECRATEBEGERNES 5B

— Provision of recycling facilities in the properties and offices to encourage waste
sorting.

EMEMPRERHEEWRNE - ASBED S HE -
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4. PRESERVING OUR ENVIRONMENT (continued) 4. fRERMHIRIE (&)

4.3 Management of Energy Conservation and GHG 43 FRER B ERBHNERE

Emission

The Group endeavors to lower the major GHG emissions
such as increasing the energy efficiency in daily operations. As
electricity use contributes most to the Group’s GHG emission,
the Group has implemented a set of electricity consumption
management policies. For example, employees and tenants are
encouraged to turn off all unnecessary lighting, air conditioning,
computers and other electronic appliances. The administration
department conducts inspections and equipment maintenance

regularly to monitor energy efficiency and secure the safety of
the appliances. The indoor air conditioning temperature is also
kept at 25 °C or above for energy saving.

AEERNBBRSHELENRLR
MEFFADETER=REHFM - A
RENEREANEE R = REDIRD
RAKIR - Eit - ARED REFIE
—RIINE I HRETRER - fim -
REE SR8 T REFEEFMA T
ZHRE - = BEREERBRETR
o TTHEFT g EHETREREM
HE - NERBERBER L HERRIELR
2o I EREFRERFFE2S
ESA L - ABEREIR

Unit 2022 2021
B
Total Energy Consumption kWh in 000 8,298 8,663
BT B '000 T L
Total Energy Consumption Intensity kWh in '000/RMB’M revenue 80.61 56.50
BELTRERERE '000 F R, BEEARBIKA L)
(&E1)

Note 1: Increase in total energy consumption intensity due to change in assets ownership during the reporting year.
H1 ARHREHRNASEREEENEAEIELEE) - SERELRBFEESIEM -

Unit 2022 2021
By

Total GHG Emissions tonnes of CO2 equivalent ("tCO2_") 5,293.70 9,595.77

B ERBN M-StHEE Noto 1)
(&1)

Total GHG Emissions Intensity tCO2 /RMB’M revenue 51.42 62.58

ERERBIIGRE M_StiEE FEEARBEA

Note 1: Decrease in total GHG emission due to update in emission factor in the reporting year.
1 ARHREFEHREFNER  REREBIRESRD -
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4. PRESERVING OUR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

4.4 Conserving Water Resources

Water scarcity is one of the prominent global issues. Hua Yin is
making efforts to reduce water consumption in daily operation.
The majority of the Group’s water consumption comes from
the employees’ daily water use. Although the group does not
experience any serious problems on water sourcing where the
supply comes from the municipal water supplier, the Group
strives to increase water efficiency via the installation of water-
saving equipment such as dual flush toilets, sensor faucets and
other water-saving devices. The Group aims to maintain and
improve its water use performance across all its assets in the
future.

Unit

B
Total Water Consumption m?
BAKE S TR

Total Water Consumption Intensity

BRAKERE

m%/RMB’M revenue

MFK/GEEARKKRA

4. REXFIRRE ()
44 EIKIKEIR

KERERRRENDIKERBEZ
— o EZFAEZNRLBELEERH
FAKE - AEBMABHAKKEET
HERK - @EEREEHHKER
B EHKEIER T8 B BE M
ENHKEE - BEAEEDE HEB
LHREKREINE K ER - K
BE 98 AN H b 817K 3% 45 2R AR = A 7K &K
& o REBT AR B IR RN
EHMBEEMRKYE °

2022 2021
(Note 1) (&£1)
127,001 86,279

1233.69 562.66

(Note 2)
(iE2)

Note 1: Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the data collection was affected so the water data from the properties in Jilin was

incomplete.

i1 HRFRERRSEERER  BBRREZIZE Bt SR ENRKBENTE -
Note 2: Increase in total water consumption intensity due to change in assets ownership during the reporting year.
T2 ARMERNASERELEENHERREIELEE) - SRRFKREESIEM -

4.5 Waste Management

The waste of the Group is mostly generated from the daily
operation of tenants, customers, the residents’ domestic waste
and properties’ construction waste. Through incorporating
various waste management measures into corporate operation,
the Group can minimize waste generation. To reduce paper
consumption and increase the staff members’ environmental
awareness, the Group has embedded the concept of green
office into practice at the office. Also, it puts different recycling
facilities in the properties and offices to encourage waste sorting.
Moreover, the non-recyclable waste is collected and handled by
the licensed waste treatment companies. The Group ultimately
target to maintain and improve on its waste performance across
all its assets in the future

45 BERYER

AEENRERYIERBERS - P
MBEFEE  EPMEERIRARY
KRR - AREEBK TR
BEEMEEREBMAAEEZE - 1K
BERVBERYNEL - RRDAKR
ENMEREBTIRRES - NEERZ
ERAENESMARIET - KRE
B TE BEME MR AENE B RER
i REBERYNE - R - AEE
RIRISIERER Y BRI N AR K iR 7
FERY - RENKKRBFERERR
MBMREEMBEENERYR

Ny
S o
I
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4. PRESERVING OUR ENVIRONMENT (continued) 4. fRERMHIRIE (&)

4.5 Waste Management (continued) 45 BEEYEE (8)

Unit 2022 2021
E=Xv2
Total Non-Hazardous Waste tonnes 0.02 0.35
BImEEEEY) 17}
Total Non-Hazardous Waste Intensity tonnes/RMB’M revenue 0.0002 0.002
BIEEEZEYRE W HEBEARBKRA

Note 1: Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the data collection was affected so the waste data from the properties in Jilin was
incomplete. In the previous Reporting Period, non-hazardous waste included office waste generated in Hong Kong
office and Jilin office. During the Reporting Period, non-hazardous waste only included office waste generated in
Hong Kong office.

1 HRFAERESEERER  BEEEZIZE RREIESSHIMYENERDERE - E2ANREHS
BEEEVBREEENAENEMRAZEENRAERY - REHA  EEEEVELEESRAEELENH

NEEEY) -
5. OUR SUCCESSFUL WORKFORCE 5. F 1M A AL Zh B X
5.1 Growth of the Workforce 5.1 BMERER

The Group considers its workforce to be the key to its RERER BAIMEGR AR
commercial success. As a result, the Group is eager to hire B2 o AL - Z’»‘%%Eft‘ﬂ%ﬁ/ﬁ\ﬁ%/\
qualified individuals to advance its sustainable business growth. TS HAFEREGER -
To allow the continuous growth and development of our RERTEERTHZRES - B
employees, in addition to hiring suitable candidates, the Ra@AEIN ZK%E%%&:@E%%
Group has developed policies on promotion, working hours, Tt ITIER - #rB - /H\@ﬁﬂ&ﬁ
remuneration, other benefits and well-being. Based on the FEHERR - AEERBKERERE
“Performance Assessment Management Guidelines," the Group BIES)) - BFHBT BT M
reviews staff’s promotion and remuneration adjustment on an HEAETTE o IS - BTEAIAR
annual basis. Besides, employees can also be benefitted from TARMERER - HEBRE - BE
the company’s meal allowance, social insurance, medical care, 1%@ﬂﬁﬁ5%_i% o SEEBUREIES
and festival presents. Any action of involuntary overtime work is FERREINIEITA ©

forbidden under the Group’s policy.

The group prohibits all forms of discrimination and conducts AEEZ F—RANES - WET
a fair employment policy. Each candidate benefits from equal RNFRBLEBR - BEKREABI S
opportunities throughout the recruitment process. Candidates REEREBETHTERE - B2
are objectively evaluated on the basis of their skills, experience ABRIBEREE - KBANEIETE
and potential, regardless of gender, age, religion, nationality and BEE TR - FE% - =
ethnicity. Furthermore, the Group strictly prohibits child labour FEMTERR - I - REBEBREERE
and forced labour. The Human Resources (“HR”) department, THNsg:a 8 o AHEIR(HR]) &
which is responsible for selecting candidates by carefully F - BEBREFAREREANS D
verifying their identity and age. The Group has complied with the FEFRIBEZREA - WEHA - K
PRC labour law and other relevant labour laws and regulations SEEST T PESENE R E MRS
during the reporting period. B AREM o
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5. OUR SUCCESSFUL WORKFORCE (continued)

5.2 Protecting our Employees

The Group’s business operations place a high priority on
occupational health and safety. The Group is dedicated to
providing a healthy and safe working environment for its workers.

The Group has developed and implemented a thorough safety
management strategy in order to reduce potential workplace
hazards. As part of the tendering procedures, the project
management department and procurement department are
appointed to assess the contractors’ safety measures, such as
occupational accident insurance and number of safety officer
involved. Besides, the project management department is
responsible for conducting daily on-site inspection and regular
safety management meeting to ensure the compliance with the
applicable laws, regulations and standards in the workplace.

The Group complied with all relevant health and safety laws and
regulations and did not record any, and did not record any work-
related fatalities during the Reporting Period.

5.3 Nurturing our Employees

Hua Yin supports the professional growth and development
of its employees. The Group is committed to offering a variety
of training and development programs that fit the roles of its
employees. This includes orientation training for new hires
which introduces the Group’s policies, culture, organization
and standard procedures. For the property management team,
the Group offers specialized training in customer service, data
protection and security. In addition, the Group also provides
professional training on legislation and regulations, risk
management and internal control issues to our employees.

In addition, the Human Resources function is responsible for the
formulation and implementation of customized training courses
based on business development and work needs. The human
resources department evaluates the effectiveness of training
through training assessments upon completion of training
programs. The Human Resources department then reviews the
training plans and makes the necessary changes to maximize
the benefits of the training activities for employees.

5. TR AT ERx (&)
5.2 fRIE 3K M9 Y @ Bx

AEENEFLESEERRERE
Bk AKERNRHEE THRHERE
R T2 TR

AEEEHELERBENLE2ER
RES - URDBENTIESARE °
ERBRRERFN—#o - BHEEEA
FIANERES BRPI 4R (E ap 2R AT (LA B A HY
REHE - PIIBE B IMRERAMS &
MEZE2BAH - L5 THEEEHE
RETHRRERENER L2 EE
T MERIESMETERNE
2 RBRATEE -

REER - AEBEESTHA R
ML 2EEEMR - RBRCE - B]
Ao R TEERE ML T F 1 -

53 IZERMAVE R

EEXRFETHEXREMER - K
SEZNNEREAHEETAENE
BIEIIMERAE - EREHENE
THABEI - NMERENEE - X
b~ EEMRERF - HRYEER
BB ARBERETPRY - Bk
EMRZ 2T ENEEE - 1o K
SETARMNE TREBERE
B BAREEMABEZEENEER

FER o

SN - ANBREFIABERBEELE
RMTIERE - HIEMEE S
EIRRIE - AN EBEREFIEEIIER
TERR IR B BRI FHA REH A IR R A
M o K& - ANERBPIBSE
AEETVENES - UKARE
WiEs B TSR
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6. RFMNEERE
6.1 LIRS EE

6. OUR QUALITY SERVICES

6.1 Supply Chain Management

The quality of Hua Yin’s suppliers and contractors is crucial to
the success of the company. As a result, the Group selects
suppliers and contractors by adopting a comprehensive
approach to procurement and bid management. The Group
evaluates potential business partners based on their safety
precautions, such as accidental injury insurance, machinery
safety, and safety certificate, and also based on their
environmental performances, such as the preference of using
sustainable construction materials and implementation of
environmental management plans, in order to select the partner
that is on board with Hua Yin’s sustainable values.

The Group has also put in place monitoring procedures to
ensure the suppliers and contractors comply with the social
and environmental Laws and regulations. In order to reduce
operational risks, the Group also frequently evaluates the
performance of the contractors.

6.2 Assuring our Best Quality

Being “customer-focused" is one of the Group’s core values. To
ensure that service quality meets client expectations, the Group
has built a quality assurance framework to choose reputable
suppliers and contractors.

The key to build customers’ trust and loyalty to the company is
the security of their data. Hua Yin’s employees are required to
obtain customers’ consent before the collection of any personal
information. To prevent data leakage, the group regularly reviews
the security of information systems. In addition, the Code of
Conduct also clearly states that access to personal customer
data is restricted to authorized personnel only. The Group has
complied with all applicable data protection laws and regulations
during the reporting period.

e HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A
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M 2FE) AR FINRERR (P
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6.2 RRRMNWEERL

[LNEFPA] EAKENZLEEER
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6. OUR QUALITY SERVICES (continued)
6.3 Responsible Operation

Hua Yin has implemented a comprehensive anti-corruption
policy and focuses on ethical business practices to demonstrate
integrity. Any misconduct related to bribery and corruption is
unacceptable. The Group prohibits employees from soliciting
or offering benefits from/to third parties without management
approval. To eliminate corruption, the Group encourages
employees to report suspicious activities anonymously by
establishing a whistleblowing. The Group would take immediate
disciplinary and legal action in the event of confirmed corruption
cases.

The Group continues to provide employees with anti-corruption
training on a regular basis to enhance their anti-corruption and
integrity awareness. During the Year, the Group continued to
provide anticorruption training to employees at all levels (including
members of the Board).

The Group complied with laws and regulations relating to
corruption, extortion, fraud and money laundering and no
relevant litigation was identified during the period. No corruption
charges were filed against the Group or its employees during the
year.

7. GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

Being a property developer, the community is important for the
business development of Hua Yin. The Group maintains a friendly
relationship with the community and creates a positive atmosphere
by inspiring its employees to contribute to society and care for
others. Therefore, the Labour Union of the Group arranges various
community activities and volunteer services on occasions. The
Group will also keep making valuable contributions to society and
commit to social responsibilities.

6. RN EBR (F)
63 BEFMNEZ N

EFEERTEENRESHE - Wi
EERBRITRARTRHE © EHE
BEMESBRN T ETTREZNA
B - AEEZEIEERREERE
B SE =7 RES RS - BH
BRES  AEEZEE TREBEVE
HHBIERRRAISIED - WHRL
EENESRN - AREH AR
RERNERTH -

REBEBTHAETIRHIRESE
R ARFTETHRESHRER
B FAN AEBEBEAZTHRET
(BREFEKE)RERESHEI -

AEBEBTERES  AGFER - K
FEAERERARER - IARER
MERARRAA - FANEE A KB EE
BiRHESHEE -

7. BfEHE

ERNEERRD  BELREEZES
BRAARDOEZAKE D - REIE
CFEEERELTRERBZIBE %
ExBETIRtEFH AR BEM
A At REB TSI EHEST R
RENFEFRARTS o A5 B4 A8 0 eR At
g BITABHSRENAGE -
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8. LOOKING FORWARD

Despite the continuation pandemic, the Group puts priority in its
ESG performances improvement as to commit to the vision of
“Create a better life and bring dreams to duration”. Hua Yin stride to
continue its commitment to sustainable development by increasing
the involvement of stakeholders. Also, the Group ensures to give
high quality services to its customers consistently and share the
sustainability’s ideas in daily operations.

9. SOCIAL PERFORMANCES INDICATOR

8. REARRK

HERE I R RIERE - NEBEDRIR
FRE - HEREARANERNL - A
HAOBR[AIEXHFLERE - F2EKE
MBS EZREARSKHENZ A
B BEBONAFHERR - M K
SERRBEU—INATFREEE R
B YERFBELTHZARHEERN

9. HERRER

Total Workforce Persons 235
HER A
By Gender Male Persons 136
RILRIEI D e A
Female Persons 99
z A
By Employment Type Management Persons 19
RIERELE S EERE A
Senior Persons 29
FE A
Junior Persons 187
HRET A
By Age Group 30 or below Persons 26
RFEBERED B0BRAT A
31-50 Persons 176
3175%-50 5% A
51 or above Persons &3
515k A £ A
By Geographical Region Hong Kong Persons 5
i [E A & 5 BB A
China Persons 230
H A
By contract Permanent Persons 235
ZREESHED £ A
Part-time Persons 0
Rk A
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9. SOCIAL PERFORMANCES INDICATOR (continued) 9. #+ & XRR1E&E (&)

Employee Turnover Rate ®ete % 30.93
SR B MRt R G
By Gender Male % 28.16
1% RIE S s
Female % 34.87
Z
By Age Group 30 or below % 52.83
RF R AR D 303K AT
31-50 % 30.81
315%-60 5%
51 or above % 12.9
51 pRa A =
By Geographical Region Hong Kong % 54.55
iR EERE 5 BB
China % 30.37
H
Note 1: Turnover is defined as employees who leave the company voluntarily 1 BERREIE B FEBER S ARIK - BRESK
or due to retirement, dismissal or other reasons. The turnover rate HibREBAARMNET - B ER
is calculated based on the following formula: Turnover % = NELDY/ BUATARFE
(NEBY+NEEY)/2) BEBLR = NELDY/(NEBY+NEEY)/2)
Where: NELDY = & F BN E T AZ
NELDY = Number of Employees who Left During the Year NEBY = F#18 T A%k
NEBY = Number of Employees at the Beginning of the Year NEEY = FRE T AZL

NEEY = Number of Employees at the End of the Year

Health and Safety

BENZZE

Total number of work-related fatalities Nete No. of people 0
BT ERBRE T A8 AEL

Work-relategll Injury Cases 0
TR G AR e

Lost Days Due to Work-related Injury Days 40
EITGHEENBEH H

Note 1: The work-related fatalities from the previous 2 years are at 0
1 BERFEIRBENETCAZERT
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9. SOCIAL PERFORMANCES INDICATOR (continued) 9. #+ & XRRE&E (&)

Employee Training

B T3
Percentage of Employee Trained " % 3.85
ZiEEIIRE TR S
Average training hours of employees "2 Hours 0.29
B T T3 RRg =2 1IN
By Gender Group M3
RIERIE S
Male % 77.78
==
>
Hours 0.37
N
Female % 22.22
z
Hours 017
N
By Employment Type
RERERE D
Management Hours 1.78
EIRE N
Senior Hours 1.21
FE aNs
Junior Hours 0
Note 1: Percentage of employees trained = number of employees trained/total number of employees x 100%.
ER ZHEIESE = XFHIETAZ BIHEEH x 100% °
Notes 2:  Average training hours of employees = the training hours of employees of the category/total number of employees
of the category.
52 8 T FI9t50Ie2 = %8RI8 TIFFIR8 AR B TR -
Note 3: The proportion of the category among trained employees = number of employees trained of the category/number
of employees trained x 100%.
73 I8 THERIEL = ZERIZANE T ASZIBIAZK x100%
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10.ESG CONTENT INDEX

A1: EMISSIONS #Em#)

General disclosure | Information on: 4. Preserving our

—RE (a) the policies; and Environment
(b) compliance with relevant laws and 4. REZMIEIRR

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BHERIRERBEN - MKRL
HEPES « BEREEEEMMES
=)
(@) BE &
(b) BTFHEHBEITAGERZENAMERE
K Fi 0 o

A1 The types of emissions and respective 4.3 Management of Energy
emissions data. Conservation and GHG
HERU e SR AR R R B Emission

SEfREIR E RS HEE IR

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope | 4.3 Management of Energy
2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) Conservation and GHG
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per Emission
unit of production volume, per facility). SEEAE EREHWNER
B (BE)RERAEE (BE)RERE

Al e 8 (DAMEETH) & (A0 A ) B E (1A
SEBEM - HERGHYE) -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) | The Group did not generate
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per hazardous waste during the
unit of production volume, per facility). Reporting Period. Therefore,
FrEABEREEYEE (JESTE) & (0 | data on generation of
L)Eﬁ VR (GNA G ES BN « BT hazardous waste was not

&) o disclosed in the Report.
WEA - AREERELRE
REEY) - Bt - METRE
BEREREYEERNEUE -

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in 4.5 Waste Management
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity A5 EEEYER
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FTEAREREEYES (UBEETE) & (1A
BA)EE (WABESEN - BRI
#)o

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate 4.3 Management of Energy
emissions and results achieved. Conservation and GHG
AR MR E B R R AERELLR Emission

SPTEREREY B - BETREANR E REBHRE R
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RIR - #HEK

F‘—-"\‘Ai&%:

B/a¥

A1: EMISSIONS #:341

Al

A1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
HEEEERBEEEYN A - ki
PRI BVRE B IR R RERE L BIRFT
ERERHY B o

4.5 Waste Management

ALEREYER

A2: USE OF RESOURCES &R £ f

General disclosure

Policies
BRERER (BIEER - KREMEREM

4. Preserving our
Environment

A2

—RBEE =:0)e 4. RERFINIRE
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption | 4.3 Management of Energy
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total Conservation and GHG
(kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of Emission
production volume, per facility). 4 3EREFR EREEHEME R
RS DM EE R/ REEER (WS
ROh) BFEE (LN TETFREFE) RE
B (WABESREN - BHERHBE) °
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 4.4 Conserving Water
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per Resources
facility). 4.4 BiEIKE IR
BFKERTRE (WMUESESEN - §ER
HeEt®E) -
A2.3 Description of energy efficiency initiatives 4.3 Management of Energy
and results achieved. Conservation and GHG
PR SV RE IR FA e B AR R ARE S Emission
B B IRPTERER A AP RE o 4.3 ENEE AR = R ESHEE I8
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in | 4.4 Conserving Water
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Resources
efficiency initiatives and results achieved. 4.4 Ei%IKE R
HAREGER AR R BRI ERE - AR
FRETSI AR e B IR R AER L B R
FREREXE) P88
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished The Group did not use

products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

S mATABREMENRE CANEETE) &
(EA) BEEBMEE -

packaging material during the
Reporting Period. Therefore,
data on consumption of
packaging materials was not
disclosed in the Report.
WESAN - AEEREAE
R o B - RIRERE
BEEMHEHERUE -

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 & BB 4% R A R A 7]




A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES RER XA ER

General disclosure

— B

Policies
BEEITAHRBRRAABREXNEAF
BHIBOR

4. Preserving our
Environment

4. REHPINRE

A3.1
A3

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

R EBEBEIRIBERRANERNEAF
EROERNEEEELENTE -

4. Preserving our
Environment

4. RERFPINERE

A4: CLIMATE CHANGE R {Z#1t

General disclosure

—fRIEE

Policies
HAIREH DRI EEHEITAELEY
ENEARBEEBEENBR

4.1 Climate Change
4.1 FUREAL

A4 .1
A4

Description of the significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.

R ER RIS HBITAELETENE
ARIEEEEE - REHITE -

4.1 Climate Change
4.1 |IREE

B1: EMPLOYMENT{ER &% T E R

General disclosure

—fRINEE

B1

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance.

BRAH N e - FBIEREA - TR

B REA - TERE - St RN

R B At 538 R AR A A -

(@) BX: &

(o) BTHEETAGERZENHBERE
RARBIEER} o

5. Our Successful
Workforce

5. RAFIRIRCTH E X

B1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region.
RIER - EBERE (WE2BRE) - Fi
BRI KRS D HES A -

9. Social Performances
Indicator

9. HERRIER

B1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.

IR - FEMARI RItE SIS A EB K
PLEK o

9. Social Performances
Indicator
9. HERIEFIEZ
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B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY f2EE %L %

B2

General disclosure

—MRIKE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance.

BRAREZ 2 TIERE LREE SRR

EtfEE -

@ BER: &

(o) BFHEITABERTZENERERE
KR DI E S -

5.2 Protecting our Employees
5.2 {REE I 80 B Rx

implemented and monitored.
PR R R 26 - AR
HERITRERTE -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities 5.2 Protecting our Employees
BE-F(BRERFE)SFFAITHA | 5.2RERMOEE
AB &

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 5.2 Protecting our Employees
ATEEAXIIEEE - 5.2 (RIS FH 80 E Bk

B2.3 Description of occupational health and 5.2 Protecting our Employees
safety measures adopted, how they are 5.2 {REEF P &9 B Bx

B3: DEVELOPME

NT AND TRAINING 3 & & 13|

B3

General disclosure

—RIE

Policies
BERRAEB BT TIERE NS & EE
RIEER o HeasEsIES)

5.3 Nurturing our Employees
5.3 BB HMVEK

per employee by gender and employee
category.

LRI REERERE D - R ES TS
Bl RS Elss

g

b

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by 9. Social Performances
gender and employee category (e.g. senior Indicator
management, middle management). 9. HERIFIBE
ZHRIREEER (IR EEE  BRE
BE)ESNXIIEERDL

B3.2 The average training hours completed The Group currently does

not report the training
information.

However, the Group plans
to disclose the information in
the future.

RNEE B A R EEIE
#h o

AT - AEEBIR AL
BARMEK -
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B4: LABOUR STA

NDARDS % T %8|

General disclosure

— B

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance.

BRAIEE T ekoaHI% T ¢

@ BER: &

(b) BTHETABERTZENWE#ERE
RRBIEER} o

5. Our Successful
Workforce

5. HAIHIAIHE R

suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.
GBI RHERNESN - mERTAE
FAE MR SR - A RAEEHIT R E
BITE e

B4 B4 Description of measures to review 5.1 Growth of the Workforce
employment practices to avoid child and 5.1 HMEKEER
forced labour.
R BB B M AR R E T 258
HBT -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate 5.1 Growth of the Workforce
such practices when discovered. 5.1 HMExAE &
H A 7E 3 3R 8 RGN B IR B 1B LR ER
ERE) AP o
B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT i g & 1%
General disclosure | Policies 6.1 Supply Chain
— MR ER EIRHIE ARG Rt @R RIBUE Management
6.1 e E R
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical The Group currently does
region. not report the training
i B D HHEREE - information.
However, the Group plans
to disclose the information in
the future.
REE B A B EIE
B5 §
¥} o
oA - ARG EIRN B R
BEEMER -
B5%2 Description of practices relating to engaging | 6.1 Supply Chain

Management
6.1 HEEE S
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RIE - S RERRE

B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT {3t fis $i 5 788

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify 6.1 Supply Chain
environmental and social risks along Management
the supply chain, and how they are 6.1 fEsEEIE
implemented and monitored.

R AR R S B EIR BT Y IR E SeAt
- ZRBRAIED ARBERITRERTE
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 6.1 Supply Chain

environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

R RE HERR R EZRRRER K
BRAGEIIE D] - LA RABRARATIT M BRIV »

Management
6.1 HEEER

B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY ZE

B

General disclosure

Information on:

6.2 Assuring our Best Quality

— R (@) the policies; and 6.2 TRBE M EL IR
(b) compliance.
EHFTRMERNRSOHREREZ S - &
& BRELBETUARFER AN
@ BX: &
(b) BFHEITABERZENIEREE
KR DI E S
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Product responsibility is not a
shipped subject to recalls for safety and material issue to the Group’s
B6 health reasons. operation. Thus, it is not
EEXCEXEMEHTEALTREREIE | disclosed.
mmALRKM A D ° EmBETHAEERESM
EIrAEEAME Al - &
REBWAR °
B6.2 Number of products and service-related Product responsibility is not a

complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
BIERAPOZE mn M RISV IRER B B LA KR
FE e

material issue to the Group’s
operation. Thus, it is not
disclosed.
EmBETHARENEEM
EAEEAEE Bt - &
RBWAR °
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B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY ER=1{E

B6

B6.3 Description of practices relating to Product responsibility is not a
observing and protecting intellectual material issue to the Group’s
property rights. operation. Thus, it is not
faat B R ARIE AR E A B8 o | disclosed.

EMETHAERMNES
S ThEEAEE - Al
REWARF °

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process 6.2 Assuring our Best Quality
and recall procedures. 6.2 R B M EE RIS
S S0 TE B2 K E MBI

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection 6.2 Assuring our Best Quality

and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.

fitOH B & ERHRIE RALBBUR - ARAE
FRITRERTE -

6.2 R PR B E AR5

B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION R &5

B7

General disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance.

BB LLRERE - BR - HGFROEREER -

(@) B &

(b) BFHEEITABERZENHABEE
ARG ER o

6.3 Responsible Operation
6.3 BEENELFR

B7.1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the
issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
%Eﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁAﬁEﬁé%ﬁia%
REVEISIR AR BB NEFaARE

6.3 Responsible Operation
63BEENELRN

B7.2

Descrlpt|on of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

A rE b R B EAR T - A RABEBAT

REFETTE -

6.3 Responsible Operation
6.3 BEENEZLSA

B7.3

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
ftmESR 8 TRENRESEI -

6.3 Responsible Operation
6.3 8EENEZLAR
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B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT # B2 &

General disclosure

— B

Policies
BNt RSHERTREEMTHRTE
MBREEBEBEZRTEFZABER

7. Giving Back to the
Community
7. DRt E

B8.1

B8

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs,
health, culture, sport).

B ERERE (HE - RESETE
k2R Xk - 88F) o

The Group currently does
not report the information of
the resources on community
investment.

However, the Group plans
to disclose the information in
the future.
REEBAIARSEHRIRE
BIRER -

AT REEGEIRNBER
BEBER -

B8.2

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time)
to the focus area.

EETHBMPAER(NSELER) -

The Group currently does
not report the information of
the resources on community
investment.

However, the Group plans
to disclose the information in
the future.
REBEBAIARREHRIZE
BIREER -

AT - AREEFEIN BER
BEBEER -
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Ind\ependent Auditor’s Report
BB AR

mazars

Mazars CPA Limited

PERIR (F8) STMEXMERLT
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BB BB EBE18EPIBE S22

Tel EE: (+852) 2909 5555

Fax f#E: (+852) 2810 0032

info@mazars.hk

www.mazars.hk

To the shareholders of
Hua Yin International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua Yin
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 96 to 234, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BETERERERA T
(REFERMA T > BERAR)

2RRR

=R

HACBERIENEIEF2B4ANES
BRZERERAR(ATHREIERA]) &
HBARI(ATHEEERE ) &AM
BHRE  BEAVBERRBEN_T_—F
ZAZ+—HNRAMBIRREBEZE
EFENGEBERER HFAEEZHRAR - £
ARDEHRNGEERNERER - UREE
MIEmANGT - BRIBSABRMR -

BMRE - ZEReUBRREREEAS
FEAg((EAEAE]) BHNES
MgEmEEA([BEMBRELERN D AEE
MARHRET BEEER-T__F=AH
=+ — BB REEZB IEFERH
BRARASRE  WEBEREB(QFE
BB FE AR & RiR R o

ERNER

BRPERBEBZESTMASRMANKELE
ZERD) (I EBEZEN ) EITEZ - T
EREEATAENEECEARE 28
BB IRAR A MR AENEE] B0+
EE—LE - REFE SIS HEMD
(BEEGHMERTRDCATEME TR -
BB BEEE - YEETTATHE
B BREME - LFBEE - RPIMESH
BEREBEREMNEE SR FINELER
RALERE -
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to the “Going concern basis” section in note 2.1 to
the consolidated financial statements concerning the adoption of the
going concern basis on which the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared. The Group incurred loss of RMB56,960,000
for the year ended 31 March 2022 and, as at that date, the Group
had net current liabilities of approximately RMB138,522,000. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and, therefore that it may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
directors, having considered the measures to be taken by the Group as
disclosed in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, are of the
opinion that the Group would be able to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments that would result from a
failure of achieving the measures. We consider appropriate disclosures
have been made in this respect. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we have
determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be
communicated in our report.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A

ERBEREEECERTEE
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BMRBIBGAVBRRW T2
BIREEE] S EBERMNFELEEE
REGAEMBHRE BHEZTSZ_F=A
“t+—HLFE  BEBELEBBARYE
56,960,0007T * REIH + EXBE#EERE
B EFEHAREA138,522,0007T ° ZE B
NERERE IS RERM 2 FrE z A=
BRPATESSHE BEEBELCEENR
ERRCEATEEERZ Bt E&H
FARER —MEKBIZH SR ELEE KR
HARE KERRGEUBHREMTE2.10T
BHE BEERDCERE EERE B
SEBARENFELE - At - EEERE
BIRBUTE B ERE - FREVBR
R T EEE SN BBEEEEER 2F
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B o RN AmIEB UL FIEIEL B o

2 47 A
B

FARELSEE

PREZFEERERMNERHE - RBR
UARFEGEVBRRNBRRABEENS
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FRELSEA)

Key Audit Matter
HRELEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BREXSHEEEXT R NMELHT

Net realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

RIE P YR RIF L & EEHYF e o] BT F(E

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s properties under
development and completed properties held for sale
were stated at RMB1,133 million and RMB130 million
respectively, and they were carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The determination of
the net realisable value is based on the management
judgement and estimation or the valuation performed by
external independent valuer (the “Valuer”) which is highly
dependent on management’s judgement and estimates,
such as assumptions of the expected selling price and,
if applicable, costs to be incurred until completion and
sale; or the valuation basis and methodology used and
the assumptions applied by the Valuer. The assumptions
adopted in the estimation and valuation are affected by
expectation of future market or economics conditions.
MRZEBEZZF=A=+—H  EXENEELYERS
EHE BB E D B AR ¥ 1,133,000,000 T & A R
# 130,000,000 7T * & AK AN B B2 A] B3R A 2 BAK & 5
AR - EE B FEENEIREN A R sNETE
SAEERD ([HERD]) FTETTE - SEIURREERERN
HER R s MRS EEHEETRT MIHEHEER
BRANEI R A% ¢ S A4 ERD AT A b B B2 R T VE A K P fE A
BRa% o st RIAEMRANRHRE B M5 SBER R
HTEEAFT & -

We identified the net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale
as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the judgement and
estimation involved in determination of the net realisable
value.

HPRRERTYELFELECER Y RO B/ %
ERBEREZFE  DHRNHEUGSTKREAMEBE
R - MEEE Al 5 HES & FIE S fhat -

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 17
to the consolidated financial statements.
A BEISHNRE MR EMTE2.4 - 3% 17 o

Our key procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale
included:

WF?W%@%T?"JEEP %%&%VF&%E%EX#@%E@EI

e (Checking the expected selling price to the prices of
the Group’ s similar properties presold recently or
adjacent properties sold or subsequently sold on a
sample basis;

i LE B TR B £ (B Bl HRTE & b
B BEEEYFIEENYEER

EHEEKREE

e Understanding, evaluating and validating the
assumptions in estimating the costs to be incurred
until completion and sale on a sample basis;

WE TR - FHME R BT EER T RHERTPIESE
AR RER

e |f the net realisable value is based on the valuation
performed by the Valuer,
i AT IR E BN ERETTHEE

(i) Reviewing the valuation report from the Valuer and
discussing with management and the Valuer to
understand the valuation basis and methodology
used, and underlying assumptions applied;
R ERO(EERS - WEREIRE REERM
7 LA T B P PR AR (BB N I3 R A K P FE R B0 AR
R& :

(i) Evaluating the objectivity, capabilities and
competence of the Valuer; and

AHAEEMOZERIE e REE &

(i) Obtaining, on a sample basis, the underlying data
including comparables of market transactions
being used and assessing the appropriateness.
HEER P AT 5 5 W IEEEE (B LA

WaHHEE M o

®) -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2022 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BB MR B GRE M BRREARE
HEFE

BMMBR  RERAVBRREBES T
TFHE KGR Sk A BR M B B E A HAG
BERRE - WHEABRERRMERAZEER
T BARBARERREFNKEL R
BARRELIRE - BRULASN - AREWEE
AR - R T MBI RENARRE
B A T8 FRAEEREE -

BEREERKFORE - BTEERERR
(BREREADETHESR  BEX—EAHE
WFAERARREEIE - ¥R ABREFEER
51 - RA BRI T FIFE B E R AT
REFERAMIBMEREBERBSZA M ER
RFTTEH AV EDRTE - BIA BE A 86 5 A) 104R
EEX -

ERBCEBEZEADETEZHBRET -
BFERTEXHE - RETEXRRRE
[Z o ZAIIR -

o BRIMFHERRAFFRERMEBEE
B HRFEEAEROAR - ReT R
MITELIE T AREELRE - UK
BT RMEE NEZEE  (FARMAE
REER - REFAIRE S R BR  B
& BRER ERRL - HEBERA
BREH 2 £ Rt REEERRMEME
BREA#E RN ER SR REEHR AR
RMEHHBRBROER

T AR A AARE R R RRIES]
EMEZIZF - BREMLIESE
NEPEHHBREERBR -

B sREHE

o HEEFEMERASTERRNEEMERE
SEHERT AR REN AR -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities and business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 June 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Wai Man

Practising Certificate number: P02487
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= (=] 22
,%T/E\| B
For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE
2022 2021
—EC-CE T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiEE ARBTR ARBTT
Revenue W= 5 112,103 153,336
Cost of sales and services $HE RARTER AR (80,280) (237,845)
Gross profit (loss) EF(EH) 31,823 (84,509)
Other income and gains H AU R ez 5 134,610 1,458
Selling and distribution expenses $HE R SHRAR (11,382) (9,022)
Administrative expenses TRER (38,613) (33,149
Finance costs BE KA 7 (62,458) (105,132)
Other expenses HitAx (6,561) (232,676)
Change in fair value of investment BREWMEN DA EBEZE
properties 14 (81,714) (45,800)
Change in fair value of derivative TESBMIENDAEECE
financial instruments 24 (44,879) (69)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBLATER 6 (79,174) (508,899)
Income tax PRSH 10 22,214 (6,300)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FRER (56,960) (515,199
Attributable to: PEfh
Owners of the parent ISYNGIEZY=PN (56,960) (515,199)
LOSS PER SHARE BRAEHEAEGEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO &7
OWNERS OF THE PARENT 12
Basic AR RMB(0.84) cents RMB(8.94) cents
AR (0.84) 7 AR (8.9 5
Diluted BE RMB(0.84) cents RMB(8.94) cents
AR (0.84) 7 AR (8.9 5
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FEZEBAR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=—F=/[=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-—F =EE==4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
(Restated)
(#&57)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (56,960) (515,199)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hftt ZHUA
Other comprehensive income that R AR B PR R
are/may be reclassified to profit ZHEMEEHA -
or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation &GN ETKE 4 2 1EH =48
of foreign operations 6,132 12,438
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMZEEUA - MBRFE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 6,132 12,438
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRZHEWAZLZE
FOR THE YEAR (50,828) (6502,761)
Attributable to: FEAS -
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZEPN (50,828) (502,761)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR ER

Asat31 March2022 R=-ZE==4F=A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P sE ARET T ARBTTT
(Restated)
(7e&E5)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - I MR 13 261 322
Investment properties wEME 14 615,800 547,100
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 332 2,070
Deferred tax assets EETR IR E = 16 17,363 13,524
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 633,756 563,016
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Properties under development and BRAMERFEHE
completed properties held for sale BRI ZE 17 1,262,844 1,211,824
Trade and other receivables JEUE SRR
R FE U0 IE 18 55,681 39,681
Prepaid income tax TESFr1S R 9,257 6,067
Derivative financial instruments PTESBITA 24 9,709 22
Pledged and restricted deposits B R R EITFR 19 7,596 8,715
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 19 93,151 117,938
1,438,238 1,384,247
Assets associated with disposal HEAEABEHEZ
group classified as held for sale HEHARBREZEE - 334,018
Total current assets REBEEHE 1,438,238 1,718,265
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and other payables BB ZHRM
Ko B Ath FE SRR 20 481,876 507,210
Contract liabilities AHEE 21 383,969 227,910
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 12,646 12,246
Loans from a controlling shareholder ~ — &R AR B FX 22 234,819 72,615
Bank and other borrowings RITREMES 23 420,697 448,497
Liability component of the Convertible  AJ# A% (&% & EZ D
Bonds 24 - 72,879
Income tax payable FERTFR1S R 42,753 67,595
1,576,760 1,408,952
Liabilities associated with HEABEARBELHEZ
disposal group classified HEARBREZEE
as held for sale - 393,677
Total current liabilities REEEAE 1,576,760 1,802,629
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFE (138,522) (84,364)
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2022 2021
—E-—F =EE==4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5T AR®ET T ARETIT
(Restated)
(&x&E751))
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ¥ EAERABERE
LIABILITIES 495,234 478,652
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAB
Liability component of the AR EHAEE D 24 79,267 =
Convertible Bonds
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 23 290,897 351,593
Deferred tax liabilities RETHTEEE 16 52,042 59,284
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 28,487 32,682
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEEEE 450,693 443,559
NET ASSETS BEFE 44,541 35,093
EQUITY R
Share capital &N 25 202,554 292,554
Convertible preference shares AR RAR S I 26 299,515 299,515
Equity component of the Convertible B2 EHE S B
Bonds 24 60,276 40,368
Reserves i 28 (607,804) (597,344)
TOTAL EQUITY RS 44,541 35,093

These consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 234 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June

2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Cui Xintong

e
Director

E=

FBEBABEZHZEHRAEVBHRER-ZE
TEANAZTTNABREESHERIRES

- WHATALTRRRE

Li Junjie
L3
Director

BE=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE—ZT=-—F=/[=+—HIFE

Reseres
i
Equity
component
Convertible of the Share
Share  preference  Converthle Share  Exchange  Contributed option Other  Statutory  Retained Total
capital shares Bonds  premium feseve  SUplUS  reseve  resenves reseve  eamings  Sub-total equity
Tak  TRRES
R BRR CEEBS  ROEE  ERE SAER BRERE  AbBE ARk RERA NG BREE
RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMBIOOO  RMB'OO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00
ANRETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETr ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETR
(Note25)  (Note26) ~ (Note24)  (Note28() (Note28(i) (Note28(il) (Note28[)) (Note28(v) (Note 28(v)
(Witos)  (Mitoe)  (Wtos)  (hitosp) (Mstosm) (Fstosm) (Wstospd) (Mistosn)) (MEtos)
(Restated) (Restated) ~ (Restated)
(%)) (g%5)) (4%
At 1 Aor 2020 RZZZ5ERE-H 28810 1181940 40368 3535130 (8621) 184684 20716 (326378) 68241 (1495139 (998762 450,916
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - - - B9 pi5109 (15199
Other comprehensiieincome ~ £REMZEMA
for the year
Exchange diferences arising 5N E A Z B2
from foreign operations - - - — 12438 - - - - - 12438 12438
Total comprehensive ER2ENNEE
income for the year - - - - 12438 - - - - (615199  (B02761)  (B02,761)
Transaction with owners: BEEARS:
Controution and distrioutions & RAK
Issuance of new ordinary RERDRERTHEAR
shares under share
placement 1221 - - 73,661 - - - - - - 73,661 85,938
Shares issued upon conversion AT E R EH BB
of convertible preference
shares 51,907 (882425) - 830518 - - - - - - 830518 -
Lapsefforfeture of share options &g,/ R - - - - - - (o] - = % = -
Tensfertostatutoryresene.  BAZZTHE - - - - - - - X (O X = =
64,184 (882429) - 4179 - - ®) - 2804 @n1) 4179 8598
At 31 March 2021 W= -£=f=1-A 200554 299515 40368 4430318 (46183 184684 20623 (326378) 71045 (2013049  (597344) 35008
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Reserves

fife
Equity
component
Convertible of the Share
Share preference Convertible Share  Exchange Contributed option Other ~ Statutory  Retained Total
capital  shares Bonds  premium  reserve  surplus  reserve  reseves  reserve  earnings  Sub-total equity
TR TRRES | ] B
R BiR ZBE¥S ROEE NERE AAEH fE  EERE iERE  REEA it b
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETZ
(Note25)  (Note26)  (Note 24) (Note 28 (i) (Note 28 (i) (Note 28 (ii)) (Note 28 (iv)) (Note 28 (v)) (Note 28 (vi)
(Witos)  (Witoe)  (Wkod) (WERos() (Wsbosi) (Wfstas(i) (WsFos(v) (Kirosiy) (Kisos(vi)
A1 April 2021 R-E--EMBE-A
As previously stated BhER 202554 200515 40368 4430318 (94983 184084 20623 (3253782 71,045 (2013049)  (646,144) (13,707
Prior year recassfication BREEBNERE
adjustment (note 2.1) (1) - - - - 48800 - - - - - 43800 48800
As restated ] 202554 209515 40368 4430318  (46,183) 184684 20623 (3253782) 71,045 (2013,049) (597,344) 35093
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - - - (66%60)  (56,960)  (36,90)
Other comprehensiveincome ~ EREMZEMA
forthe year
Bxchange dferences arsng 0B B EE
from foreign operations - - - - 6,132 - - - - - 6,132 6,132
Total comprehensive ERPENALE
income for the year - - - - 6,132 - - - - (6960 (50,828  (50,828)
Transaction with owners: HEEARS:
Contrbution and distoutions 2 R
Issuance of convertiole Bonds ~ E{TAI AR fE% - - 60276 - - - - - - - - 60276
Transfer upon maturty REBREETARER
of convertile bonds - - (40,368 - - - - - - 40,368 40,368 -
Disposal of subsiciaries HEREAR - - - - - - - - (st 48 - -
- - 19,008 - - - - - (B311) 88679 40368 60276
At 31 March 2022 W-F-F=f=1-A 20255 200515 60216 4430318  (40,051) 184684 20623 (3263782 22,734 (1981,330) (607,804) 44541
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERENER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE AR¥T T AREFIT
(Restated)
(FeE5)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXER
Loss before tax Rt AE 1R (79,174) (508,899)
Adjustments for: PTYSBET A -
Finance costs BB 7 62,458 105,132
Bank and other interest income SRIT R E A A EUA (1) Q)
(Reversal ofy/Write-down of (BE) EERTE
properties under development and MEFEHEDEX
completed properties held for sale, net YIEMOR - FE 6,17 (19,941) 225552
Impairment on trade and other FEURE SRR R EAth
receivables FEWGRIBRE 6,539 14,858
Impairment on goodwill [EEPAEAE 6 - 4,999
Impairment on property, Yz - R R
plant and equipment ZRE 6 - 3,651
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB QR Z WS 30 (64,348) -
Loss on derecognition of derivative BRIEERTTESm TR
financial instruments M8 21 -
Change in fair value of investment WEMEANEEED
properties 14 81,714 45,800
Gain on revaluation upon transfer B EERR 2 S
of investment properties 5 (48,181) -
Change in fair value of derivative PTEeMIEARERE
financial instruments ) 24 44,879 69
Depreciation e 1,766 11,228
(14,268) (97,611)
Increase in properties under BRAVERBELE
development and completed ESER L N
properties held for sale (104,057) (46,339)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other  JEUR & 5 BR 7 K E At FE Uk
receivables g (g m) R (12,713) 7,540
Decrease in lease receivable HERUGRIE R - 3,416
Decrease in trade and FERTE SRR R E A RS
other payables SIBR L (11,026) (64,466)
Decrease in pledged and EHEE R R IR
restricted deposits Vo 2,772 6,709
Increase in contract liabilities BB EE 149,019 97,097
Cash generated from/(used in) EIEE(FTA)Z2RE
operations 9,727 (93,654)
Interest received BFE 1 1
Interest paid BRFE (90,288) (49,738)
Tax paid: EAHIE
— The People’s Republic of China - BT E AR
(the “PRC”) corporate income ([HEL) (EEMEHR
tax paid (12,000 (6,300)
- PRC land appreciation tax paid - BB L ER (4,325) (3,086)
Net cash flows used KEEBFTRA RS
in operating activities mE 5 (96,885) (152,777)

HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A




2022 2021
—E-—F =EE==4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
PisE ARET ARET T
(Restated)
(&%)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFED
Purchases of items of property, plant ~ EE S % - #éee M REE
and equipment (24) (63)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from HEMBAR RS
disposals of subsidiaries Ord) TmAFE 30 (2,074) 122,000
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing 1%&&8) (FTA) Fr5
activities B REFER (2,098) 121,937
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Proceeds from shares issued under R (D ECEZETTHD
share placement Z TS R0R - 85,938
Proceeds from new bank and other ~ ¥TIZRIT R HbfEE
borrowings LTS R0E 260,000 341,000
Repayment of bank and other BEBRITREMEE
borrowings (348,496) (856,097)
New loans from a controlling PERRAR R ATIEE R
shareholder 213,041 183,994
Repayment of a controlling EEERRREER
shareholder’s loan (36,161) (107,130)
Payment on lease liabilities HEBGENK (14,452) (28,532)
Net cash flows from financing activities B & EBFE 2 IR &R EF 5B 73,932 119,173
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN ReRBELEEYZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (Ei2) /g ini$58 (25,051) 88,333
Cash and cash equivalents at the FURERREEEYD
beginning of the year 118,334 30,500
Effect of foreign exchange rate RSB 2T
changes, net (132) (499)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HRzEESRRESZEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 19 93,151 118,334
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RRAIREEER

Hua Yin International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries referred to as the “Group”), is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company was principally
engaged in investment holding and the Group was principally
engaged in property development and management, including
planning, designing, budgeting, licensing, contract tendering and
contract administration and property investment.

Hua Yin International Holdings Limited
EZEBRERBRAR(ARA] - &
AEMBARGHEIAER]) ARER
EAMKZ 2 BRAT o RNRAA]Z M
% % B2 7 1 Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda @ &
BOREBBHERZFIBRAT ([
Frl) EMRET o

BE_Z_—_F=A=+—HILFE "
RRARFEEREREZRMAEEEE
REMEBRLEE (RERE - X5
HE B SHAREREHNERIUR
MERE) -

Information about subsidiaries EBENEARZEHR
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March RZEZZF=A=+—H KQAE
2022 are as follows: EMBARZFBENT
Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business; and legal Issued ordinary Percentage of
form if established share/registered equity attributable to the
Name in the PRC capital Company Principal activities
AR B R
BRI
R (ASE BRITZER/ FRRES
&8 ) EER R R BEEAL TEED
Direct Indirect
E# 5f
Ground Holdings Limited British Virgin US$100 100% = Investment holding
Islands (BVI") 100%T REER
SEHRRHE
(XBgRRES])
Ka Yun Investments Limited (Note) BVI US$10,001 = 100% Investment holding
FEREGRAR (M) SEHRRHE 10,001 7T REER

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A



(Continued)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2022 are as follows: (Continued)

1. ARIREEER (F)

AEME AR 2ER (&)

RZE-__F£=A=+—8 ' KxRAF*
EWBARZFRET : (B)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business; and legal Issued ordinary Percentage of
form if established share/registered equity attributable to the
Name in the PRC capital Company Principal activities
FRAL/ LR
e
R (AFE BRAZER/ NG i3
£ RI) EEFR ZRBRE BEEAL TEEE
Direct Indirect
E# EF:
Baishan Ground Real Estate The PRC, wholly RMB50,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* domestically AR®50,000,0007C business
AT EERHEREBRAA owned enterprise NEEREY
e ARERE
Vaniji Huize Real Estate The PRC, wholly RMB50,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* domestically AR®50,000,0007C business
tEMEEEHEREARAA owned enterprise NELEED
HE - ANARE
Fusong Ground Real Estate The PRC, wholly RMB110,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* domestically AE®110,000,0007T business
BILEERHEREERAR owned enterprise MELEER

hE - AREDE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RRIREEER (&)

(Continued)
EBEMBARZER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March RZEZZF=H=+—H  ARaE

2022 are as follows: (Continued)

ZMBARZFBWT : (F)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business; and legal Issued ordinary Percentage of
form if established share/registered equity attributable to the
Name in the PRC capital Company Principal activities
FRAL/ LR
e
R (ASE BRAEER/ NG
£ i) EERR SRBRE BHEADL TEEH
Direct Indirect
BB GF:
Fusong Changbaishan Ground Tourism The PRC, wholly RMB10,000,000 - 100% Tourism development and
Development Company Limited* domestically AK®10,000,0007C management business
BIARAILEEREREERAR owned enterprise REERRRERER
hE - HRERE
Baishan Ground Business The PRC, wholly RMB500,000 - 100% Real estate rental
Management Company Limited* domestically AR®500,0007 management
AUmEEHEERERAA owned enterprise FHERBER
HE - ANERE
Jilin Ground Property Services The PRC, wholly RMB3,000,000 - 100% Real estate property
Company Limited"* domestically AR®3,000,0007 management
ENTEENEREERAR owned enterprise FHENEER
HE - BRERE
Jilin Province Xisheng Real Estate The PRC, wholly RMB30,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Limited* domestically AR®30,000,0007C business
EMEREEHEREERAR owned enterprise MELREDR
hE - ARERE

*

For identification purpose only

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A



1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March
2022 are as follows: (Continued)

Note: Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement (as amended by a
supplemental agreement dated 3 July 2015, a second supplementary
agreement dated 22 December 2015 and an extension letter dated
31 March 2016) dated 26 May 2015 entered into among Frontier
Power Investments Limited (“Frontier Power”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), Ka Yik Investments Limited (“‘Ka Yik”,
a company wholly owned by Ms. Cui at those dates) and Ms. Cui,
Frontier Power agreed to acquire and Ka Yik agreed to sell the
entire equity interest in Ka Yun Investments Limited (“‘Ka Yun”) for a
consideration of HK$4,650 million (the “Ka Yun Acquisition”). The Ka
Yun Acquisition was completed on 26 July 2016.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the total assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

1. ARIREEER (F)

AEME AR 2ER (&)

RZE-__F£=A=+—8 ' KxRAF*
DB AR ZFBNT : (8)

G

e

R 4% Frontier Power Investments Limited
([Frontier Power] » A"NA R Z 2 & HE
AR REBEREARAA(RE] -
EZtRZERREEHE 2 T)
REZTHRIIZBHAZT—RAFH
A+ BZEEM#(ERAA=
T—RAFLAZAzERmRE AH
RIE-—RFTZAZTZRAZEZ
nHABEEBBA-T—RF=A
=+ —HZIEER R HFTEET) + Frontier
Power ZEWEMREZRAELERE
BEABRAR(TRE] 228
{8 A 4,650,000,00078 7T ([ RE U
FE]) XEWESEER -_T—X F
+tAZ+HZEKX -

ERBEARRZMBERR  EFERRB
ZEMBRARUAFEXEETERE
BN AKEREESRHND - EFR
REHREGHBARZABEESRIE
BRI e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 RS ELSE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties and derivative financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Restatement of comparative information

Comparative information in relation to loans from a controlling
shareholder and exchange reserve was incorrectly stated as
certain repayments of loans from a controlling shareholder during
the year ended 31 March 2021 has been inadvertently recorded
in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income

AEEMBRRDBRBELEGIMLAE
(TEAGEAE]) B 2B BH R
SR (TEBMBREEL]) - taehE
EREMETEMHREER BES
SR (TEEGFTER ) ke - BE
EERAzEHRAUREFRBABGD CF
Pl 6228 ) 2 WRARTE MRS o ANz
EUBBRRNTERBNEMRIAES LT
MR LR 2 EREEGER 2R
E o BRIRARBEFEZREMERIT
FERMTAN  REEAMBRERETY
AR L RAERFTEEE - FRE MK H
RUAARBTARED 25 BrBiE
RS  FTASRISRBESEA TS -

Byt RER

HR-Z-—F=—A=+—HFH " &
EEELRBREERTELHBEE M S
HRAZBMEGINEREELEZIER =
3 OBWEAR —BERBEERRINE
BEZEBE TR T ER2MMET o

as exchange differences on translation of foreign operations. Bt - FABRKE B RALEAT -
Accordingly, the related information has been restated and

summarised as below:

As previously
reported Reclassification As restated
BESR ENE "EF|
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ANRETT
Consolidated Statement of RZE--¥=ZfA=1+-A2
Financial Position at 31 March 2021:  ZRABBRAE :
Loans from a controlling shareholder —HERRRER (121,415) 48,800 (72,615)
Reserves & 646,144 (48,800) 597,344
Net (liabilities)/assets (afE) BEFE (18,707) 48,800 35,093
Consolidated Statement of BE-Z--F=R=1-HLfEZ
Comprehensive Income for the year A ZEWAR :
ended 31 March 2021:
Exchange differences on translation of ~ BEENERELZERZ5
foreign operations 36,362 (48,800) (12,438)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 2 -2-—f¥=A=1+—-HILEE
for the year ended 31 March 2021: ~ 4G&BEHER:
Repayment of a controlling BRERBREER
shareholder’s loan (68,330) (48,800) (107,130)
(Decrease)/increased in trade ENBHIR R EMENTE
and other payables (Rd) /HEm (113,266) 48,800 (64,466)
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB56,960,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2022 and as of that date, the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately RMB138,522,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, therefore, the Group may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
Notwithstanding the aforesaid conditions, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis on the
assumption that the Group is able to operate as a going concern for
the foreseeable future. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group can
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due within the
next twelve months, after taking into consideration of the measures
and arrangements made by the Group as detailed below:

(i) the Group is expected to generate adequate cash flows to
maintain its operations;

(i) the Group is expected to obtain continuous financial support
from the Group’s controlling shareholder, and the controlling
shareholder has confirmed that it will not demand the Group
for repayment of the loans from controlling shareholder within
the next twelve months should the Group not be in the financial
position to make such repayment; and

i

=

the Group is in negotiation with financial institutions and other
lenders for the renewals of the Group’s short-term bank and
other borrowings that expired or upon expiry and obtaining
new borrowings; and expected to be able to renew existing
borrowings and obtain new bank borrowings subsequent to the
date of reporting period.

2.1 R R EE (])

HE_Z-_—F=-A=1+—HItFE
REBEEEBELHAR56960,000
7T RABR  AREBRBRBAETRE
#4 AR 138,522,000 7T ° :Z FE KR K
REEEEAEEFELEE RS
KECEATREREZ Bt - X5&E
RN —MEBBEPEREEER
BREAE ‘EHR LMANKR - 56
MBMECRPBECLEEERFR - UK
BB R RFELE - &
ZRASEMERZBHERTHE &
ERE AKEURAKRTZEARNE
TEPBEMT ST

() NEBTEHEEERARSMEUS
FREEE

(i) NEETEHISAEE T Hxﬂxﬁmh
BB IIE - MIERARRE R -
$%lﬁ7ﬁ%ﬁk/ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁ1§ﬁ§

C EIRAR R e ESRKARE B AR IR
+ MARESIZERBREER &

(i) ANEE B RS BB R EME T
R MBI MR EE AR 2 EHIR
TR EMEEETRER R ERSHE
& WHEFARRERREERREG
HIRTTIEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 RBEXE (&)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The Directors have prepared a cash flow forecast covering a period
up to 30 June 2023 on the basis that the negotiation with financial
institutions for the renewals of the Group’s borrowings and credit
facilities would be successful and would obtain continuous financial
support from the Group's controlling shareholder. The Directors are
satisfied that the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due within the twelve
months from 31 March 2022.

In light of the measures and arrangements implemented to date,
the Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group has
sufficient financial resources to satisfy its working capital and other
financial obligations for the next twelve months after having taken
into account the Group’s projected cash flows, current financial
resources and capital expenditure requirements with respect to
the development of its business. Accordingly, the Directors of the
Company are of the view that it is appropriate to prepare these
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether the Directors of the Company will be able to achieve its
plans and measures as described above. Whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern would depend upon the
Group’s ability to generate adequate financing and operating cash
flows in the near future and obtain the continuous financial support
from its controlling shareholder.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to restate the values
of assets to their estimated recoverable amounts, to provide further
liabilities that might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments have not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A

EEDERREEAEENBEEREE
EHDREEET I ERS SRR
S EEREARSIERRRENIFEN IS
R MEEREEE ST -_=F /A
=+ HIHEMNRERERA - EEE
MAEBBHEERHEEESRITER
BT - —F-A=+—HB#:T+_ME
AREIERBBEEST -

ENBEFCRRZERRLZY - BEE
FAAKREZEARESR BRVEER
UAREFXBERNEAFAIFRR K
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e. existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2ARBELE ()
Basis of consolidation (Continued) REEXE(E)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, and (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and recognises (i)
the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a
financial asset, associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from
the date when control is lost.

22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16:
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial reporting
when a company replaces the old interest rate benchmark with an
alternative benchmark rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark
reform (the “Reform”). The amendments complement those issued
in November 2019 and relate to:

e changes to contractual cash flows — a company will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial
instruments for changes required by the Reform, but will instead
update the effective interest rate to reflect the change to the
alternative benchmark rate;
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22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2B BRREERIFHE (&)
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and ERSTTERE39 - BEEMK

16: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 HMEERNEL4T - 755 - FOR

(Continued) RE16E 2185 - NEEEY
®-F_RE(E)

e hedge accounting — a company will not have to discontinue its o HHEHEE — WEPHEEME
hedge accounting solely because it makes changes required by EETRIEELE - NRIBAREREE
the Reform, if the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; MR Esk s EemE LEEhE
and TR - &

e disclosures — a company will be required to disclose information o W _ RAPRERFEFENE
about new risks arising from the reform and how it manages the EE AR RE M ERRES
transition to alternative benchmark rates. BREERN R 2 ER -

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant NGRS H ARG W IS WmR I AT

impact on consolidated financial statements. EpN-7Z
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

23ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year relevant to the
Group which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfiling a Contract

23 MM ERARERERYH

SRR
RZEHFREYBERRERETZEE
REBEVERFRABTESHMASE
MR ERAREE B ARER 2 BAREEE
O TIEE]EEET BB HaRE %
Al o

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework !
2018-2020 Cycle !

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies 2

Definition of Accounting
Estimates 2

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction 2

Insurance Contracts 2

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 -
Comparative Information 2

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or
Joint Venture 3

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

8 The effective date to be determined
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The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the new/revised
HKFRSs in future periods will have any material impact on the
results of the Group.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A

BTN R KA KM, LB
EEMBHREEAG T EHARERE
ERERIERTE -



24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income where appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24F BT EOREE ()
POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued) E¥BaptREE (E)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment,
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or group of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units), to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

For the business combination under common control, the financial
statements of the Group and the acquired subsidiaries have been
combined, as if the Group acquired such subsidiaries from the
beginning of the earliest financial period that common control
existed. The net assets of the Group and the acquired subsidiaries
are combined using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in consideration for
goodwill or excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquired subsidiaries’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition at the time of common control
combination. The difference between the consideration and the
book value of the acquired subsidiaries at the time of common
control combination is deducted in the reserves of the Group.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and derivative
financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

Fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4T EETBERBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

Or
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i)~ the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(viil) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries
of the associate and a joint venture includes subsidiaries of the joint
venture.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

20% to 33%
Over the shorter of the

Furniture and fixtures and office equipment
Leasehold improvements

lease terms and 20%
Motor vehicles 20% to 30%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4T EETBERBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development
period. The net realisable value of properties under development
is determined by establishing the estimated selling prices of
the properties on (i) an “as-if” completed basis with appropriate
deduction on construction costs, professional fees and interests
to be incurred from the valuation date to completion as well as the
estimated selling expenses or (i) a direct comparison approach by
making reference to comparable land transactions as available in
the market.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development project
is expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.

The land held for future development represents parcels of land
owned by the Group for the purpose of development of properties
for sale and initially stated at lower of cost and net realisable
value. It is transferred to properties under development upon
commencement of the related construction work in the property
development project.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of
the total land and building costs attributable to unsold properties.
The net realisable value is determined by reference to the selling
prices of properties sold in the ordinary course of business less
selling expenses and the prevailing market conditions, on an
individual property basis.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Completed properties held for sale and properties under
development would be transferred to investment properties
when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by the
following criteria: (a) the properties meet the definition of investment
properties; (b) the Group has prepared a business plan that reflects
the future rental income generated by the property and this is
supported with evidence that there is demand for rental space; (c)
the Group can demonstrate that it has the resources, including the
necessary financing or capital, to hold and manage the investment
property; (d) the change in use is legally permissible; (e) if the
property must be further developed for the change in use, the
development has commenced and (f) change in use is approved by
the Board.

Any difference between the fair value of the completed properties
held for sales at the transfer date and its previous carrying amount
shall be recognised in profit or loss which is consistent with the
treatment of sales of completed properties.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4T EFSETEERME (8)
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases HE

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components from
lease components, and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a separate
component are considered to be part of the total consideration that
is allocated to the separately identified components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
commencement date of the lease.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AFEETTBRBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued) HE(E)
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBERABEA (&)
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Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received, and an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the Group in dismantling and removing the underlying

asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the ERRRIGHEFRERER TEEZ
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and THETRAR - BRIEZSERRA TR EEF
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to BMELE -

produce inventories.
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Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the right-of-
use asset (unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying

asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost
of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided over

ARBRAEERTEREEZE - &
ERT - R BREERA AIER

the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as follows: FHRFHERE) OT ¢
Office and other premises 1-3 years i NEYS Bk 1-34F
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24F BT EOREE ()
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued) HE(E)
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBEERABEA (E)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g.,
a change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the
lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the
remeasurement in profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (Continued)

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

QAT EETTHREE (&)

HE ()
FEEERERAA (F)
(b) HERE(E)

fAHIRATER - HEEFTRIERE

@)

the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount

commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

@)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

(b) the Group determines the lease term of the modified

contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate over
the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease,
the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the lease
liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease
and recognising any gain or loss relating to the partial or full
termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

BEEAR :

(@) EFTEBIBM—IAKZIRABE
EZEREMBEAEEHE : &

b) HEREEMZ 2 BEEENEHE
BAMOBEZEBEREAR
REFERNOBRE EBERE
EEERE -

W SR ENHE BT M A S
EREBHEAR

(@) AEERE C AR EBERD
BRI aMZRIE -

b AEEEELET AN ZHEE
B o

() AEBFEBNEETHERER
RIEFTRRIR KB E T E N K
ETRHRBAEHTEHERE -

O st R EEHE < HEEFTMm
5 AKEEERIERREE
ZEREERHEAEEHAEA
R URBRESREHMELEE
KB R IR D ke
ERAR L FHEARRE 2 W as Sk 1

(€ BUFTEHEMBEERIME » A&

B3 B A B A L AR R S
X pEEREERTEAR-

Annual Report 2021/22 44



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT ESTTHEME (E)
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued) HE(E)
The Group as lessor AEBEEREHEA

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head
lease and sublease as two separate contracts. The sublease is
classified as an operating lease if the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group has applied the recognition exemption.
Otherwise, the sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.
When the Group entered into sublease as an intermediate lessor,
any difference between the derecognition of right-of-use asset and
the net investment in the sublease are recognised in profit or loss.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted for
as finance leases.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor (Continued)
As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements
in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as a new lease
from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of
the lease payments for the new lease.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments
and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the Group’s
contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial asset expire
or (i) the Group transfers the financial asset and either (a) it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, or (b) it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises the financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant
financing component) are initially recognised at their fair value plus,
in the case of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
and loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables are
initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i) measured
at amortised cost; (i) debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); (iii) equity instruments at FVOCI;
or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition
unless the Group changes its business model for managing them,
in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change in the
business model (the “reclassification date”).

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host is an
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated from the host.
Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed for classification.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both
of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses arising from impairment,
derecognition or through the amortisation process are
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include trade and
other receivables, pledged and restricted deposits and cash and
cash equivalents.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)
(2) Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are not measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI, including financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
applies and financial assets that are otherwise required to be
measured at FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with any
resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss, which does
not include any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets. Dividend or interest income is presented separately from
fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near
term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(iiy a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or not a
designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at FVPL only
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include
derivative financial instruments.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the liability
is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in
the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
loans from a controlling shareholder, lease liabilities and bank and
other borrowings, and convertible bonds. All financial liabilities,
except for financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that is not
an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those
of the host, and the hybrid contract is not measured at FVPL.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Convertible bonds

If the early redemption option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated from its
liability component. On initial recognition, the derivative component
of the convertible bonds is measured at fair value and presented
as part of derivative financial instruments. The component of
the convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a liability
is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position,
net of transaction costs. On initial recognition, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a
long term liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in
shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount
of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are first recognised.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss
(“ECL”) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost
and financial guarantee contracts issued to which the impairment
requirements apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the
specific treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount
equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a
financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to an
entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive.

For a financial guarantee contract, the entity is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
cash shortfalls are the expected payments to reimburse the holder
for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the entity
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.
If the asset is fully guaranteed, the estimation of cash shortfalls
for a financial guarantee contract would be consistent with the
estimations of cash shortfalls for the asset subject to the guarantee.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument
while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more shared
credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iiy nature of collateral
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4T EETBERBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)
(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors

(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance are
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial
instrument, except in the case of debt instruments at FVOCI, the
loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the recycling fair value reserve.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that the Group may not receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full if the financial instrument that meets any
of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information is taken
into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or interest on
the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have or may have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes
a party to the irrevocable commmitment is considered to be the date
of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the financial
instrument for impairment. For financial guarantee contracts, the
Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has alow risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and

(i adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets without a significant
financing components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant financing
components, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating
ECL. The Group recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired include observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

() the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash flows on
a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group has
a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount when the financial
asset is 1 year past due based on historical experience of recoveries
of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery from
the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal
advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in
profit or loss.

QAT EETTHREE (&)

THEEREMEERRE (&)

FERESREE

ERE-HASZHHETBEEMTAR
ReREBTNTEZEZME  ©BE
ELREERE cREEFEREZ
ERBEA TSRS

(@) BITAHBRABAERTFHE -

b) BRAK - RSB EN -

e

(0) fERAZDRAEEERA LRI
WA EERALIERME TE
FAE—RBERTERATNTEEZ
BB

(o) ERAB IR ERETEMPBE
i

@ MRMBEERESRAE T
S -

) RARBFAHBESIRE-FHEHE
B ZTIRRELEEEE -

BALE W ES IR TR @ 2 A AR
TREENANRSIRE - MEHEE
BMEE - ARENBRERREBERL
BEWONER  AeMEEAN —F
AR AR RE - ARERHKTIEK
ERENCHMIETE - A EZEE
BEEER®%Z EHMEHESREENIEE
HERITEBZRE  NEBTAEER
ClEKEEIZRF - HREMKESEE
RIEETER ©

Annual Report 2021/22 44 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24F BT EOREE ()
POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24F BT EOREE ()
POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued) RS (&)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the consideration received or receivable for
the sales of properties and services, net of discount, in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities.

Revenue from the sales of properties are recognised when or as the
control of the asset is transferred to the customer. Depending on the
terms of the contract and laws that apply to the contract, control of
the asset may transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of the
asset is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

e Provides all the benefits received and consumed simultaneously
by the customer; or

e Creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

e Do not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to
the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to
the contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

For property sales contract for which the control of the property
is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the physical possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has present right to payment
and the collection of the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if
it is significant. When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer), in determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised consideration for the effects of the time value
of money. The effect of the significant financing component is
recognised as an interest income or interest expense separately
from revenue from contracts with customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is commensurate with
the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and its customer at contract inception by
reference to, where appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the
contract (i.e. the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price
of the goods or services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing rates and
other relevant creditworthiness information of the customer of the
Group.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of
HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for the effect of
the significant financing component if the period of financing is one

year or less.

Payments received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated statement of financial

position under contract liabilities.

Rental income derived from the lease of the Group’s properties is
recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Property management fee income derived from the provision of
property maintenance and management services is recognised over

time when the relevant services are rendered.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost or debt instruments at FVOCI that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-impaired

financial assets.

Contract liabilities

If a customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to an
amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the Group
transfers a good or service to the customer, the contract is
presented as a contract liability when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the Group’s
right to consideration that is unconditional or only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. Contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a

net basis.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Contract liabilities (Continued)

For the sale of properties, it is common for the Group to receive from
the customer the whole or some of the contractual payments before
the services are completed or when the goods are delivered (i.e.
the timing of revenue recognition for such transactions). The Group
recognises a contract liability until it is recognised as revenue. During
that period, any significant financing components, if applicable, will
be included in the contract liability and will be expensed as accrued
unless the interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

For the rental and property management fee income, the Group
receives payments from the customer which are largely in line with
the timing of revenue recognition and no significant contract liabilities
are recognised.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contributes to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial option pricing model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4T EETBERBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market condition
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the equity-settled award are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
capital. Where the equity-settled award are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group participates in a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
of its employees located in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, each of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group is required to participate in a retirement
benefit scheme organised by the local municipal government
whereby the Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions. Contributions
made to the defined contribution retirement benefit scheme are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24F BT EOREE ()
POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs 2%

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB because management considers that a substantial majority
of the group companies are in the PRC and the Group primarily
generates and expends cash in RMB. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker i.e. the executive directors for the purpose
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24F BT EOREE ()
POLICIES (Continued)
Segment Reporting (Continued) DEmE (&)

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Classification of operating lease — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases for
properties in its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are leased out as operating
leases.

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements of
HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances. In particular,
the Group assesses whether the contract involves the use of an
identified asset by applying the concept of substantive substitution
right. Also, the Group assesses whether the Group or the customer
has the right to direct the use of the identified asset with reference
to determination of which party has the decision-making rights that
are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset
is used. In cases where such decisions are predetermined, the
right to operate the asset or the incorporation of such decisions by
means of designing the asset are considered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is made by
management on determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or a property held for sale. The Group considers
its intention for holding the properties at the early development
stage of the related properties. During the course of construction,
the related properties under construction are accounted for as
properties under development included in current assets if the
properties are intended for sale after completion, whereas, the
properties are accounted for as investment properties under
construction included in non-current assets if the properties are
intended to be held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Upon completion of the properties, the properties held for sale are
transferred to completed properties held for sale and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value, while the properties held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are transferred to
completed investment properties and are subject to revaluation at
the end of each reporting period.

Whether the presumption that investment properties
stated at fair value are recovered through sale is rebutted
in determining deferred tax

The Group has investment properties located in the PRC which are
measured at fair value. Investment property is property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. In considering whether the
presumption in HKAS 12 Income Taxes that an investment property
measured at fair value will be recovered through sale is rebutted in
determining deferred tax, the Group has developed certain criteria
in making that judgement, such as whether an investment property
is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time or through sale. The presumption is rebutted
only in the circumstance that there is sufficient evidence such as a
historical transaction, future development plan and management’s
intention to demonstrate that the investment property is held with
the objective to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
over time, rather than through sale. Continuous assessments on the
presumption will be made by management at each reporting date.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Net realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The net realisable value of completed properties is determined by
management with reference to the selling prices of properties sold
in the ordinary course of business less selling expenses and the
prevailing market conditions on an individual property basis. The
net realisable value of properties under development is determined
by establishing the estimated selling price of the properties on
(i) an “as-if” completed basis with appropriate deduction on
construction costs, professional fees and interests to be incurred
from the valuation date to completion as well as the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale or (i) a direct comparison approach by
making reference to comparable land transactions as available in the
market. In estimating the total budgeted costs, management makes
reference to information such as (i) current offers from contractors
and suppliers; (i) recent offer agreed with contractors and suppliers;
and (jii) professional estimation on construction and material costs.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, the
carrying value and provision for properties in the period in which the
estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group are measured at fair
value, which were valued based on the appraised market
value by an independent professional valuer. The fair value of
completed investment properties was arrived at by considering the
capitalised income to be derived from the existing tenancies and
the reversionary potential of the properties or, where appropriate,
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the surrounding areas. The fair values of investment
properties under development are determined by establishing the
market values of the properties on an “as-if” completed basis with
appropriate deduction on construction costs, professional fees
and interests to be incurred from the valuation date to completion
as well as a reasonable margin. The determination of the fair
value for completed investment properties requires the Group to
estimate reversionary potential of the properties while for investment
properties under development, estimates on costs to be incurred
and future margin are required in the valuation.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 March
2022 was 615,800,000 (2021: RMB547,100,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement, are
stated in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

LAT in the PRC is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the
sales of the properties less deductible expenditures including land
cost, borrowing cost, other property development expenditures.

When calculating the LAT, the Group needs to estimate the
deductible expenditures and makes judgement on the relevant tax
rate on an individual property basis under the relevant applicable
tax laws and regulations. Given the uncertainties of the calculation
basis of LAT to be interpreted by the local tax bureau, the actual
outcomes may be higher or lower than that estimated at the end of
the reporting period. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the LAT expense and LAT provision in the
period in which the differences are realised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. ZEg&tH R &5 (&)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2022 was
RMB601,677,000 (2021: RMB752,682,000). Further details are
contained in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for trade
and other receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The estimation
involves high degree of uncertainty which is based on the Group’s
historical information, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade and other receivables. Details
of the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Allocation of construction cost on properties under
development

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Costs directly related to the
development of a phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to several phases are allocated to each
phase based on the saleable floor area of each phase as a
percentage of the total saleable floor area of the entire project.
The cost of the unit sold is determined by the floor area in square
metres sold multiplied by the average cost per square metre of that
particular phase of the project.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

Where the fair value of derivative financial instruments recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position cannot be derived
from active markets, they are determined using the valuation
technique of the binomial price model. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. The judgements include considerations of inputs such
as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to discount
future lease payments since interest rates implicit in the leases are
not readily determinable. In determining the discounts rates for
its leases, the Group refers to a rate that is readily observable as
the starting point and then applies judgement and adjusts such
observable rate to determine the incremental borrowing rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

4, REPHER

AEEESBEREEY  AXRBRE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are

organised by a mixture of both business lines and geography. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s executive directors for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

Operating segments Nature of business activities

HolE 2 M AR o ANSR B DA SRR SR B
TEEARERD BRI TG 2 AER
BEER—HZ2HA - 25 THIMER
EHDE o THIRI 2D BAEB A
LD ERFARRX ©

Place of operation

REDE Ak EXEMWE
Property development Property development and provision of The PRC

and management management service to property projects H

MEZHRIER MEER L RYFEERB RHEEERSE
Property investment Property holding for long term investment The PRC
LES -} and leasing purposes H

RAENEERAREMEIERSZ

The Group’s management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted
profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit/loss before tax except that bank interest income, finance
costs, fair value gains/losses from the Group’s financial instruments,
gain on disposal of subsidiaries as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, prepaid income tax,
derivative financial instruments and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, income tax
payable, the liability component of the Convertible Bonds and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REDPTHER (18)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-ZE-_—F=A=+—HLFE
Property
development and
management Property
MERRE investment Total
RER NERE Foh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMFR AREFR ARBFT
Segment revenue paniL6e
Sales to external customers IMRBEE N 98,051 14,052 112,103
Segment results PBEE 72,022 (92,770) (20,748)
Bank interest income SRITRIBIA 1
Finance costs BERA (62,458)
Change in fair value of derivative TEERIAL

financial instruments AEEE (44,879)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAFZ WG 64,348 - 64,348
Unallocated head office expenses FROBBHEE (15,438)
Loss before tax BREiBIEE (79,174)
Income tax s 22,214
Loss for the year FRER (56,960)
Segment assets: ﬁ”ﬁﬁE
Reportable segment assets IERNBEE 1,349,660 615,808 1,965,468
Deferred tax assets LURIE BE 17,363
Prepaid income tax BREH 9,257
Derivative financial instruments fTEEBTIA 9,709
Unallocated assets AOBEE 70,197
Total assets BEAE 2,071,994
Segment liabilities ﬁﬁﬁﬁfi
Reportable segment liabilties IERATEE 1,710,392 55,633 1,766,025
Deferred tax liabilities LURI,E aff 52,042
Income tax payable ERFEH 42,753
Liability component of the T#ﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁ )

Convertible Bonds 79,267
Unallocated liabilities ApEaE 87,366
Total liabilities afeas 2,027,453
Other segment information Hitp HER
Capital expenditure* BRRY* 24 - 24
Depreciation™ e~ 57 - 57
Impairment on trade and other receivables JEULE 587 & E At B RE 5,036 1,503 6,539
Reversal of properties under RERERTMERRZTERFE (20,733) - (20,733)

development to net realisable value
Write-down of completed properties BIEL EEERIE

held for sale to net realisable value WRZT2RFE 792 - 792



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, KEHER (F)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-_Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
Property
development and
management Property
NELRE investment Total
RER MERE @it
RMB000 RMB000 RVB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT
Segment revenue ikl 6
Sales to external customers SMRBERKE 142,055 11,281 153,336
Segment results (Restated) IR (KET) (334,318) (52,680) (386,998)
Bank interest income FITHEMA 1
Finance costs BERA (105,132)
Change in fair valug of derivative iTEE@IAY
financial instruments AREEZE (69)
Unallocated head office expenses FARBHES 16,701
Loss before tax BHAER (508,899)
Income tax i 6,300
Loss for the year FRER (515,199)
Segment assets: ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Reportable segment assets EHHHNEE 1,293,723 550,275 1,843,998
Deferred tax assets iJEUFJﬁﬁJX 13,524
Prepaid income tax BRMEH 6,067
Derivative financial instruments M’E%HME 22
Assets associated with disposal group ~ PEEAHELE 2 HEAR]
classified as held for sale FRZBE 334,018 - 334,018
Unallocated assets FRAREBE 83,652
Total assets BEAR 2,281,281
Segment liabilities ﬁ“‘ﬁﬁ{s
Reportable segment liabilities (Restated) ~ AI 2R/ & E (FEH) 1,492,841 61,608 1,554,449
Deferred tax liabllities LURIE@ 59,284
Income tax payable ERFTEH 67,595
Liability component of the HEREFBESS
Convertible Bonds 72,879
Liabilities associated with disposal group P 3B AZ{ELE 7 HEER)
classified as held for sale BlzBE 393,677 - 393,677
Unallocated liabilities FHEBE 98,304
Total liabilities (Restated) BEAHE(KET) 2,246,188
Other segment information At HER
Capital expenditure* BRRY* - 63 63
Depreciation™ wE 1,098 7,529 8,627
Impairment on property, mE - BEREERE
plant and equipment 2,873 778 3,651
Impairment on trade and other receivables JEUTE 587 % 4t Uz B RE 14,668 190 14,858
Write-down of properties under BERTMEMRETERFE 181,935 - 181,935

development to net realisable value
Write-down of completed properties BISEHEE ERNE

held for sale to net realisable value WHEAERFE 43,617 - 43617

* During the year, the head office did not incur any capital expenditure * FER @PUBELEFMNEARAL(ZE
(2021: nil) which represents additions to non-current assets. ——F &) BABERDEE-

** Included in unallocated head office expenses is depreciation of RO BEBIFAZIBRENEARK

RMB1,709,000 (2021: RMB2,601,000). 1,700000( = B = —&: AR

2,601,0007T) °
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEDEHER (&)
(Continued)

Geographical information wEER
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) IPREER W2
2022 2021
—E-C—F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
The PRC s 112,103 153,336
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the EXZWEERDERBE MG
customers. o
(b) Non-current assets (b) EREBEE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFIT
The PRC M 616,062 547,398
Hong Kong B 331 2,094
616,393 549,492
The non-current asset information above is based on the EXZIERBEEERNTIEREEM
locations of the assets and excludes the Group’s deferred tax EHEE - TEREASE ZIELEHIE
assets. BE ©
Information about major customers FREXEREFZ2EH
There was no sale to a single customer which accounted for over WERHE P ZHEMAEEBEEC
10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March T FRZT—F=A=+—HL
2022 and 2021. FERZEBIB10%HAE ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

5. Wz

H A R i

Revenue mainly represents income from the sale of properties,
rental income and property management service income.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from continuing
operations is presented below:

Revenue

WatE BIRHEMRKA - BEWAR
MEREERBEA -

HREEEEB 2 s - A RKE
DIT2HNIE -

Wz

Year ended 31 March 2022
HE-_B__F=F=1-HIEE

Property
development Property
and management investment Total
NERRRER NERE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R ARETR
Revenue from contracts with BERUBREEAE155%
customers within HKFRS 15: EET2RFENKE:

Sale of properties HEME 65,040 - 65,040
Property management service income  #1EEERBUA 33,011 - 33,011
98,051 - 98,051

Revenue from other sources: Htg &SRR -
Rental income HEWA - 14,052 14,052
98,051 14,052 112,103

Representing geographical markets of: ~ FTEMIETTH :
The PRC H 98,051 14,052 112,103
98,051 14,052 112,103

Timing of revenue recognition WatER 2 FE
- Atapoint in time - R 65,040 - 65,040
- Overtime - R 33,011 14,052 47,063
98,051 14,052 112,103
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. iz  Htg AR WKz (&)
(Continued)

Revenue (Continued) Wk (48)

Year ended 31 March 2021
BE-F--F=A=t-HLFE

Property
development Property
and management investment Total
NEERREE MERE @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT
Revenue from contracts with ERUBREEANE155%
customers within HKFRS 15: EETZEFAHNE
Sale of properties HENE 107,142 - 107,142
Property management service income  1EEERIBUA 34,913 - 34,913
142,055 - 142,055
Revenue from other sources: HtgE TR -
Rental income HEWA - 11,281 11,281
142,055 11,281 153,336
Representing geographical markets of: ~ FrigiiE ™5 -
The PRC e 142,055 11,281 153,336
142,055 11,281 153,336
Timing of revenue recognition WiasheR 2
- At a point in time - B 107,142 - 107,142
- Over time - BB —RERE 34,913 11,281 46,194
142,055 11,281 153,336
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. zm At AR Wz= (&)

(Continued)
Other income and gains H g A & =
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bi7E AR¥T T ARETTT
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B ARz W 30 64,348 =
Gain on revaluation upon transfer % & ¥R
of investment properties ZE AW 14 48,181 =
Reversal of write-down of B2 R R Y% 2 OB
properties under development 17 20,733 -
Other tax refund HEREIFRIE - 164
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 1 1
Sundry income FETEUA 1,347 1,293
Total other income and gains H U A Rk e 4858 134,610 1,458

. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6. BRBLAIE 1R

gk (GEA) THIEB R AEE 2 B

TiATEE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
Cost of properties sold EHEEMERR 48,115* 202,202*
Cost of services BRFG R A 26,154 27,304
Cost of rental HEKAK 6,011 8,339+
Depreciation e
— property, plant and equipment  — 473 - #ES KR 85 2,216
— right-of-use assets - (AEEE 1,681 9,012
Staff costs (including directors’ BINA(BRESEHE)
emoluments):
Salaries, wages and other benefits  #7& « BN & H b g5 22,787 19,289
Contribution to defined ATERNEET B2 K
contribution retirement plans 4,350 2,070
Total staff costs ET/HER 27,137 21,359
Less: Amount capitalised into B B EBRPYIE 2 FKIA
properties under development (1,805) (433)
25,332 20,926
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6. LOSS BEFORE TAX (Continued)

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting)

6. BrBLAIE 1R (R)

&Rk (GEA) THIE B R A S ERR T

(Continued): AR (88) -
2022 2021
—E-CF o Tl o
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETTT
Auditor’s remuneration: ZEMB £
Audit services ZHARTE 822 1,001
Other services EAth AR 329 505
Operating lease charges in respect REEIFASIE NI AEYE
of office premises and other MEMHEEE Y
leased assets under short term WEHERY
leases 2,745 1,497
Direct operating expenses arising  REEAHE WAL Y
from investment properties that CHEBELERY
generated rental income 110 460
Direct operating expenses arising  REZBEAHSRAZEME
from investment properties that CHEBELERY
did not generate rental income 27 59
(Reversal ofy/provision (B R ERE
for impairment on:
— Property, plant and equipment ~ — #73 - #2S KR - 3,651%**
— Goodwill -mE - 4,999"*
— Trade receivables - EURE BRI (116)*** 1,836+
— Other receivables - B U IR 6,655*** 13,022**
(Reversal of)/write-down of (B[R, EEERYERRE
properties under developmentto A &3RFA
net realisable value (20,733)**** 181,935
Write-down of completed HEHEH S B A W EMUR
properties held for sale to net EREIRFRE
realisable value 792* 43,617*
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX (Continued) 6.

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting)
(Continued):

* Included in cost of properties sold was the write-down of completed
properties held for sale to net realisable value of RMB792,000 (2021:
RMB43,617,000) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

** Included in the cost of rental for the year ended 31 March 2021 was
depreciation of the right-of use assets in respect of certain leased units
of the Group’s shopping mall in Baishan City, the PRC, in property
investment segment of RMB6,449,000 which was also included in the
depreciation as disclosed separately.

** These items are included in other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

*** This item is included in other income and gains in the consolidated

BrBLATE 1R ()

ek (GEA) THIRB R ASE 2B
HiATEE ()

* RABECZE A=+ —ALFE
ZEHEMERRNBERBIFELEBTEK
YRR Z Al B FE AR 792,000 7T
(ZF=—%F : AR¥43,617,0007T) °

* HABEZZE—F=ZA=1+—ALFE
ZHERNEMERE D T AEBAR
REH LT ZEDROETHAEM 26
BEAEITE AR 6,449,0007T © JFat
ANEBE R ITE

~ BHEBAGSBERRZAMMAXT -

BB RIAGE BRERZ HMKRARK

S o

A

statement of profit or loss. m
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BAE A
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Interest on bank and BITREMEEFS
other borrowings 66,333 96,142
Interest on Convertible Bonds AR E ST B 3,427 7,233
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFS 4,230 2,156
Other borrowing costs accrued ZUWEE FTEER K
on receipts in advance from 2 EAEERA
customers - 6,296
73,990 111,827
Less: Interest capitalised into B BRAPYEZERERE
properties under development* (11,532) (6,695)
Total finance costs BLE K A4 EE 62,458 105,132

*  The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 7.3% per annum
(2021: 7.3% per annum).
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM<

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the BIRE LR B R ESRQREH 2 R
Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong ELZAFEEEMSLOT -

Companies Ordinance is as follows:

2022 2021

—E-_F =Eg= 4=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Fees e 747 817

Other emoluments: Hibi

Salaries, allowances and e EMEEYR =

benefits in kind 3,485 2,833

Discretionary related bonuses [ EREFAN - 401

Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEIMHR 78 30

3,563 3,264

4,310 4,081
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM<E (&)
The remuneration of each of the directors for the years ended 31 HE_Z-_—_FNM_FT=_—F=H
March 2022 and 2021 is set out below: =tT—HUEFEREZMHEWT :
Salaries, Equity-
allowances, settled share Pension
and benefits option scheme
in kind Discretionary expense contributions
Fees #e . 28 bonuses NERLEE Bhe Total
ik RENFIE KEERA BRERY S @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’00
ARBTT ARMTT ABTT ABMTT ARBTT ARSTT
2022 “E-CE
Executive directors: #hES:
Oui Xintong (‘Ms. Cuf) &% ([ExL]) - 2,306 - - 15 2,301
Li Junjee Bl - 600 - - - 600
Xu Yingchuan 28| - 296 - - - 296
Cong Peifeng L - 283 - - 63 346
- 3,485 - - 8 3,563
Non-execufive diectors: ~~ FFH{TES :
Cui Mindong # ERR 10 - - - - 10
Sui Guangyi @ FEEZY 70 - - - - 70
140 - - - - 140
Independent non-execuve B FHR{TES -
directors:
Tsang Hung Kel LA 202 - - - - 202
Zhu Zuoan® KtEzb 133 - - - - 133
Wang Xiaochu B 202 - - - - 202
Wang Xueguang fEy 70 - - - - 10
607 - - - - 607
747 3,485 - - 8 4,310
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or RAFE - UEEHEZESRIEHRELR
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. In addition, ERETANE 2 LHE - ILHN - REE
no remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as an TEEEZSMEAME  MEARE
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as a compensation IREE Sk N AN L B 1% 2 SR B ok Bk B A (B
for loss of office (2021: nil). T F |
Notes: Btk -
(@) Appointed on 26 November 2021. @ RZE——F+—A=Z+AEZF-
(o) Resigned on 26 November 2021. (o) R=Z=Z—F+— A=+ BAEE -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM< (&)

The remuneration of each of the directors for the years ended 31 HE_ST_—_FM_F=-_—F=H
March 2022 and 2021 is set out below: (Continued) =+—HLEFESEEHEWT : (B)
Salaries, Equity-
allowances, seftled share Pension
and benefits option scheme
in kind Discretionary expense contrioutions
Fees e bonuses NEREE e Total
ik keI B RIER HELS by
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETR ARRTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

2001 “Eo-F
Executive directors: HEE:
Oui Xintong (‘Ms. Cuf) &% ([Ex L)) - 2378 384 - 16 2778
Li Junje ® e - 339 - - - 339
JiPing ® FRad - 104 - - 14 118
X Yingchuan o - 12 17 - - 2
LiuHongjan ¢ Zitslo - - - - - -
Cong Peifeng® E{L 190 - - - - 190
190 2,833 401 - 0 3,454
Independent non-executive  BUIH{TES :
directors:
Tsang Hung Kel LR 209 - - - - 209
Zhu Zuoan wMER 209 - - - - 209
Wang Xiaochu TEN 209 - - - - 209
627 - - - - 627
817 2,833 401 - 0 4,081
Notes: BisE
(@) Appointed as an executive director and also the chief executive officer () RZE_ZEFNANBEZTAENTES
on 8 September 2020. RATBABH, -
(b) Appointed on 10 July 2020 and resigned on 1 March 2021. b) RZE_EFLtATHEZEEN_ZE
——F=FA—HEE
(c) Appointed on 1 March 2021. ) RZZE=_—F=FA—HAEZE-
(d) Resigned on 29 June 2020. (d) RZEBE_ZEF AT NLHBE -
(e) Re-designated as an executive director on 1 March 2021. e R=Z=—F=F—AATARRITES -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES o.

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors (2021: two directors), details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining three (2021: three) highest paid employees who are
not a director of the Company are as follows:

hEBREHESR

RAFE IERSHEEREMEBE
F(ZE—F WBREF) BEZM
TRBEN EXMES  HSf=%(=F
—F ZR)AFARAERZHESH
BRERAFEEZMEFHBWT

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits ~ #4% 2R EYHR
in kind 2,600 2,672
Discretionary bonuses EYIBIEAL 81 209
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEME R 45 47
2,726 2,928

There is no arrangement under which the five highest paid
individuals waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year. In addition, no emolument was paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2021: nil).

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

TR WEREHEELETIHLX
RSz 28k - ttoh - K&
3 % A & = Fr R B S A fa] B
T MERBBEMBRMBAEEIL 2
RESBEREE(CT_—F &) -

MENFTIREcRFHIFEFRE
ABIT

Number of employees

EEAH
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7 7T
(equivalent to Nil to RMB895,000) (MHERZZE AR 895,0007T) 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,342,001 to ~ (HER AR 1,342,001 &2
RMB1,789,000) AR 1,789,0007T) 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T & 2,500,000 7 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,789,001 to ~ (BEM AR 1,789,001 7TE
RMB2,236,000) AR 2,236,0007T) - 1
3 3
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10.INCOME TAX

PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) has been provided at the
applicable income tax rate on the assessable profits in accordance
with the relevant tax laws applicable to the entities in the PRC. The
statutory CIT tax rate in the PRC is 25% (2021: 25%).

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the years ended
31 March 2022 and 2021 as the Group incurred a loss for taxation
purpose.

The Group’s subsidiaries are not subject to any income tax in
Bermuda, BVI and Samoa pursuant to the respective rules and
regulations.

Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) in the PRC is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds from sale of properties less deductible
expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and other
property development expenditures. The Group has estimated,
made and included in taxation a provision for LAT according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. Prior to the actual cash settlement of the LAT liabilities,
the LAT liabilities are subject to the final review/approval by the tax
authorities.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution of the
unremitted retained earnings of the PRC subsidiaries amounted
to approximately RMB24,775,000 (2021: RMB39,463,000). In the
opinion of the directors, these retained earnings, at the present
time, are required for financing the continuing operations of the PRC
subsidiaries and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, no provisions for deferred taxation have been
made in this respect.

10.Fr 18

PRI EMSH ([REMER]) ERE
PR EREE A BRI AR ERT
AR E AT S R R B - PED
EMERATMER2% (2T - —F ¢
25%) °

R AEBREBEE T -_—_F=AH
=+—BEkR=ZE=_—F=A=+—81
FEEAMKER BNTSEERZFE
BHEFIISTREE -

REARE EBEARTSREES
ZHEBRURAN - NEEHBEARH
ABHERIFTEH o

o B - b 3R (B A ([ 3 IR E AL |) R 3
EEF IR (AN E YR & A FR R
(BRIHRA - FERAEEMYER
BHI) R Z PISHIR) 1 F-30% £ 60%
M RERRFE - AEREERIEERBET
BB ERER 2 RE M REHEL
IBE G WA ANIE - RERIAIR
SENIHIBRERBEZA - LiEE
HEERKERTRER M -

HDEFBEMBARKEL ZREAHFZ
hET IR 2L A AR 24,775,000
T(ZZE = —F: AR ¥39,463,000
) EERAE BRIALZEREBR
FIERBESHREMBRARCHELES
© 0 WIEA] A RTAVEDBD o A b
FULVEHEE R TR o

2022 2021
—E-CF i e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Current tax: BIAEARH IR -
PRC CIT RSN 974 -
PRC CIT over-provided in RBEFEBREEE
previous years Hy R B 1b SEPTIS AR (7,094) =
PRC LAT A B - IR (E 14,190 5,619
PRC LAT over-provided in RBEFEBREEE
previous years AP B £ b I (E FY (19,203) —
(11,133) 5,619
Deferred tax EIERE IR (11,081) 681
Total (credit) charge ()T HaezE (22,214) 6,300
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

10.INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax at
the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e.,
the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

10.Fr &% (&)

UTABRAARRBAREXRZHME AR
AMAERZEER EEREAEM
EARBHRAERZ AR BRRE
B EREAE 2 BIRMAS 2 HR - ARR
RERTRE(ANEERR) BIZRERR
K E 2 IR 2 $15K

2022 2021
—EC_CE —E--F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETR % ARETFT %

Loss before tax BEipiEE (79,174) (508,899)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% IR E 25% 317 (19,794) 25 (127,225) 25
Expenses not deductible for tax ~ RA30FEI 11,888 (15) 49,354 (10)
Income not subject to tax BARTRA (21,378) 27 (1,392) -
Effect on overseas tax rate differences BIMiRZE 7 &% 5,371 7 2,044 -
LAT deductible for SRERRMER L

PRC CIT purposes AR BT (3,547) 4 (1,405) (1)
LAT THEER 14,190 (18) 5,619 (1)
Overprovision in previous years BEFERERRE (26,297) 33 - -
Tax losses not recognised REAREER 17,518 (22) 59,445 (12)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised {f &% A#Z 2

tax losses HEEE (535) 1 - -
Reversal of previously recognised BB AR 2

deferred tax assets ERVERE 370 - 19,860 )
Tax (credit) charge at the Group's ~ RAEE B =

effective rate FEZHE

(He)L i (22,214) 28 6,300 )
11.DIVIDENDS 1. E

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).
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12.LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based on
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the parent, and the
weighted average of 6,764,286,000 shares (2021: 5,760,349,000
shares) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted loss per share amounts is based
on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the parent. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used
in the basic loss per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:

12.5RER

BREAEBDIBESAREE AR
EFEREBEEFRDZHTRGD MEF
9 #16,764,286,000f%( = T = — & :
5,760,349,000 J%) 5+ & °

BREEBERNIREE RNREAR ARG
FABEFE - s EABZ EARIE
OB R EERERBERMAZFA
BEETEBREE URRERRRITENK
BIRMERESE N L BRAEAKRE
BERTEBBIETEE -

BREAREEER G ETER

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFIT
Loss BB
Loss attributable to owners N REEE AELEE
of the parent (56,960) (515,199)
Effect of interest on the liability FEHBRKREFAGES S 2%
component of the Convertible
Bonds 3,427 7,233
Effect of fair value loss on NABEBEYBRREFTESD
the derivative component k-5
of the Convertible Bonds 44,879 69
Adjusted loss attributable to B ARIHEB AL RAEEE
owners of the parent (8,654) (607,897)
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

12.LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:

12.8REHE (&)

BREARBEBBRZAETLTER

(Continued) (&)
Number of shares
BB
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
’000 ‘000
TR A%
Shares ;4]
Weighted average number of ordinary 5t & S E A EBATAFTRE 21T
shares in issue during the year BRI I B
used in the basic loss per
share calculation 6,764,286 5,760,349
Effect of dilution — weighted average #8572 — @R IIREF 19 8L -
number of ordinary shares:
Convertible preference shares AR RAE S I 439,353 1,157,983@
Convertible Bonds AR 5 110,652 103,485¢
Share options A —) —0)
Weighted average number of LB INREF T8 (H8)
ordinary shares (diluted) 7,314,291 7,021,817

(@) Because the diluted loss per share amount was decreased when
taking the convertible preference shares and/or the Convertible
Bonds into account, the convertible preference shares and/or
the Convertible Bonds had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
loss per share amount.

(b) Because the exercise price of the share options were out of the
money compared to the average stock prices of the Company
during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the share
options had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share
amount for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.
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13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13.45 - HBERRE

Furniture
and fixtures
and office
equipment Leasehold Motor
HE #£8 improvements vehicles Total
R ARE % AE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET R ARET TR ARBTR
2022 T
At 1 April 2021: i ——
mA—A:
Cost AR 12,472 7,870 1,759 22,101
Accumulated depreciation ZEHME (12,150) (7,870) (1,759) (21,779)
Net carrying amount EFRTE 322 - - 322
At 1 April 2021, net carrying RZE-—FMA
amount —B - ERFE 322 - - 322
Additions NE 24 - - 24
Depreciation e (85) - - (85)
At 31 March 2022, net carrying i
amount =t—-B REFE 261 - - 261
At 31 March 2022: i S—
SHET—E ¢
Cost AR 4,364 7,531 273 12,168
Accumulated depreciation ZEMER
and impairment loss RESE (4,103) (7,531) (273) (11,907)
Net carrying amount ERTE 261 - - 261
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13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)  13.4]3¢ - #38 Kk&fE (&)

Furniture
and fixtures
and office
equipment Leasehold Motor
FE B improvements vehicles Total
e £ AE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
2021 “E-—F
At 1 April 2020; RZE_ZF
mA—H:
Cost AR 12,580 7,900 1,759 22,239
Accumulated depreciation 25tE (8,759) (5,792) (1,557) (16,108)
Net carrying amount EFRTE 3,821 2,108 202 6,131
At 1 April 2020, net carrying RZZE-TFMA
amount —B REFE 3,821 2,108 202 6,131
Additions NE 10 53 - 63
Depreciation e (950) (1,126) (140) (2,216)
Impairment loss WESSE (2,554) (1,035) 62) (3,651)
Exchange realignment B A% ®) - - ()
At 31 March 2021, net carrying RZE-—F=f
amount =t-B RE¥E 322 - - 322
At 31 March 2021: RZBZ—%
SRS
Cost AR 12,472 7,870 1,759 22,101
Accumulated depreciation ZEER
and impairment loss REEE (12,150) (7,870) (1,759) (21,779)
Net carrying amount FETE 322 - - 322
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14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REWHE
2022 2021
—E-CF e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Carrying amount WZTZ—F /=T
at 1 April 2021/2020 MA—HZEREEAE 547,100 550,000
Transfer from right-of-use assets ¥ H AR EE 10,714 42,900
Transfer from completed properties 2 B 15 EH & 2 & W
held for sale 139,700 -
Net loss on fair DABERARFEE
value adjustment (81,714) (45,800)
Carrying amount i s S
at 31 March 2022/2021 —A=+—HZEEE 615,800 547,100
At 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group’s investment properties R ZFRZF_—F=R=+—

included certain units of a shopping mall in Baishan City, Jilin
Province. These investment properties were stated at fair value and
were valued by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited/
Savills Real Estate Valuation (Guangzhou) Limited Beijing Branch
(independent professional qualified valuers (the “Valuers”)).

During the year, the Group transferred certain completed properties
held for sale into investment properties with a total fair value of
RMB139,700,000. The carrying amount of these properties at the
date of transfer was RMB91,519,000. A gain on revaluation upon
transfer of RMB48,181,000 and the related deferred tax thereon of
RMB12,045,000 have been recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

Leasing arrangement - the Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group leases out certain units
of the shopping mall under operating leases with average lease
terms of 1 to 20 years. These leases do not contain renewal or
termination options.

Accounting policies of lease income from operating leases are set
out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

A AEEZRENEBRUNEMNE
AUmZBYHROETEMN - ZFRE
WMETIRASEBIE  WHBLEX
RERMGEMSE - K FEENGERE
EBERBRDF,BME - K TR
FHERLHFBAERATILERD AT
([RHEED ) T TIAME -

FRAEBRARNEBEALARE
139,700,000 7T & FHEL ECEX Y
XERZREYE ZEMENERA
HIRBRE B E 2 AR 91,519,000 7T °
REEZE-_E_—_F=A=+—HLTF
B - SR BN A R 48,181,000
TR AR BIRER A A R ¥ 12,045,000 7T

ERBmPER -
HEZH - ZEEFE/HBEA

REBYR - AEERBELEHEHLHE
ETEYPLEMG . FHEEHAE
205 - ZFEHES TESEME R ILE
i

RERKEHEZHERKAZS
R2.4

AR
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14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 141 &Y * (&)

Leasing arrangement - the Group as lessor (Continued)

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual value
at the end of the current leases, the Group typically entered into
new operating leases and therefore will not immediately realise a
reduction in the residual value at the end of the leases. Expectation
about future residual values are reflected in the fair value of the
properties.

Below is the maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments to be
received from the leasing of investment properties.

HEZH - AEEER[HAA (E)

BEAEEEGRBAE SRS HGE
ERBZAR  EAEERETIHE
SRE AU TERRSHATERESD
BERFSBERD - ARFAREIBE
2 AR 2 A RERR -

AT BEAREDE KR Z REERE
BB -

2022 2021

—EC-CF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T AREEFTT

Year 1 B—F 6,257 9,380

Year 2 F_F 4,081 4,582

Year 3 F=F 3,744 4,108

Year 4 FHF 3,472 3,372

Year 5 BRE 3,472 3,370

After year 5 hFE 18,453 21,794
Undiscounted lease payments HEURE 2 R BGIR AR E 15k

to be received 39,479 46,606

Leasing arrangement - the Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, certain investment properties
are held under head leases with the remaining lease term of
approximately 4 years (2021: 5 years). These leased properties
are shopping mall units in a shopping mall in Baishan in relation to
operating lease used for sub-leasing purpose. The lease contracts
do not impose restriction on the uses of the leased properties. The
Group is required to keep those leased properties in good state of
repair and return the properties in their original condition at the end
of the lease.

The total cash outflow in respect of the investment properties is
included in note 15(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 141 &Y * (&)

Fair value hierarchy AREBEER
The following table illustrates the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s TRENAEEBREMEZANEBEESE
investment properties: &

Fair value measurement as

at 31 March 2022 using
RAATHER-B=F
ZA=t+-BeAAEENE

Significant Significant

Quoted prices observable unobservable

in active inputs inputs

markets (Level 2) (Level 3)

(Level 1) EXABE EXFABER
ERMSHE BAYE BAHE Total
(B-#) (B=H) (B=4) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET R AR%TR ARETR

Recurring fair value RHERREY
measurement for: AREEHE:
Retail shops and car park spaces ~ ZEJE R EH{iL - - 615,800 615,800
Fair value measurement as
at 31 March 2021 using
RREATEHER 25
ZAZT-RZARERRHE

Significant Significant

Quoted prices observable unobservable

in active inputs inputs

markets (Level 2) (Level 3)

(Level 1) EYNGIE ERTAEE
ERETSRE BARE BAHE Total
(E—4) (F=R) (B=H) @it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL AEETT ARETT ARBTT

Recurring fair value REHEREY

measurement for: ARBEFE -

Retall shops and car park spaces ~ TEJERIZE(] = = 547,100 547,100
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements MAFEE  B—REF R BETER
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 AEEFTE EE - TR o s
(2021: Nil). BE=HAAEBAEFE(ZZE=_—F:

/) o
The changes in net unrealised loss for the year included in profit or SFARERPRIFTEZREMEZE
loss for the investment properties held at the end of the reporting B FAREREBEIHRETAEAR
period was RMB81,714,000 (2021: RMB45,800,000). 81,714,000 (ZE=—F: ARK

45,800,0007T) °
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143 EW (&)

ERTABEBABBEIELENRSE
=RARBEFEMBBERD ZER

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The quantitative information of the significant unobservable inputs

and the description of valuation techniques used in Level 3 fair value

measurement are as follows:

T

Fair value at Range (weighted
31 March 2022 & 2021 average, if applicable)
M=ZZZ%  Valuation §E
Description RZZEZ-F  techniques Unobservable inputs (T
R SAST-HZANEBE  fERS HERLDFTRERARE DEAR)
RMB'000
ARBTT
(1) Self-owned portion of retail shops 578,600 Income Capitalisation rate 3.75%-4.75% (2021:
located on basement (2021: 507,000) capitalisation &AL E 3.75%-4.75%)
Tandlevels 1105 (ZB=—% : 507,000) approach Market rent RMB32.00-RMB150.0
Guangze International Shopping Center, WAERE ik 7% (2021: RMB35.30-
Baishan City, the PRC RMB166.00) per
kBT EEREEY T O E—E square metre
R1Z5BZZEAEERTS 8.75%-4.75%
(ZZ=—-%:
3.75%-4.75%)
BTAAARES2007T
EARE150.007T
(ZZ=—-%:
AR®35.302
AE¥166.007C)
Car parking spaces located on Comparable Comparable’s RMB126,000 (2021:
basement 2 of Guangze market unit seling/asking RMB140,000) per unit
International Shopping Center, transaction price GEESf
Baishan City, the PRC approach ARz B AK#126,000 7T
BRI TERERENT OHEZE TSGR P EE/2E (ZB=-%:
ZfREf AR 140,0007T)
(2) Leased portion of retail shops located on 37,200 Income Capitalisation rate 4.50% (2021: 4.68%)
levels 1 to 3 of Guangze International (2021: 40,100) capitalisation  EALE 450% (=5 =% : 4.68%)
Shopping Center, Baishan City, the PRC (ZZ=—%:40,100) approach Market rent
il B R L TERERENP 123 WAERMEE [k RMB41.17-RMB102.93

TERERDHD
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(2021: RMB67.20-
RMB134.30) per
square metre
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14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Prevailing market rents are estimated based on the independent
valuer’s view of recent letting transactions within the subject
properties and other comparable properties. The higher
the comparable’s unit selling/asking price and the lower the
capitalisation rate/the higher the market rent, the higher is the fair
value. Reversionary yield is estimated by the independent valuer
based on the risk profile of the properties being valued. The higher
the yield, the lower is the fair value.

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s investment properties with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB442,931,000 (2021:
RMB507,000,000) were pledged to banks to secure certain of the
bank loans granted to the Group (note 23).

14.REWE (&)

Rirmsle HRBB (L ER L H
HEAMEREMALELMEAZHER S
ZERME - I AR EELEE
ZEMSREMERBE TEESH
= ARBERES ERKEXRTIHE
MEERRBR G EDE 2 RBRA R G
it o WamEfE - AREEYE -

R-E-_—_F=A=+—8 ' ~&£EE
H A E B AR 442,931,000 ( = F
——% : AR#507,000,00070) Z#&&
MEEBERTRT  (FAAEBERT
ATRITEFRZ IR (FIE23) ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

15.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

The Group as lessee

(a) Right-of-use assets

The Group leases certain shopping mall units in Baishan City and
office and other premises in Hong Kong. The leases have non-
cancellable lease terms ranging from one to three years. None of
the leases includes variable lease payment terms, extension and

termination options.

LEAEEEREERE

REBEREEA
(a) EREEE

AEEHEERLTZETEYHLE
RIRBEERAEREMYE - ZFH
EAANAIREEHEEGRK - BT
—E=F - EHERVEEEN
BRI~ R M AR IR IRHE -

Office and
other premises Shopping
WAE mall units Total
Hit% B EN @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Reconciliation of carrying amount BREEZHE - BZ
- year ended 31 March 2022 “ECC-EZB=+-HLEE
At 1 April 2021 RZE-—FWA—H 2,070 - 2,070
Additions e - 10,714 10,714
Derecognition upon subleases PR BEREMERL LRR
classified as investment
properties - (10,714) (10,714)
Depreciation il (1,681) - (1,681)
Exchange realignment 5 AR (57) - (57)
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZF=A=1-H 332 - 332
At 31 March 2022 R-E-—F=A=1—H
Cost KA 6,702 - 6,702
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (6,370) - (6,370)
332 - 332
Reconciliation of carrying amount [REEZHE - BZ
-yearended 31 March 2021  —Z-—-§=fA=1+-HALFE
At 1 April 2020 RZZE-ZFNA—H 4,948 6,449 11,397
Additions = - 44185 44,185
Derecognition upon subleases HEDRRHRENERR LHED
classified as investment
properties - (44,185) (44,185)
Depreciation Vil (2,569) (6,449) (9,012)
Exchange realignment 5% (315) - (315)
At 31 March 2021 R-E-_—F=fA=1—H 2,070 - 2,070
At 31 March 2021 R-E-—F=H=1—H
Cost KA 6,702 - 6,702
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE 4,632) - (4,632)
2,070 - 2,070

No gain or loss of revaluation (2021: loss of RMB1,285,000)
was recognised in the statement of profit or loss at the date of
reclassification from right-of-use assets to investment properties.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A
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15.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LEAREEREESE (B)
LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBEERAFABA (E)
(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a) EREEE (&)
Restrictions or covenants PR 5 R 255
Except for the lease of shopping mall units in Baishan that is REEEESE BT ZEBYH L
allowed for sublease, most of the leases impose a restriction BN - BRIERBHAAARLE - TAI
that, unless approval is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use RNESDHERTERS] - ERAEEEE
asset can only be used by the Group. The Group is prohibited AEREEGER - AEETBHED
from selling or pledging the underlying assets. The Group is EITEEEE - A5EERZSWE
required to keep those properties in a good state of repair and REFRITHESIKR - WA E 4 RS
return the properties in their original condition at the end of the BRERAARRA R BIZEYE -
lease.
Lease payments HER
The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year: REBCRAFEERRATRE -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Lease payments: MERH:
Short-term leases HRE 2,745 1,497

Expenses recognised in profit ~ MBRFER 2 B

or loss 2,745 1,497
Lease payments: MERE

Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEZHE 4,230 2,156

Repayment of lease liabilities  EEHEEE 14,452 28,532

18,682 30,688

Total cash outflow for leases HER R LA 21,427 32,185
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

15.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Commitments under leases

At 31 March 2022, the Group was committed to RMB175,000
(2021: RMB1,061,000) for short-term leases.

LEAEEEREESE (F)

FEBE/EBAA (E

(a) EREEE (4
HEREE

&)

R-ZE-_—_F#=ZA=+—H ' K&
B 5 58 HAfE S e AR % 175,000 7T
(ZZ——4F : ARK1,061,0005T) °

(b) Lease liabilities (b) HESE
2022 2021
—EBE-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR#EFIT
Lease liabilities HEaE
Current portion BIHEAER > 12,646 12,246
Non-current portion FEBNERER 28,487 32,682
41,133 44,928
16. DEFERRED TAX 16. E LR 1R
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year AFEEEEMBEBEREEZZBHMN
are as follows: ™
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAE
Depreciation
allowance
and fair value
change of
investment
properties
REYE
WERER Prepaid tax Total
AREELE FEBiE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREFIT AREFIT
At 1 April 2020 RZE-TFIOA—H 69,505 2,684 72,189
Credited to profit or loss &t Az (10,750) (885) (11,635)
Reclassified as disposal BN AEEHRE 2
group held for sale HE AR - (1,270) (1,270)
At 31 March 2021 R-ZE-_—F=A=+—H 58,755 529 59,284
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE—_—®mA—H 58,755 529 59,284
Credited to profit or loss st AE# (6,789) (453) (7,242)
At 31 March 2022 R-ZE-_—F#=A=+—H 51,966 76

HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A
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16. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

16. IR FEBLTH (4])

Deferred tax assets BEREEE
Deemed
profit Impairment
for pre-sales losses Total
RAEFEERF BEEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTT ARET T
At 1 April 2020 RZZEZZFMHA—H 8,014 17,826 25,840
Credited/(charged) A (R E) B
profit or loss B3ilD (12,631) (12,316)
At 31 March 2021 RZZE-_—4F=A=+—H 8,329 5,195 13,524
At 1 April 2021 RZZE_—FMA—H 8,329 5,195 13,524
Charged to profit or loss 1k B 183 198 3,641 3,839
At 31 March 2022 R-ZZE-__F=A=+—H 8,527 8,836 17,363

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the

following items:

WAL TH)E B ERZBEEHBEE

2022 2021
—E-CF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T AREETFTT

Tax losses HiIEEE 601,677 752,682

The above tax losses are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose
except for tax losses of RMB231,903,000 (2021: RMB446,285,000)
that related to subsidiaries operating in the PRC that can be offset
against future taxable profits of the respective subsidiaries for a
maximum of five years from the year in which the losses were
incurred of which RMB19,262,000 (2021: RMB45,399,000) will
expire in the following year. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of the above items as it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the

above items can be utilised.

A EFREE B n R ER A LA SE EE AR °%
EEBZ AR BRERBEF - HH
R B E W E A RMERECHIEEBBA
R #231,903,000( =T =—F : A
R ¥ 446,285,000 7T ) 7] A 1E K 54 1A B8
MEARBRERERTRT - AHEES
BRCFERHRZLFE ERAR
19,262,000 (ZE=-—5F: ARKE
45,399,0007C ) &R BAF EIHA o lR A
NAIRBIA LSRRI R] AR S A L18
BZERB RN - WARBIA ETHE R
EEFIHEE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

17.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND 17.BRHYERSFHESEK

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE L3
2022 2021
—E__F —E - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Properties under development BREAYE 2,125,264 1,962,791
Completed properties held for sale  #{EHE D &R 163,890 295,284
2,289,154 2,258,075
Write-down of properties under BEERERSELE
development and completed BRI EMIR E Al IR FE
properties held for sale to
net realisable value (1,026,310) (1,046,251)
1,262,844 1,211,824
2022 2021
—E__F —E - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Properties under development ZREFY% AR¥T T AREFIT
Properties under development TEHIR E B EEER I DA
expected to be completed MBEEZBRAPYE -
within normal operating cycle TEETR T 5 B Lk el -
and classified as current assets,
are expected to be recoverable:
Within one year —FR 2,072,112 1,865,096
Over one year —F R 53,152 97,695
2,125,264 1,962,791
The Group’s properties under development and completed REBM AP BREPYERFED
properties held for sale situated in the PRC are stated at lower of EEERMEZRK ARSI FE IR
cost and net realisable value and held on leases between 40 and 70 EESNE - WANF40FE70F 2
years. AFFE
At 31 March 2022, certain of the Group’s properties under RZEZZF=H=+—H0 ~&ES
development and completed properties held for sale of Bl A& A K #665,600,000T( - = —
RMB665,600,000 (2021: RMB644,800,000) and RMB8,069,000 £ A R #644,800,0007T ) X A R
(2021: RMB11,034,000) respectively, were pledged to banks to #8,069,000L(ZTE=—F: AR¥
secure certain of the bank loans granted to the Group. 11,084,0007T) K& T BB R YW E RF

EHEDERMEEERTIRT  (FR
REBERTETRITERZER -
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17.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

The movement of the write-down of properties under development

NBRPYWERFEHESER
W (&)

FA - BERTPOERFIEHEDENX

and completed properties held for sale to net realisable value during VISEMORZ Al IR FE 2 FEh T -
the year is as follows:
2022 2021
—EC-CF =EE =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFTT
At 1 April 2021/2020 R-_ZE——F /—ZF_ZTFNPA—H 1,046,251 943,848
(Decrease) increase in ORt D) $EANMOR < JFE
the write-down, net (19,941) 225,652
Reclassified as disposal EROBEARELE 2 LEHA
group held for sale - (123,149)
At 31 March 2022/2021 WNZZE——F /T
=A=1+—H 1,026,310 1,046,251

In estimating the net realisable value of a project in Fusong County,
Jilin Province of the PRC (“the Fusong Property Project”), the
management has engaged an independent valuer to carry out
an independent valuation on a bare land basis and based on a
direct comparison approach by making reference to comparable
land transactions available in the market, which is consistent with
that for the previous financial year end (i.e. 31 March 2021). A
reversal of write-down of RMB20,733,000 relating to the Fusong
Property Project was made in current period as a result of a slight
improvement in the general market and the government’s vigorous
promotion in the development of ski resort market.

TEREFTHPEEHEENE—EEE ([
MEMEIRR ) <R FEK B
BEERE—EB U (AEMETEILG
B BB HELS AR EREEST
WIRBEEELEE 2 M5 LAIERS
WA LR TR 5 - iR ER L |
FHRFERBIZE_—F=A=+—
H)FTABN—5 - BRNERTISKENRSE
RBRANHEBSBERESERTS © 1§
B R A HAR AE L B B R H E T
B <~ MU B A REE 20,733,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

18. BN E 5 B & H Atk R UL IR

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BoaE ARET T ARBETTT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RR 20,679 19,512
Less: provision for impairment W ORERE (5,575) (5,691)
(a) 15,104 13,821
Other receivables: Hoh YRR
Deposits for land THBERASY 2ES
development expenditure (b) 22,095 22,095
Deposits for construction and BENBEEB Z2EE
pre-sale of projects (c) 6,741 6,741
Prepaid business tax and TEfTE %R R EMTBIIR
other taxes 36,352 15,367
Other receivables, prepayments Hhpedesoa - 181
and deposit RIE R e 46,323 45,936
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (d) (70,934) (64,279)
40,577 25,860
Total trade and other receivables  JEURE 5 BR 7 K H b fE UL F0I8
e 55,681 39,681

(@) In respect of property sales, no credit terms are granted to
purchasers. For property investment and property management,
the respective rental income and property management income
are settled in accordance with the terms stipulated in the
agreements, most of which are settled in advance. In particular,
sufficient rental deposits are received to minimise credit risk.
The carrying amounts of the receivables approximate to their fair
values. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, trade receivables are primarily

related to revenue recognised from the provision of property
management service and leasing of properties.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(@ (Continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) by the invoice date as at the end of the reporting

18. BN E 5l & At BRI

()

(@) (BB)

RERPRZ BWE 5B (R
RRIRRE) RERBM2 2 RIK

period is as follows: DL -
2022 2021
—E__F T 1
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Within 30 days 30K 1,610 1,813
31 days—180 days 31 RXE180K 8,033 5,917
Over 180 days B8 180K 5,461 6,091
15,104 13,821

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

TR SERI RS L IRRE 2 BRE

PIRRZ RE DT

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Neither past due nor impaired 1 £ 8 EiskEE - 29

- 29

Less than 30 days past due BHEIS0 B AT 1,610 1,784
Over 30 days and less than #HI30 B A E{B180 HIATR

180 days past due 8,033 5917

Over 180 days past due #HI180 H A E 5,461 6,091

15,104 18,792

15,104 13,821
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18.FBUt & 3 AR X & H ftb B UL IR

(@ (Continued)

Movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are

(#&)
(@) (8&)

BN E ZIRSUREREEEIT

as follows:
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
At 1 April 2021/2020 R_ZE——F /—ZFT-_ZTFNPA—H 5,691 4,135
(Credited)/charged to profit or ~ FA (5T A) /KB
loss during the year (116) 1,836
Reclassified as disposal ENOBEARHEZLEAR
group held for sale - (280)
At 31 March 2022/2021 RZBZZF /ZT=—F
=—A=+—H 5,575 5,691

(b) The balances represented monies advanced to the local
government for land development works at land sites. The
Group will be reimbursed for the amount advanced to the local
government in carrying out the land development irrespective of
whether or not the Group will obtain the land use rights of the
land in the future.

(c) The balances mainly represented various deposits paid to local
government authorities directly attributable to the construction of
property projects which would be refundable upon completion of
the development projects.

HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(d) Movement in provision for impairment of other receivables are as

follows:

18.EWNE B IR K

()

H R YRR TE

(d) EfpRUGRRREREBZZESHT

2022 2021
—E__F =ege—GEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
At 1 April 2021/2020 R /T _ZTFPA—H 64,279 308,802
Charged to profit or loss RERIG BB
during the year 6,655 13,022
Reclassified as disposal BN EAREHE 2 HEHRR
group held for sale - (257,545)
At 31 March 2022/2021 RoE-——F /T —F
=A=+—H 70,934 64,279
Further information about the Group’s credit risks on other BHEASEHEMEUIBEER R 2

receivables is included in note 35 to the consolidated financial

statements.

19.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

—HEREREGRE ﬁﬁ%i&%ﬁ#ﬁ 35 °

VRERASEZEYURCER

PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS R ZREFER
2022 2021
—EC-CE —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BifsE AR¥ET T ARET T
Cash and bank balances R MRS 100,747 126,653
Less: Restricted bank deposits B HEEMEERL
under pre-sale of properties IR HISRITIER (@ (7,596) (8,715)
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR eEED 93,151 117,938
Cash and cash equivalents DERFEHEMARES
attributable to disposal group Be KB EEY
classified as held for sale - 396
As stated in consolidated RiFERERERTIE
statement of cashflows 93,151 118,334
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

19.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS
(Continued)

(@ In accordance with relevant policies issued by the PRC local
State-owned Land and Resource Bureau applicable to all
property developers, the Group is required to place certain of the
proceeds received from the pre-sale of properties as guarantee
deposits for the construction of the properties. The restriction will
be released when the construction is completed. The restricted
cash earns interest at floating daily bank deposit rates.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB34,968,410
(2021: RMB52,041,815). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

20.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

VREFRASEEYURCER
RZRE 7R (&)

(@) RIEFEMTBELERBBRMERR
PrE BRI 2 HABCR - A&
B/ LI E Y FEWE 2 B TS
RERBEEME 2T o ZRHHERN
TR TRSERRRR - ZRRFIVSILF
BE B RITERNRRIF LS -

REFRAR  2EEUARBTEZR
& RIRTTHES B AR 34,968,4107T(=
T-—F: AR®52,041,8157T) © A
RETGEHEBRAEMER - A
IR R Bl HNE B 1R 50l LA R A5 - B &
RNEERRE  AEEEEEBER
R EINEEF 2 BITHARELIRA
Hib B -

20. BN E B RAREMENTRE

2022 2021

—E-CF B

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

BisE ARET T ARET T

Trade payables e B ZERM 57,850 56,587
Accrued construction costs TEIRE LKA 284,075 271,097
Interest payable FERTFILE 60,996 94,571
Other creditors and accruals HibEFRIERETER 53,277 48,995
Other deposits received BREMES 25,678 35,960
481,876 507,210

(@ An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

(@) REHMRZ ENEZRAIILERH
25 2 R D ITAA T

2022 2021

—=2-_— —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFTT

Within 30 days 30~ 2,252 &} 62
31 days—-180 days 31 RE180K 24,742 19,929
Over 180 days B8 180K 30,856 23,031
57,850 56,587
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21.CONTRACT LIABILITIES PAR=E =N

2022 2021

—EC-CE =ET —kE

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

BsE ARBTR ARBTT

Deposits from sale of properties ~ $HEWHEZ & @) 371,944 216,718
Receipt in advance from FEWE R ER

management services (b) 12,025 11,192

383,969 227,910

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract liabilities
from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are

FR - REEEMBEREEINF 15T
Fa#tWamzaMaEEs (T EERF
IBREL 8T

as follows:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR#EFIT
At 1 April 2021/2020 RZTE=Z—F /ZT=FTFMA—A 227,910 234,526
Additions NE 220,412 172,371
Recognised as revenue R AW (64,353) (68,978)
Reclassified as liabilities associated E# D38 A EHE 2
with disposal group held for sale £EHBZ&E - (110,009)
At 31 March 2022/2021 N-ZZB—_—F /T
=A=+—H 383,969 227,910

At 31 March 2022, the amount of transaction price which is
allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied,
expected to be satisfied within one year and more than one year are
RMB377,297,000 (2021: RMB183,127,000) and RMB42,490,000
(2021: RMB95,573,000) respectively. The amounts included the
contract liabilities as disclosed above.

At 31 March 2022, the contract liabilities that are expected to be
settled after more than 12 months are RMB38,261,000 (2021:
RMB88,530,000).

RZBE-_—E=A=+—8 2BEEX
BITZBAREZRSERCEELRY
AR —FAR—FREER 2RAAR
# 377,297,000 L(ZE=—F : AR¥
183,127,0007T) & A R 42,490,000 7T
—T-—F: AR 095573,0007T) °
SAEHEBE BN EXHE -

RZTEZZF=H=+—0  EHRE
BT—ARARZEEZENBERAR
# 38,261,000 (=T =—F : ARM
88,530,0007T) °
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21.CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) N.EHNEE(E)
The Group received payments from customers based on billing AEERBMEHEIHEGLHNME 2
schedules as established in the property sales or rental contracts. HEREREIRERPARK - NFBER
Payments are usually received in advance of the performance under BHIBITZ BIUER o

the contracts.

(@) Deposits from sales of properties represent contractual (@ HEMEZICERIEETREDE
payments received from customers in connection with the BEPUWEZ SHESLIFIE - %52
Group’s pre-sale of properties. The deposit will be transferred to TSR AN E B A IR o HErR I HE Ry 8 R
profit or loss when the Group’s revenue recognition criteria are EiEs -
met.

(b) Receipt in advance from management services represent the (o) W EBEERISEFIEMYEETIETRW
property fee received in advance for property management. The ZWEER o BYFIESR A S E R/
receipts will be transferred to profit or loss when the Group’s G ERERR R 185 -

revenue recognition criteria are met.

22.LOANS FROM A CONTROLLING 2 —BERBRRER
SHAREHOLDER
Loans from a controlling shareholder are unsecured, interest-free —HBERBRRERBEER 28 KA
and repayable on demand. REREEE -

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A



23.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

BRTREMER

2022 2021
—EC-CE = =
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARBTR ARBTT
Current BER
Bank loans — secured IRITER - KA () 130,697 130,897
Other loans — secured HEMER - B (ii) - 17,600
Entrusted loans ZEER (i), (iv) 290,000 300,000
420,697 448,497
Non-current JERNER
Bank loans — secured IRITE - HIEHE () 290,897 351,593
290,897 351,593
711,594 800,090
2022 2021
—E__F —E - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
Analysed into: RV
Bank loans and entrusted AR T EfEERE 2 8ReT
loans repayable: BEREEFTEN
Within one year or on demand —FRFIRE K 420,697 430,897
In the second year FEF 61,897 60,897
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-EZFAFT (BREEENT) 229,000 290,696
711,594 782,490
Other borrowings repayable: ARTHHREECEMEE -
Within one year —FK - 17,600
711,594 800,090

Annual Report 2021/22 44 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
o=

BAFS R M RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

23.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

U

Included in the secured bank loans as at 31 March 2022 are loan balances
of RMB70,000,000 (31 March 2021: RMB70,000,000), RMB113,794,000
(81 March 2021: RMB170,690,000), RMB231,000,000 (31 March 2021:
RMB232,000,000) and RMB6,800,000 (31 March 2021: RMB9,800,000)
bearing interests at a fixed rate of 7.83% per annum, a fixed rate of 5.39%
per annum, a fixed rate of 7.3% per annum and a fixed rate of 7.6% per
annum respectively.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the bank loan of RMB70,000,000
is secured by the 70% equity interests of a connected party. The
bank loans of RMB113,794,000 and RMB231,000,000 are secured
by pledges of the properties under development with carrying values
of RMB477,000,000 and investment properties with fair value of
RMB438,900,000 respectively. The bank loan of RMB6,800,000 is
secured by the pledges of the completed properties held for sale with
carrying amount of RMB8,069,000 and investment properties with fair
value of RMB4,031,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the bank loan of RMB70,000,000
was secured by the 60% equity interests of a subsidiary. The bank
loans of RMB170,690,000 and RMB232,000,000 were secured by
pledges of the properties under development with carrying values
of RMB462,500,000 and investment properties with fair value of
RMB507,000,000 respectively. The bank loan of RMB9,800,000 was
secured by the pledges of completed properties held for sale with
carrying amounts of RMB11,034,000.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A

B RITREAMBEER (&)

B =E -

RZE-_—_F=A=+—8  BEHFR
TE B E &8 A K 70,000,000
T(ZEZ—F=ZA=+—H: AR
70,000,0007T )+ A R #113,794,000
T(ZEZ—F=ZA=+—H: AR
170,690,0007T )+ A & % 231,000,000
T(ZEZ—F=ZA=+—H: AR
232,000,0007t) & A R #6,800,000 7T (=
T-—&E=f=+—A: AR#09,:800,000
70) PRI RIREE FFIF7.83% - REEF
FIF5.39% - REFE FFE7.3% RIZEFE
EFR76%:TE -

BE-_Z-_—_F=-A=+—HBLLEE R
TER AR 70,000,000 7T i — [ B &
REZT0%RIEMERI - IRITERARE
113,794,000 7T} A IR ¥ 231,000,000 7T
2 5 h BRI {E A R 477,000,000 7T 2 %
B E R A EEARE 438,900,000
T2 EMEEER - MBITERARE
6,800,000 7T A & I {& A K % 8,069,000
TZEHEHEEERMERAAEBEBAR
4,031,000 7T 2 & B VI AEHEA -

BE-_Z-—4F=ZA=+—HBLLEE &
TER AR 70,000,000 7T i — & B
N Z60%BRIEMEIEI - IRITERARE
170,690,000 7T } A IR ¥ 232,000,000 7T
2 5 eh BR TE (B A R 462,500,000 7T 2 %
B R AR EEARE 507,000,000
TZIREWMEEER - RITERARE
9,800,000 7T F1 BR 1B A R #5 11,034,000
T2 HEHEBER R o



23.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i

(iv)

During the year, the secured other loan of RMB17,600,000 bore interests
at a fixed rate of 12% per annum. The loan was guaranteed by personal
and corporate guarantees of certain connected parties of the Group.
The loan was fully settled in November 2021.

The entrusted loans as at 31 March 2022 are loan balances
of RMB100,000,000 (31 March 2021: RMB100,000,000) and
RMB190,000,000 (31 March 2021: RMB200,000,000).

During the period, the entrusted loan of RMB100,000,000 bore interest
at a fixed rate of 8% and was secured by properties under development
held by the Group with carrying amount of RMB188,600,000 as at 31
March 2022 (31 March 2021: RMB182,300,000).

The entrusted loan of RMB190,000,000 (31 March 2021:
RMB200,000,000) bore interest at a fixed rate of 10% per annum (31
March 2021: 12% per annum) and was secured by a second charge of
properties under development with carrying amounts of RMB665,600,000
as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: RMB644,800,000), and was
guaranteed by corporate guarantees of certain group companies of the
Group.

As at the date of this report, the lender has agreed not to demand
repayment of the entrusted loans of RMB100,000,000 during the
renewal process of the loan.

B RITREAMWEER (&)

BsE - (&)

(i)

()

FR - AHEBEME R AR 17,600,000
TURETEFFERA12%:TE - ZEREBA
FEETREATIREZ AARRRER
EER - REREN_E-_—F+— A8

=E
/B °

- —F=A=+—HZZTAEREE
R AR B 100,000,000 (Z 2 = — 4
=A=+—8: AR%100,000,0007T) &
A R#190,00000(ZE=Z—F=A
=+—H : AR¥200,000,0007T) °

B - ZFEE R A R 100,000,000 7017
BETEFHE8%tE  WAR T
= A=+—HEmERARE 188,600,000
T(ZEZ—F=ZA=+—H0: AR
182,300,000 7T) 2 B R AP VSRR -

L EHARE190,000,0007T (= =—
F=H=+—H8: AR #¥200,000,000
T BB EENEI0%(—E-—F=A
=+—H 12%)FE - WARZTZZF
= A=+—HkRmER AR 665,600,000
T(ZEZ—F=ZA=+—H0: AR
644,800,0007T) Z ERFME 2 E —H
MEBAEE EEQ AR EERE
BR-

HEAHRESAY  BEAERENEEHRR
Ng ESR{EE AR 100,000,000 T2 &
EEX -
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24.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 2A.{TAEERT AR JRKRES

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Convertible Bonds (“CBs”) due in 2021

On 27 July 2016, the Company issued an aggregate principal
amount of HK$500 million (equivalent to approximately RMB430
million on the issue date) convertible bonds which are due on 26
July 2021 (the “CBs due in 2021”) as part of the considerations
in respect of the acquisition of Ka Yun Investment in 2016 (“Ka
Yun Acquisition”). The CBs due in 2021 are convertible into the
Company’s ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.85 per share subject to adjustments. The interest rate
is 2% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears each year before
the maturity date.

The conversion rights are exercisable at any time from the date of
issue of the CBs due in 2021 up to the maturity date of 26 July
2021, provided that any conversion does not result in the public
float of the Company’s shares being less than 25% (or any given
percentage as required by the Listing Rules).

The CBs due in 2021 are not transferrable without the prior written
consent of the Company.

The Company may at any time before the maturity date redeem
the CBs due in 2021 (in whole or in part) at 100% of its principal
amount.

The Company has not early redeemed any portion of the CBs due in
2021 during the year.

On 29 March 2017, the CBs due in 2021 in the principal amount of
HK$212,500,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB188,211,250 on
the conversion date) were fully converted into 250,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.85 per
share.

On 27 October 2017, the CBs due in 2021 in the principal amount
of HK$199,537,388 (equivalent to approximately RMB169,447,150
on the conversion date) were fully converted into 234,749,867
ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.85
per share.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A

—F_—FHHABRES ([ AHERE
ZJ)

RZE—RF+AZ++H " AQAE
77 7K & 42 %8 /5 500,000,000 7 7T ( 74 %
17 B BiFEE R 49 A R ¥ 430,000,000 7T )
YW —_—FtAZ+/,NHEHZA]
BRESF(ZE—FRHPIREKE
1) EBZE—RFRBREERES
RAR([KBKREEE]) ZHBHRE -
TE—FIHHTRRES TR SR
WRBER0.858 L (A FHE) BRAR
RAEREE.0S B LY LB - 7
EH2%  EREIHBRIAENERTE
FIf—IR -

M B —F - —F R BRRES
HITHHREERIHMA (-2 —F+t
AZ+]B) L HIRBERTTEE - ATIRRIE
RSB BA R B 2 AR
RN 25% (K LR AR E 2 E 5
EANL) °

“E--FIHTBBREFTIEERE
AABELREMRE NEE -

RAFAREPAAEREZERNSER
100% R — T - —FH B HRES

(2B °

FA - ARAAERAERERE D Z
T —FRHRBEIES

RZZE—+tF=FA=1+hIB £A&EA
212,500,000 7T (FHEREHRBHAR
#188,211,2507T) 2 — T = —F H[HIA]
BIRER HIREIRETR0.85 B TEE
ZEE i 5250,000,000 % A A 7B

RZB—+E+A-_++B ~28EA
199,537,388 & 7T (IHERNBHRHANDAR
#169,447,1507T) 2 —F = —F H|HIA]
BIREH HIREIRETR0.85 B TEE
B 5034,749,867 IR A A R BAY o



24.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Convertible Bonds (“CBs”) due in 2021 (Continued)

On 26 July 2021, the CBs due in 2021 in the principal amount
of HK$87,962,612 (equivalent to approximately RMB74,249,241
together with the accrued interest of HK$15,114,118 were
settled by the provision of a loan from controlling shareholder of
HK$103,076,730. Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 26 July 2021.

CBs due in 2023

On 14 December 2021, the Company completed the issue of an
aggregate principal amount of HK$103,076,730 (equivalent to
approximately RMB84,283,059 on the issue date) convertible bonds
to Ka Yik Investments Limited (“Ka Yik”), the controlling shareholder,
which are due on 13 June 2023 (the “CBs due in 2023”) and may,
subject to the controlling shareholder’s written consent that shall
not be unreasonably withheld, be extended for another eighteen
months by notice issued by the Company at any time during the
three months prior to the maturity date by serving at least thirty
days prior written notice to Ka Yik in the event that the Company’s
directors are of the reasonable opinion that the redemption of the
CBs due in 2023 on the maturity date will result in the Group not
having sufficient working capital for the operation for the next twelve
months. The CBs due in 2023 are convertible into the Company’s
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.39 per share subject to adjustments. The interest rate is 2%
per annum payable semi-annually in arrears each year before the
maturity date.

The conversion rights are exercisable at any time from the date of
issue of the CBs due in 2023 up to the maturity date, provided that
any conversion does not result in the public float of the Company’s
shares being less than 25% (or any given percentage as required by
the Listing Rules).

The CBs due in 2023 are not transferrable without the prior written
consent of the Company.

The Company may at any time before the maturity date redeem
the CBs due in 2023 (in whole or in part) at 100% of its principal
amount.

The Company has not early redeemed any portion of the CBs due in
2023 during the year.

8 TEEMTARTRRES

—F_—FHHABRES ([ AHERE
Z1) (&)

R-_ZE-_—F+HA=-+,"B K48
587,962,612 T(HHERH AR
7424924170 ) 7 —E — —F B EiA[ R
R EHERERTFE 15,114,118 LE
75 18 177 % A% SRR i & 50 108,076,730 7%
TLZ NS o E— T FFIBEN A QA
BEA-ZE-_—HF+A -+ BZRE-

—F - FHH AR E

RZZEZ—F+-A+WMA - ARF%E
BRIAEBRBERREREFRAA(R
52 ]) BITARS 8% 5103,076,730 78 7T
(FE:7T B BB E 4 AR ¥ 84,283,059
TR T -=FEA+=B2H2>
AMBRES (- =F3HaHRk
B&]) MRARREZAERERE
HAELE T - —FHaBRRESS
BYRALETETHEBESHERR
+oEAEEFER  AEEEEIERR
REMAEETSEBEENBRT
RAT A EEREIEE AT =18 A B pEss
HREFEERI=ZTEELEERRAE
FfRENMERTN\EA - —BE==F
FIH AR ES RO SRR ESR
0.3978 7T (7] T %) @it AKX AR HEE
0.05 B2 LR - FREE2% - AR
FIEREAIA RN EFEFE I —K o

MR B —F - = F R RRES
BTRAYEEERHA L HMERTT
% - AERETMERINEEHA QR
MZRABFRREERN25% (3 LHRA
MEZEMFEEA L) °

—E_=FIHARREFTRERE
ARRELEERE TEE

AAR A REI B ERTRER IZ L R4 %8
100% fE R — T — = F R R EFH
(ZEpekEn) ©

FR - AR A ELR B T[S0 2
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24

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Convertible Bonds

The CBs due in 2021 and the CBs due in 2023 are referred to as
the “Convertible Bonds”.

Accounting treatment

The Company’s early redemption right attaching to the respective
Convertible Bonds are considered not closely related to the liability
component of the respective Convertible Bonds; and therefore,
these embedded features have been accounted for separately and
classified as derivative financial instruments according to HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments.

On the basis that the conversion options of the Convertible
Bonds will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount for a
fixed number of equity instruments, the respective Convertible
Bonds are accounted for as compound instruments according
to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The deemed
proceeds, after the fair value of the early redemption right features
are bifurcated, have been split into between a liability component
and an equity component. The residual amount, representing the
value of the equity component, is credited to “Equity component
of the Convertible Bonds” in the Group’s equity attributable to the
Company’s shareholders.

After initial recognition, the Company’s early redemption right
features classified as derivative financial instruments are remeasured
to their fair value at each period end using the binomial pricing
model. The liability component of the respective Convertible Bonds
are subsequently carried at amortised cost.

At the date of conversion, the carrying values of the liability
component of the respective Convertible Bonds and of the early
redemption right features are transferred to equity.

Up to the date of maturity of the Convertible Bonds, if the bond
holder had not exercised the conversion option of the Convertible
Bonds. The equity component of the Convertible Bonds are fully
transferred to retained earnings. The early redemption right features
classified as derivative financial instruments would be derecognised
on the same date.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A
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24.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Early redemption right features of the Convertible
Bonds

The movements in the Group’s early redemption right features
classified as derivative financial instruments measured at fair value
are as follows:

UMEESMTIARTRRES
()

AR ES 2R EE RS

DEREAREBEMEZITESHTA
ZAKERATEEESEEFHMT

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBFIT

At 1 April 2021/2020 R-Z——F /T _TFNYA—H 22 96

Additions upon issue REITRAE 54,721 -

Derecognition at maturity date  FAEIHA B 48 [ #E 2 (21) -

Fair value change DAEEE (44,879) (69)

Exchange realignment T& 54 (134) ()

At 31 March 2022/2021 R-T——F /T —F=A=+—H 9,709 22
Liability component of the Convertible Bonds aRREFEEHS

The movements of the liability component of the Convertible Bonds
in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

REA TR R 2 TR ES B EE0
DEBIT :

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETFT
At 1 April 2021/2020 R_ZT——F /T _ZFMNA—H 72,879 355
Accrued effective interest JESTERFI S 3,427 7,233
Accrued coupon interest BERE RS B 2 FERT R A 2
transferred to interest payable - (1,530)
Additions upon issue EITIBRNE 78,728 -
Settlement through the loans E’\ | HA B 3@ sk
from a controlling —ZPERIR R ETEE
shareholder at maturity date (72,921) -
Exchange realignment I H T (2,846) (5,979)
At 31 March 2022/2021 R_E_—_—F —T——F=H=+—H 79,267 72,879
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24.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 24.
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Liability component of the Convertible Bonds
(Continued)

The imputed finance cost on the liability component of the
Convertible Bonds is calculated using the effective interest method
by applying effective interest rates per annum. The effective interest
rates of the CBs due in 2021 and CBs due in 2023 are 10.73% and
7.21% respectively.

Equity component of the Convertible Bonds

The movements of the equity component of the Convertible Bonds
in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

TEEMIARATBRRES
(%)

gBRESFEERS (&)

AMBESAERD 2 HERE KA
RERMZZRERFMNEHE - —F
—FAHRBRRES R T =FE
HIR A 7 < BB MR D 583 10.73%
}7.21% °

AR E S SR

AR B RIS 2 I R AR F i 2 &P
DEEIT

2022 2021

—E-CF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARETTT

At 1 April 2021/2020 N-ZE——F /—ZFT-_ZTFNYA—H 40,368 40,368
Transfer to retained profits at M E|HHEE = RE HF

maturity date (40,368) -

Additions upon issue REETTIFE B 60,276 -

At 31 March 2022/2021 R-T——F /T —F=RA=+—H 60,276 40,368

As at 31 March 2022, the remaining principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds was approximately HK$103,076,730 (equivalent
to RMB83,611,720) (2021: HK$87,962,612 (equivalent to
RMB74,249,241)). Should the conversion rights attaching to the
CBs due in 2023 be exercised in full, additional 264,299,307
ordinary shares would have been allotted and issued, which
represent approximately 3.9% of the issued share capital of the
Company at 31 March 2022.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A
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25.SHARE CAPITAL 25, fg 2%
Number of
ordinary shares Nominal value
EERYE HE
'000 HK$'000 RMB’000
T AT ARETTL
Authorised: RZE .
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SREE0.05 B2 @ 15,600,000 780,000 684,000
Issued: B#f7:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SREE0.05 BT, EAR
At 31 March 2022 R-B--f#=Zf=+-H 6,764,286 338,214 292,554
At 31 March 2021 R-Z--F=A=1+—-A 6,764,286 338,214 292,554
26. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES 26. FJ IR B IR

On 27 July 2016, the Company allotted and issued 4,539,352,941
Convertible Preference Shares (“CPS”) at an issue price of HK$0.85
per share to Ka Yik, a company beneficially owned by Ms. Cui, for
satisfaction of part of the consideration in respect of the Ka Yun
Acquisition, being an aggregate amount of HK$3,858,450,000
(RMB3,320,582,000).

Key terms of the CPS are as follows:

(1)

©)

)

The CPS shall not confer on the holders thereof the right to
receive notices of, or to attend and vote, at the general meetings
of the Company, unless a resolution is to be proposed at the
general meeting which if passed would vary or abrogate the
rights or privileges of holders of the CPS.

Holders of the CPS have the right to convert each CPS, during
the conversion period, into ordinary share(s) of the Company
at the CPS conversion price. The holders may exercise the
conversion right, provided that any conversion of the CPS does
not result in () the CPS conversion shares being issued at a
price below their nominal value as at the conversion date; or (ii) if
immediately after such conversion, the public float of the shares
being less than 25% (or any given percentage as required by
the Listing Rules). The ordinary shares of the Company when
allotted and issued upon the exercise of the conversion right of
the CPS shall rank equally among themselves and pari passu in
all respects with the ordinary shares of the Company in issue on
the date of allotment and issuance.

The CPS cannot be redeemed by the Company or the holder of
CPS.

The CPS is transferrable subject to the conditions stated in the
terms of the CPS and in accordance with the provision as set
out in the Company’s bye-laws.

WZ_Z—XRE+A-F++tH AR
AR BT EER0SSE THRE(H
BELLTEDZHAZ AR ) B KRET
4,539,352,941 A& A R I8 ST A% ([ AT 3R A%
BER])  UENRBRBSEEZHS
1B - B4 %8 4 3,858,450,000 7% 7T ( A
¥ 3,320,582,0007T) °

AR B ST R Z BN

(1) AAEER TS T ERA AW
BEXHEARBDBERAGENE L
REZHEN - FRIEBERBRAE £
RERBRE(MEEB) BSEFT SRR
BR AT 2 AR ST B B A MR R S
1 -

(2 AIMAEERRAE A RRNERAR
AR B S IR B K S A A R
BARBRANAREBR - FAA
AITEER A - M ATRRE R (T
(SR NSER () AHRRE TR 2 8
BRORERERERAH EES
BIREETT k(i) MEREAREERE -
DNBRITRE DN 25% (K ETHRAR
EZEMEEBALL) - RAERKRE
TR B T TE M B R ETT 2
ARRIEEE  BESHESERE
RN BITERERTZARR LA
BEBREERM -

(@) AR 2T A A2 Al L T
TN

(4) PIHARR R ST AR AT 4% IR AT R AE o BRI
TR 2 164 AR YR AN 2% A AR A1 AT 88
ZIE T LA -
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26. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES 26. TR B R ()

(Continued)

Key terms of the CPS are as follows: (Continued)

(5) CPS shall confer on the CPS holders the right to be paid, in
priority to any return of assets in respect of the ordinary shares
of the Company, pari passu as between themselves an amount
equal to the aggregate notional value of the CPS plus all
dividends accrued and unpaid with respect thereto, whereupon
if the assets of the Company available for distribution shall be
insufficient to provide for full payment to holders of the CPS, the
Company shall make payment on the CPS on a pro rata basis
on return of capital on liquidation, winding up or dissolution of
the Company. The CPS do not confer on the holders of CPS any
further or other right to participate in the assets of the Company
upon liquidation, winding up or dissolution of the Company.

Subject to compliance with all applicable laws and the bye-laws
of the Company, each CPS shall confer on its holder the right to
receive an accrued and cumulative fixed dividend commencing from
the date of the issue of the CPS on a yearly basis at a rate of 0.2%
of the nominal value of HK$0.05 of each CPS outstanding in priority
to any dividend in respect of any other class of shares in the capital
of the Company, payable annually in arrears. However, the CPS
holder(s) has unconditionally and irrevocably waived the receipt of
such preferred dividend.

The CPS is classified as equity instruments in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements with the following considerations:

(@) The CPS holder(s) has unconditionally and irrevocably waived its
right to receive the preferred distribution; and as such, the Group
does not have a contractual obligation to deliver cash or other
financial assets arising from the issue of the CPS. Therefore,
there is no liability component of the CPS.

(b) The conversion options of the CPS will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount for a fixed number of equity
instruments.
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26. CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2022, 439,352,941 CPSs (2021: 439,352,941
CPSs) remained outstanding. Should the conversion rights
attaching to the remaining 439,352,941 CPSs be exercised in full,
an additional 439,352,941 ordinary shares would have been allotted
and issued, which represented approximately 6.5% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2022.

27.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

The summary of the Scheme’s key terms is as follows:

(1) Purpose To recognise and acknowledge the
contributions or potential contributions made
or to be made by the participants to the
Group or any entity in which the Group holds
any equity interests (the “Invested Entity”),
to motivate the participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit
of the Group or the Invested Entity, and to
maintain or attract business relationship with
the participants whose contributions are or
may be beneficial to the growth of the Group
or the Invested Entity.
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27.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 27.[B PR REST B (4])
The summary of the Scheme’s key terms is as follows: (Continued) STEIFZRRCBENT - (8)
(2) Participants Share options may be granted to the () &8mE EhEDR T2 HE
participants, being: & 5
(a) any person being an employee (including @ AR B SALfATH
any executive director), officer (including B AR EMIRE
any non-executive director and ER 2 EE(RIE
independent non-executive director), WITEE) 5l
substantial shareholder, consultant, agent, AB(BREEMIE
professional adviser, customer, business WITESERB

partner, joint venture partner, strategic
partner, landlord or tenant of, or any
supplier or provider of goods or services
to, the Company or any subsidiary or
any Invested Entity, or any trustee(s) of a
discretionary trust of which one or more
beneficiaries belong to any of the above
mentioned category(ies) of persons, or any
company beneficially owned by any of the
above mentioned category(ies) of persons;
or
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27.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The summary of the Scheme’s key terms is as follows: (Continued)

(2) Participants

(8) Total number
of shares
available for
issue

Share options may be granted to the
participants, being: (Continued)

(b) any other person who the Board may
determine in its absolute discretion, has
made valuable contribution to the business
of the Group or Invested Entity based on
his performance and/or years of service,
or is regarded as valuable resources of
the Group or the Invested Entity based
on his work experience, knowledge in
the industry and other relevant factors,
or is expected to be able to contribute to
the prosperity, business development or
growth of the Group or the Invested Entity
based on his/its business connection or
network or other relevant factors.

137,145,000 shares, being 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of
refreshment of the scheme mandate limit on
14 September 2016 and being 2.03% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date
of this annual report.
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27.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The summary of the Scheme’s key terms is as follows: (Continued)

(4) Maximum
entitlement
of each
participant

(5) Option period

(6) Minimum period
for which an
option must
be held
before it can
vest

(7) Payment on
acceptance
of option

In any 12-month period:

@)

for each grantee, not exceeding 1% of the
aggregate number of shares for the
time being in issue (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options);

for substantial shareholders and
independent non-executive directors, not
over 0.1% of the number of shares then
in issue and not having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million (including
options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding); unless separately approved
by independent shareholders at general
meetings.

A 10 years’ period commencing from the date

as specified in the grant letter and expiring on

the earliest of the last day of the said period

or such time as specified in the Share Option

Scheme and/or the grant letter.

No minimum period before the options can be

exercised unless otherwise imposed by the

Board at its absolute discretion.

HK$1.00 in cash to be payable on acceptance

within 21 days from the date of grant.
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27.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 27. [ IR pE T &l (&)

The summary of the Scheme’s key terms is as follows: (Continued) FEIEEGRRZBENT - (8B)
(8) Subscription To be determined by the Board and shall be 8) REEE BHEZSET B
price at least the highest of: ZEBRELATIN=
ERIESSE
(a) the closing price of the shares as stated @ REHERELAR
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations H(EREXR)E
sheet on the date of the grant of the RETE WK TE 2
option, which must be a business day; AR T (E
(b) the average of the closing prices of the (o) PAZREIR RS 4
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s 2 BEART A AL %
daily quotations sheets for the five BE A FT B 3RE AT
business days immediately preceding the Egvdianscl ]
date of the grant of the option; and B R
(c) the nominal value of the shares. (©) P EE -
(9) Life A period of 10 years commencing on 5 (9) HARR H-Z—Z-FNAA
September 2012 (being the date on which the B (B ETEIA H)
Scheme is adopted) and expiring on the tenth REET T EI 2 BARR -
anniversary of such date, i.e, 5 September BERZBHR+BEF
2022. (—Z=-——FhAAH

B) & fEm

Annual Report 2021/22 44 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

27.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the share options granted under the

2.8 (/)

RIBEH B 2 BB AR 2 R R AR 1 4n

Scheme were as follows: I
Number of share options
BREHE
As at Exercised Forfeited/ As at
1 April during  lapsed during 31 March Exercise price per
Grantees 2021 the year the year 2022  Date of grant period ™! share option
R=B=-% Fly WIB-ZF ShERE
ARA MA-A ENTfE Bh/%%  =ZA=t-H RHAH frfegmen it
HK S
BT
Employees EE 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 0.980
18/06/2024
2,840,000 - - 2,840,000 18/04/2016 18/04/2016 - 0.980
17/04/2026
Others e 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 0.980
18/06/2024
5,400,000 - - 5,400,000 24/10/2014 24/10/2015 - 1.200
23/10/2024
7,550,000 - - 7,550,000 18/04/2016 18/04/2016 - 0.980
17/04/2026
Total B 51,790,000 - - 51,790,000
Notes: MIaE -

1. For the share options granted on 19 June 2014, 100% of the share
options became exercisable from 19 June 2014.

For the share options granted on 24 October 2014, 50% of the share
options became exercisable from 24 October 2015, and the remaining
50% of the share options became exercisable from 24 October 2016.

For the share options granted on 18 April 2016, 30% of the share
options became exercisable from 18 April 2016, 30% of the share
options became exercisable from 18 April 2017 and the remaining 40%
of the share options became exercisable commencing from 18 April
2018.
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27.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 27. [ IR pE T &l (&)

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme FRRBFTEIRARITEZ BRENT ¢
during the year:
2022 2021
—EC-CE —BE--fF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
shing BmE
FHTRE BREHE FHATRE EREHA
HK$ '000 HKS '000
per share per share
BT T BT T
QOutstanding at 1 Apri RIA—BRFTE 1.0029 51,790 1.0037 52,070
Exercised during the year ENTRE N/A &R - N/A TEF -
Lapsed/Forfeited during the year A%/ 78 % N/A REA - 1.1371 (280)
Outstanding at 31 March W= A=+—BHRTE 1.0029 51,790 1.0029 51,790
Exercisable at 31 March R=A=+—HA¥7E 1.0029 51,790 1.0029 51,790
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RERARERITEBREZITHEER
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: TIEEAAT -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Number of options Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
BREHE EREER BRITEE 17 H
HK$
per share
BT
2,319,000 2,319,000 0.98 18/04/2016 — 17/04/2026
3,459,000 3,459,000 0.98 18/04/2017 — 17/04/2026
4,612,000 4,612,000 0.98 18/04/2018 — 17/04/2026
36,000,000 36,000,000 0.98 19/06/2014 — 18/06/2024
2,800,000 2,800,000 i{p20 24/10/2015 — 23/10/2024
2,600,000 2,600,000 1.20 24/10/2016 — 23/10/2024
51,790,000 51,790,000
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27.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2.8 (/)

No share option expense was recognised during the years ended
31 March 2022 and 2021 as all the above share options had been
fully vested in prior years.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted, was estimated
as at the respective dates of grant using a binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

HE_FT-_—_FK_FT=-_—F=H
T+ HUIEFE VTERIERER
SR B ERERBEFESR
SR o

ERLUARGEEZBREALEEN
RoAAREEEEAYKEERRLE
Bt Z IR AR IR I B R b B HI
ite TRIVHMEREZBAER -

Date of grant

REAH
19 June 24 October 18 April
2014 2014 2016
ZE-MF —E-mF ZE-RE
~ATNE +A=1+mA mA+N\E
Dividend yield (%) BREE (%) 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility (%) TREDKIE (%) 49.89% 49.12% 57.34%
Risk-free interest rate (%) BERAE (%) 2.02% 1.75% 1.26%
Expected life of share options (year) BREEHFH(F) 10 10 10
Fair value at measurement date (HK$) R EBZAREEET) 045 0.39 0.34
Weighted average share price (HKS) IETRRE (BT 0.98 0.91 0.78

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 51,790,000
(2021: 51,790,000) share options outstanding under the Scheme
and all of the outstanding share options are exercisable. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 51,790,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of RMB2,071,600 (before issue expenses)
which represented approximately 0.77% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.
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28.RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the consolidated financial
statements.

() Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

(ii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for foreign currency translation.

(iii)Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose from the capital
reduction in May 2006, which consists of share capital reduction
and cancellation of the entire amount of the share premium
account of the Company as at 31 March 2005. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company
shall not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of the contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that (a) the Company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (b) the
realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less
than its liabilities.

(iv) Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
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28.RESERVES (Continued)

(v) Other reserves

28. 7% (48)
(v) HAvfEdE

2022 2021

—E-CF —E—F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

M=t ARBT T ARBFT

Merger reserve &S (@) (3,316,856) (3,316,856)
Deemed capital contribution 8 {EH EREMHE

reserve (b) 58,382 58,382

Others HAth 4,692 4,692

(3,253,782) (3,253,782)

(@) The merger reserve represents the difference in the fair value
of the consideration paid to Ka Yun in respect of the Ka Yun
Acquisition and the carrying amount of the net assets of the
Ka Yun Group at the date when the Ka Yun Group became
under common control of the ultimate shareholder of the
Company.

(b) The deemed capital contribution reserve represented the
derecognition of the listed equity investment and gave rise to
a gain on disposal of RMB58,382,000 during the year ended
31 March 2019 which was considered as deemed capital
contribution from the Company’s controlling shareholder.

(vi) Statutory reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, each of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group is required to transfer 10% of its after
tax profit, calculated in accordance with the PRC accounting
standards and regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserve can be utilised, upon approval of the
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase
registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries, provided that such
fund is maintained at a minimum level of 25% of the registered
capital.
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29.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Other than disclosed elsewhere, the Group has the following
contingent liabilities:

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of
property units developed by subsidiaries of the Group that provided
guarantees to secure obligation of such purchasers for repayments.
As at 31 March 2022, guarantees amounting to RMB378.0 million
were given to banks with respect to mortgage loans procured by
purchasers of property units (as at 31 March 2021: RMB790.9
million). Such guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issuance
of the real estate ownership certificate to the purchasers and (i) the
satisfaction of mortgage loans by the purchasers of properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for
repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks
and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title and possession
of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee period starts from
the dates of grant of the mortgages. During the year, the Group did
not incur any material losses in respect of any of these guarantees.
The directors consider that the likelihood of default in payments
by the purchasers is minimal and therefore the financial guarantee
initially measured at fair value is immaterial. Also, in case of default
in payments, the net realisable value of the related property units
would be sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage loans
together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore no
provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.
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30.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 26 February 2021 and 4 June 2021, the Group entered into
a share transfer agreement and a supplementary agreement
respectively to dispose of the entire equity interests in Ground Real
Estate Group Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“Ground Real
Estate”) to two connected parties at a consideration of RMB1.0
(equivalent to approximately HK$1.2). The major classes of assets
and liabilities of Ground Real Estate have been classified as held
for sale which were measured at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell as at 31 March 2021. The disposal
transaction was completed on 23 June 2021. The details are as

30. i E KB A 7

RZE-_—F_A-+"BR-T=_—
FRAMNA - NEB S RIFT R EE
kAT RE  WHEBEHESE
BRHERARIREWB AR EZi
ElTMEBEATZHBRE REA
ARBAOTEERN128TT) - BE
MEzFTEEERBEANN-_ZT=_—
FZRA=T—HEYEARBELEZH
SRV IR AR QS EER T EK
RAzBEEFE - HEXFERZE
Z—FXRAZT=ZB%K - BEEFBW

follows:
T
RMB’000
ARETTT
Net liabilities disposed of: FrHEFEaE
Completed properties BEHEBEXME
held for sales 208,912
Trade and other receivables FEME 5 8RR R E A FE W R IE 97,946
Prepaid income tax B PTISH 6,346
Pledged and restricted deposits 2 K3 & SR $l 175K 1,932
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEeEFEY 2,074
Trade and other payables FEAST B 5 8RR Ie At JE A< R IR (120,682)
Contract liabilities AHBE (102,969)
Loans from a controlling —ZIE R R R E R
shareholder (103,420)
Bank and other borrowings IRITREMEE (51,000)
Income tax payables e PTIS TR (2,217)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIHAE (1,270)
(64,348)
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30.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 30. HEME A F (&)

RMB’000
ARET T
Cash consideration BHR(E 7
Cash and cash equivalents BHERERIACEEY
disposal of (2,074)
Net outflow of cash and cash RekBEeEEMRLFE
equivalents (2,074)
RMB’000
AREEFTT
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HE&M B X 7 2 i3 :
Consideration received R E -
Net liabilities disposed of Fr&EFarls (64,348)
(64,348)
The gain on disposal of subsidiaries is included in the other income HEMBARKEETAGREGERRZ
and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 5). E A A Rz (FEEs) ©
31.COMMITMENTS 31.7KIE
Commitments for development expenditure BEMB ZEE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the REBRE2MIPRE AT EAFSE -
reporting period:
2022 2021
—EB-CF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Contracted, but not provided for: 2 2] 4B R4 -
— Properties under development - 2R Y 7,300 25,300
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS RNEBEALIZRS

(a) Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial Q)RR EMBRREMIBHAMEEE
statements, the Group had the following significant transactions N REBRFERNEFEATENAT

with related parties during the year: BARS :
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

() Entities controlled by aclose () AQAIZARALR EEREE
family member of a B FTES 2 BES -
controlling shareholder of

=

the Company:
Service expenses paid ENR%EE 148 -
Rental expenses paid: ENEEMAXL
— a motor vehicle - ¥ 178 188
— office premises R VNES 698 698
Building management fees paid: ~ EfTAEERE :
- office premises /N /ES 40 40
1,064 926
() The related party transactions in respect of service () FHiFRBHY  BeAIEKR
expenses, rental expenses and building management fees EEBEMPREEANTZHI
above also constitute continuing connected transactions B ETRAIE1AAZFTREZ
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The service FERERS - RBEHAx - He
expenses, rental expenses and building management fees A RREBEERE EMHRA
were exempted from the reporting announcement and FUAEERCETHRE  AE
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant MBI RRERBLERRTE o
to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
(i) A controlling shareholder (i) ADEHERRARER -
of the Company:
Coupon interest on AMREFZEENE
Convertible Bonds 3,427 1,530
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32.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) NEBFEATZRE (&)

(b) Key management personnel L) EEEEAE
2022 2021
—E-CF SEE T =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT
Compensation for key EEBABZHM(BRENTAAT]
management personnel, EERETHREFREE ZHIE

including the amounts paidto  (RAKIFE8 R 9HE®E)) a0 T :
the Company’s directors and

certain of the highest paid

employees, as disclosed in

notes 8 and 9, is as follows:

Fees we 747 817
Other emoluments: Haie -
Salaries, allowances and e EMEEDN =
benefits in kind 6,611 6,424
Discretionary bonuses B TEAL 81 609
Pension scheme contributions 3EREE| 4Rk 246 180
6,938 7,213

Total compensation paid to key 1 FEEEIE A B3R BH4EZE
management personnel 7,685 8,030
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

33.NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33.AZEHEREXRMEE
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (e EmETHMELE2EEES

activities
Interest Liability
Loans from bearing bank component of
a controlling and other the Convertible
Lease shareholder borrowings Bonds
liabilities —£2R SRR TRRES
HEaE RREH REMEE BEHD
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 April 2021 RZFEZ-F
MA—A
As previously stated BEEH 44,928 121,415 800,090 72,879
Prior year reclassification BEFEENERE
adjustment (note 2.1) (PizE2.1) - (48,800) - -
As restated e 44,928 72,615 800,090 72,879
Net cash flows BemeEFE (18,682) 176,880 (88,496) -
Exchange realignment BN R (57) (3,314) - (2,846)
Interest on lease liabilities HEREFE 4,230 = = -
New leases HHE 10,714 = = =
Accrued effective interest JESTEIRRES - - = 3,421
Issuance of CBs duein 2023 ~ —Z =~ =4 E|Haj#
REFHET - (84,283) - 78,728
Settlement of CBs due in 2021 &= —FZ|#n[#
through the loans from HXE%\EA@JH:@ =
a controling shareholder BEERN 2
at maturity date IRRRETES - 72,921 - (72,921)
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZF
ZA=1+—-A 41,133 234,819 711,594 79,267
At 1 April 2020 RZZZF
A —H 29,593 105,891 866,187 73,155
Net cash flows RenETE (30,688) 76,864 (15,097) =
Exchange realignment B AR (318) (6,720) - (5,979)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBETE 2,156 - - -
New leases g 44,185 = = =
Accrued effective interest J‘&‘ﬁr‘i%ﬂ - - - 7,233
Interest paid classified as PEREER S
operating cash flows MELENHE - - - (1,530)
Reclassified as disposal EMNBARE
group held for sale & 2 HEET - (103,420) (51,000) =
At 31 March 2021 KRB
=A=1t—H 44,928 72,615 800,090 72,879
(b) Major non-cash transactions b)EEHFRERS
() During the year, the Group acquired assets by means of () RAEFEE AEBERREER
lease arrangements in respect of assets with a total capital WREBEERNEBEAARK
value at the inception of the leases of RMB10,714,000 (2021: 10,714,000 c( — = —F : A
RMB44,185,000). R¥44185,00070) 2 & E LM
B ABEEEE -
(i) The proceeds from the CBs due in 2023 issued on 14 iy KERZ=_E=_—F+=-A+HMA
December 2021 of HK$103,076,730 was set off against the BTz T - = F | BRE
loan from a controlling shareholder. % 2 FT1S 7K 103,076,730 78 7T

ERAREHE —RERRRERK
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34.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF U.€ETAZAAEBERAAE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BEER
Financial instruments by category BRERE 22/ IA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial HEEWMHAR  SEemITAZREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT
2022 —E__F
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial
assets
at fair value Financial
through profit assets at
or loss amortised cost
EAREE RBERA
TAB#Z L] Total
SREE SMEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR N AR¥ET
Financial assets included in STAEUE S AR TR N H Ath fE
trade and other receivables WHIEz &MEE - 19,329 19,329
Derivative financial instruments T4 &I T A 9,709 - 9,709
Pledged and restricted deposits = ## & 5 [R $l173% - 7,596 7,596
Cash and cash equivalents BeNREEEY - 93,151 93,151
9,709 120,076 129,785
Financial liabilities SRIEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Bi7g: 3 DR
SIBR 2
SHas
RMB’000
AR®T T
Financial liabilities included in trade &t AJERTE 5 BRER K H b fE T 5 I8
and other payables ZERBE 481,876
Lease liabilities HEAE 41,133
Liability component of ARk ESaEE D
the Convertible Bonds 79,267
Loans from a controlling shareholder —& 3% B& I B & 37X 234,819
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 711,594

1,548,689
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34.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial instruments by category (Continued)

UVEMTECAABERAIAE
BEER(E)

wRERES M A (&)

2021 B —fF
Financial assets TRIEE
Financial
assets
at fair value Financial
through profit assets at
orloss amortised cost
BAREE biig: S TN
FTABHZ Gl Total
SRAE SREE 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NS ARETFT ARBTL
Financial assets included in ETAFEWE 5 8RR R B Ath g
trade and other receivables WA SRVEE - 24,314 24,314
Derivative financial instruments  $74 ¢ g T & 22 - 22
Pledged and restricted deposits = ## & 5 [R $l 77 3% - 8,715 8,715
Cash and cash equivalents ReReEEY - 117,038 117,938
22 150,967 150,989
Financial liabilities TRAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
SR
PR 2
SRIBE
RMB’000
ARETIT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Financial liabilities included in trade 5t AJE(T B 5 8REN K B Ath BT RRIE
and other payables ZERBE 507,210
Lease liabilities HEBE 44,928
Liability component of ARk ESaEE D
the Convertible Bonds 72,879
Loans from a controling shareholder — 22 A% A% B &2k 72,615
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 800,090
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34.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments are as follows:

UVEMTITECAABERAAE

BEER(A)
ERMITAZAREE

rEEeRIAZEREERAABEN
N

Carrying amounts Fair values
FHEE AREE

2022 2021 2022 2021
—EB-C —E--F —E-C —ECo-F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT ARETTR ANRETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&3 (mE5)

Financial assets SREE
Derivative financial instruments fTEeRIA 9,709 22 9,709 22
9,709 22 9,709 22

Financial liabilties tRARE
Loans from a controlling shareholder —Z 2RI R &5k 234,819 72,615 234,819 72,615
Lease liabilities HEBRE 41,133 44,928 41,133 44,928
Bank and other borrowings ROTREMEE 711,59 800,090 750,282 859,254

Liability component of the TAREFEESH

Convertible Bonds 79,267 72,879 83,611 74,249
1,066,813 990,512 1,109,845 1,051,046

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged and restricted deposits and financial
assets included in trade and other receivables and financial
liabilities included in trade and other payables approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the chief financial officer
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The chief financial
officer reports directly to the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance manager analyses the movements in the values
of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer.

EEEBCHEREAESESEY 2K
MRZBRHIFR - S ARKE SRR K
His U RIBAZ ERMEE  StARNE
PEFREMENRECERARZA
AEEEEREEASES - REZL
FTARNEHRAZILE

AEE MG HEMBEETE AR
BETemIAGHEAABEABZIEE
K2R - MR EERABEZEZEGE
B -NE2HREH UBELEEINE
MTAZEEZS YEETRGERR
ZEBBABIE o (H{EHMBAREEM
KA -

7

i
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

34.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the bank and other borrowings and the liability
component of the Convertible Bonds have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for bank and
other borrowings and the Convertible Bonds as at 31 March 2022
and 2021 was assessed to be insignificant.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments:

UVEMTECAABERAIAE

BHER (&)
ERMIAZRAAEEE)

B EREEN  cREEREE
ZRRBERABRBRINN ZEETR
BERXGHAIRBIAZ & - LW THE
REBERERAMETRAEE

RITREMEBEURTRRESFEEDD
DRZANBEEDEBRBIZBEERR 5
B R AR HARR AR A 3t T B4R
MR RNBEBHRRESRTE -
REZEBZZFRZTF - —F=H=+—
B AEEASRBTREMEEAR
ARBkEFZ TBORBRETEATE
j( °

DRBEESER
TRBFIAEESBMTAZ AnBEst
BER

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2022 using
RANTHER-2==F

ZRA=t-B2ZAAEENE

Significant

Significant unobservable

Quoted pricesin  observable inputs inputs

active markets (Level 2) (Level 3)

(Level 1) EATER EATTEE
ERMIHEHRE BABE BARE Total
(%) (B=&) (B=#) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥TT AR¥TR AR¥TR
Derivative financial instruments fTEERMTE - - 9,709 9,709
- - 9,709 9,709
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34.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF U.€RTAZAAREBERAAE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEER(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREEER (F)
Fair value measurement

as at 31 March 2021 using
RANTHER_T_—F
SA=T-BzAABEHE

Significant
Significant unobservable
Quoted prices in observable inputs inputs
active markets (Level 2) (Level 3)
(Level 1) EpNGIL BARTER
ERTSRE BARUR BABE Total
(F—H) (F=5) (B=R) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETFT AREFT
Derivative financial instruments {THE&RIA - - 22 22
- - 22 22
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the UWTAR-ZZF=-Z ZEZ—F=H
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative =t —HEmMIAKRBEIERTAHE
sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2022 and 2021: BABBRIBE  BERELCHEAESD
1
Significant
Valuation unobservable
techniques inputs Range
EERIT EXATTREGARE &
Early redemption rights embedded Binomial Expected volatility 44.3%
in the Convertible Bonds pricing model BHIRIE (2021: 110.8%)
AR E S R AT B AT BRR (Z2Z—F : 110.8%)
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34.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of the early redemption rights embedded in convertible
bonds is determined using the binomial pricing model and the
significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement
is the expected volatility. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the expected volatility.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2021: Nil).

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3, which
only comprises the early redemptive rights embedded in the
Convertible Bonds, during the year are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statement.

35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise the Convertible Bonds, bank and other borrowings,
pledged and restricted deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables/payables
and lease liabilities which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s
policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.
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BHER (&)
IRBEEFR(E)

MARBRBRESFZIRABEREZ ARE
BENFERAZEAEEEEAEE - m
AABEFEFMAZERTAIBRRE A
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HiEA EMRIE -

FRA REMEERTBRAGBMS - £
—HRBEFE -G ANEEFEZRHLEE
B TEERENBEAFE=-MAAE
BfE(ZT=—F:8&)-

FERN REZPAZARNBEFEZE
F(RBERER AR ES 2 IRAEE
HE) BN R A BTSRRIzt 24 -

BB EREE B BERBEEK

BOTET RN AEBZTESHTA
BREABRERES  RITEEMGEER
HHEZRBIFFRARRE MRS FE
Ve ZEEMTASER/AKEZERY
E5ds AKERZEAMESREE
REfE  mEYENE SRR EA
B ENFEAREEEE  NDEEE

AEB IR A EERREER 2 BURY
THREMTEES -

REBzERMIAFMEAZ T ERRA
HMNERE - EERBERREBESRR

EEgAERNRAESEHERBZE
BIE - Bt mTo



35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk mainly arises from
the Group’s debts denominated in HK$ which were borrowed
by the Group’s entities with the functional currency of HK$, while
the Group’s presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements is RMB.

Since the Group mainly engages in its business operations in
the PRC, transactional currency exposure arising from sales or
purchases in currencies other RMB has an immaterial impact on the
Group’s results and equity.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at 31 March
2022 to a reasonably possible change in the HK$ or US$ and
RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group’s equity (due to translation of the operating results and
financial position of each subsidiary with functional currencies other
than RMB into the presentation currency of RMB used for the
consolidated financial statements of the Group).

.U BEBEER

SR BUR ()

SN R B

AREBEZHMNER R E B REAKE AL
TEHEZER  ZEEHNAKEZE
BEA MREFEBZNEEERE
T MARERGEHBHRE 2T
BERARE -

HRAREEZRNTREERS - BE
BEARBIINEE 2 X5 EE R R
REERREEENESTETAK -

TRERR-ZZE-__F=A=+—A0%
TRETHARBER GBI EH)
HAEERZ ( HRRENEEEAAR
LN BB AR 218 & EE RIS
MARREBGEUEREMAZES
BEBARE) 2BUREDT - REBEAMAT
BRI ERHEFTE -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in HK$/USS$ rate in equity
BT ETER RERRIEM,
#wi, O OGR4
% RMB’000
% ARET T
2022 —E-F
RMB strengthens against HK$ AR HAETLHE 3 4,590
RMB weakens against HK$ AR HBTERE ) (4,590)
RMB strengthens against USD AREHETIHE 3 233
RMB weakens against USD AR HETEE 3) (233)
2021 —T=-—F
RMB strengthens against HK$ AR HABTLHE 3 2,744
RMB weakens against HK$ AR BTHE ) (2,744)
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35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposit and bank balances due
to counterparties’ inability to meet its financial obligations to make
repayments.

Credit risk arising from trade receivables

The Group closely monitors the collection of progress payments
from customers in accordance with payment schedule agreed with
customers and follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts, if
any.

To measure the ECL of trade receivables, they have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The Group applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECL for trade receivables and recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors that
are specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of
the industry in which the counterparties operate in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets. The expected loss
rate used in the provision matrix is calculated based on actual credit
loss experience over the past three years and historical settlement
and past experience. Expected loss rate of the overall trade
receivables from property management income is assessed to be
5% to 50% (2021: 5% to 50%). The Group has a policy of making
impairment loss allowance on the gross carrying amount when the
financial asset is 1 year past due. At the end of the reporting period,
certain trade receivables were considered as credit-impaired and
provision for impairment of RMB5,575,000 (2021: RMB5,691,000)
were provided.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # 5B #Z R B R A

MR EE B FERBUR (&)

&R
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REBFPBEBEENGHRZA B
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EBAR—REEAR ST S B EEEHAT
e EREITRAE - BEEEREAD
BHEBREERBERALI="FHNEREE
BHRERURELEE RBENERET
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RRMTEHEIERGEE A5% E50% (=
T —F 5%EL0%) c AEEBK
RE - AEeREESH —FRHEE
EEAEREREEREE N2HMAPR
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35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from trade and lease receivables
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has minimal
concentration of credit risk as the trade receivables from the largest
single customer represented less than 5% (2021: 5%) of the total
trade receivables.

Credit risk arising from other receivables

In estimating the provision for impairment of other receivables and in
determining whether there is a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group has taken into account the historical
actual credit loss experience, negotiation results with the debtors,
adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
with the consideration of the economy in Jilin Province in estimating
the probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the loss
upon default in each case. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers credit quality of certain debts worsen and gave
rise to a significant increase in credit risk and therefore considered
as credit-impaired. The Group measures the provision for
impairment at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL and recognised
provision for impairment on other receivables of RMB70,934,000
(2021: RMB64,279,000). There was no change in the significant
assumptions made during the year.

35. B 75 L b B 22 B R R BUR (4)

&R (%)

EREZERAREBERRREEE
ZiEERR (&)

REHRAR  ARKEZAE—FFH
FEWE 5 iR H R E SRR AR DR
5%(ZFT - —F :6%) HAKBEZIE
BEEFEBRTK e

Hitt BWRBEE ZEERR

PMERT E A EUGRIE R E R E RN E T
BV ERAUREERREEREEILM
K ARECTRELEREEBEL
BEEEBAZERSER  UREBHA
BFEAMEMERELAR PR
HEMEBLEBR  WETZESRE
EZEAORE  DEXBRATENZE
Ko RERAKR AEERBETED
ZEEERDEE  SHEERRBE
i AR A EERE - AEER
ERERE SEEASKR2HBHEE
B8 - WHERHE M ERFIEREREA
R#70,934,000c(ZT=—F: AR
¥ 64,279,0007T) - NEEFIEEARR
B3 e
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35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Credit risk arising from other receivables (Continued)

The movement of the provision for impairment for the balances are
summarised as below:

For the year ended 31 March 2022

35. B 7% L b B 22 B AR R BUR (4)

8RR (&)

HitbBWRBAEE 2 FERER ()

AR ERBEFHRT

BE-ZE-_—_F=ZA=+—HILLEE

Deposits Deposits for Other
for land construction receivables,
development and pre-sale prepayment
expenditure of projects and deposit
THBRER BEREE HitfERE - Total
Z&E BHEZRE BRNRERES st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL ARBT R ARBT T AR¥TR
At beginning of year RER 22,095 4,990 37,194 64,279
Net increase in provision BEEIER - 1,751 4,904 6,655
At 31 March 2022 i S
=A=+—-H 22,095 6,741 42,098 70,934
Gross carrying amounts FRAE 22,095 6,741 46,323
Expected loss rate jib i gk 100% 100% 91%
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35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from other receivables (Continued)

35. B S R B B 2R B AR IR BUK (&)

&R (%)

Htt Rl REEE 2 EE AR (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE—_T-_—F=-A=+—HLFE
Deposits Deposits for Other
for land construction receivables,
development and pre-sale prepayment
expenditure of projects and deposit
THERERY BEREE H ot REE Total
pais HE e BNFERES Rzt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
At beginning of year REA] 249,328 14,852 44,622 308,802
Net increase in provision BEENTE 4,431 - 8,591 13,022
Reclassified as disposal group DB ARE
held for sale & HEAR (231,664) (9,862) (16,019) (257,545)
At 31 March 2021 i 3
=A=+-H 22,005 4,990 37,194 64,279
Gross carrying amounts ERAE 22,095 6,74 45,936
Expected loss rate it 100% 74% 81%
Credit risk arising from bank balances RITERELEZFERR

Substantially all of the Group’s pledged bank deposits and bank
balances were deposited in creditworthy global banks and state-
controlled financial institutions in the PRC, which management
considers they are without significant credit risks.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate bank
deposits and cash, funding through both equity and debt financing,
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by management.
Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings. At the end of
the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected that the Group
had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.

AEBBARE D EERRITFFALR
TREGERNEERFNERRITR
BETRKE MEEERREYESE
REERR -

RBESRR

AEEEBEFRARTERRRSE -
ABA e B RE 7 B~ R TR
REBRRERE  WREEREREEN
BEZIHERRERRDE SRR

RBECEARRAEEEREEE B8
BERBEZMNA -NEHXRBKR &=
SRR BN A R KGRI EE RS
BETER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35.81#5E B EE B ERBUR (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REE SRR (&)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of REBRZ2HMAARBIE S L RBMIRT
the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted payments, ZERBEZIEERNT
is as follows:
2022
“ECCE
Less than
3 months 3 to less than 1 to less than
or on demand 12 months 2 years
HR={EA EE -z 2to 5 years Total
FREXEE  SRTZEA DRME MEERE b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Trade and other payables ERTE B RA R
FUE 481,876 - - - 481,876
Lease liabilties HEaE 3,101 9,302 10,548 28,752 51,703
Loans from a controling shareholder  — 242k E E 3 234,819 - - - 234,819
Bank and other borrowings FITREMEE 34,518 423,018 87,864 258,906 804,306
Liabiity component of the ERESEETS
Convertible Bonds 836 836 84,448 - 86,120
755,150 433,156 182,860 287,658 1,658,824
2021 (Restated)
R (RED)
Less than
3 months 3toless than 110 less than
or on demand 12 months 2 years
DI=1EA = =5 2105 years Total
HREXERE  SRTZERA DRME MEEDE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT N S NS ARETT
Trade and other payables FERTE AR LA R
FE 507,210 - - - 507,210
Lease liabilties HE8E 3,134 9,403 9,839 24,550 46,926
Loans from a controling shareholder  — 242 EE 72,615 = - = 72,615
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 47815 160,434 116,000 657,432 981,681
Liability component of the HEkESEESS
Convertible Bonds 481 74,249 - - 74,730
631,255 244,086 125,839 681,982 1,683,162
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35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
maintain the Group’s stability and growth.

The management regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it by taking into consideration changes
in economic conditions, future capital requirements of the Group,
prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
loans from a controlling shareholder, bank and other borrowings,
trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged and restricted deposits. Adjusted capital includes the
liability component of the Convertible Bonds and equity. The gearing
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

35. B 75 L b B 22 B R R BUR (4)

EXxER

FEEEAEEZ TEARERRER
SEZRBERERE -

EREE R E T HAARE ¥
RITE I 2 B8 - RSB B R ERTE
RAREARFEN REER SR
F - FERE AP O R TR
TR % -

e

AEBMNAERABBHLRERESN - &
HEEFERERUALCHBER S INHE
B FEREERERBERER - RITR
HEE  EBNE SRR N E R
B RREMREFEMUARBEERR
XRFIFRK - KREEANBEAIRRE
HEEBIERAE RERPRZER
BELRET

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

(Restated)

(geE5)

Loans from a controling shareholder — 2% p& A& B &' 5K 234,819 72,615

Bank and other borrowings RITREMBES 711,594 800,090

Trade and other payables FET B 5 8RR R Bt P 5R0R 481,876 507,210

Less: Cash and cash equivalents  J& : & RIREEEY (93,151) (117,938)

Pledged and restricted B R ZRHIFR

deposits (7,596) (8,715)

Net debt FETE 1,327,542 1,253,262
Liability component of AIMRESFEERD

the Convertible Bonds 79,267 72,879

Equity s 44,541 35,093

Adjusted capital KA 123,808 107,972

Adjusted capital and net debt KRB AR REIR 1,451,350 1,361,234

Gearing ratio BARBELR 92% 92%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE=—ZT=-—F=/A=+—HIFE

36.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  36.74~ A ] B # Ak i 3=
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company N

RERPRANRBHBARNEK ZE RO

at the end of the reporting period is as follows: I
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
=HA=+—H =A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARMT T
NON-CURRENT ASSET IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NNl £y 106,524 45,181
Total non-current asset FRBEELE 106,524 45,181
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Other receivables H b fE U FRIE 622 651
Derivative financial instruments PTESBIA 9,709 22
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 2,880 77,451
Total current assets REEEHAE 13,211 78,124
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBE
Other payables E M ERTER 2,082 13,250
Liability components of GIE::! fog%%'éif =iy
the Convertible Bonds - 72,879
Total current liabilities mEEERE 2,082 86,129
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEE(AE) FHE
(LIABILITIES) 11,129 (8,005)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT A& ERMAREEE
LIABILITIES 117,653 37,176
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Liability component of MRESaESs
the Convertible Bonds 79,267 -
Total non-current liabilities ERBABEEE 79,267 =
Net assets FEE 38,386 37,176
EQUITY R
Share capital N 292,554 292,554
Convertible preference shares A IRR 8 S A% 299,515 299,515
Equity component of AR ESERE S
the Convertible Bonds 60,276 40,368
Reserves (Note) s (3 (613,959) (595,261)
TOTAL EQUITY RS 38,386 37,176

RPBHRRARR B _FRA-TAI
AEEESHERKERE  WHNAT

This statement of financial position was approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2022 and signed on its

behalf by }\ifﬁﬁ RR% "
Cui Xintong Li Junjie
BEEE B30
Director Director
EF EE
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36.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36.7R 2 BBk R 3k (48)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: BT
The movement of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARIEBESNT
Share
Share Exchange Contributed option Retained Other
premium reserve surplus reserve earnings reserves Total
RAEE HERE #ARE RRERE REEH Rt &3t

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARBTn  ARETR  ARWTR  ARETR

At 1 April 2021 R-E--FMA-H 4,439,318 187,432 184,684 20,623 (5,474,066) 46,748 (595,261)
Loss for the year ERER = = - - (52,895) - (52,895)
Other comprehensive income EREHEZEHRA
for the year
Exchange differences ERZEE
on translation - 34,197 - - - - 34,197
Total comprehensive income ERZENALE
for the year - 34,197 - - (52,895) - (18,698)
Transactions with owners: HEBARS -
Contribution and distributions HERME
Lapse/forfefure of share options BIRER/ B - - - - - - -
Share issued upon conversion of RETRER B
convertile preference shares ki - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2022 R-F--%#=f=1-H 4,439,318 221,629 184,684 20,623 (5,526,961) 46,748 (613,959)
Share
Share Exchange Contributed option Retained Other
premium reserve surplus reserve eamings reserves Total
R &E SNERHE RS iRk REEH EthEfs @t

RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARET:

At1 Apr 2020 R-E-SEMA-B 353,139 21,101 184,684 076 @75 4748 (749,165)
Loss forthe year ERER . - = . (716,606) - (716,606)
Other comprehensive income EREEZERA

for the year
Exchange differences BN

on translation - (33,669) - - - 2 (33,669)
Total comprehensive income ER2ENALE

forthe year . 183,669) - - (716,606) 2 750279)
Transactions with owners: HEBARS :
Contribution and distributions HERMR
Issuance of new ordinary share under REROEERT

share placement ERR 73,661 - - - - - 73,661
Lapse/forfeiture of share options BIRER/ 2 - = = (%) 9 - -
Share issued upon conversion of AREIRE s

convertble preference shares E310) 830518 - = - - = 830,518
At 31 March 2021 R=F--%=fA=1-A 4439318 187,432 184,684 20,623 (5,474,066) 46,748 (595,261)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZE—ZT=-—F=/[=+—HIFE

37.APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED TSRS R EK
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and FEUBHRERERZZTZ_FAH
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2022. ZHNABRESSHERRESE -
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Schedule of Principal Properties

EBYER

BEBREYT O EEN

Annual Report 2021/22 44 @

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWE
Percentage
Category of held by
Address Lot No. the lease Use Lease expiry the Group
AEE
3t RES HEER Jiike HHER it
Portion of Guangze International N/A Medium-term lease Retail 2053 100%
Shopping Centre, NEA R E ZE “TR=F
135 Hunjiang Dajie,
Hunjiang District, The properties
Jilin Province, have a total gross
PRC floor area of
FRIEHE 85,120.16 sg. m.
BIE ERREEEER
BIAE 1355 85,120.16 F 775K
BEEREYD LS
Car parking spaces of N/A Medium-term lease Car parks 2053 100%
Guangze International NEA RHHE B85 “EhR=F
Shopping Centre,
135 Hunjiang Dajie, The properties
Hunjiang District, have a total gross
Jilin Province, floor area of
PRC 7,760.53 sg. m.
REENE MEREEERR
BIE 7,760.53 F K
BIIAHE135%



Schedule of Principal Properties

EBYER

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Estimated

gross

floor area

Address (sq. m)
B EEHE

it (FHR)

Uses

ik

Lease expiry

BRER

=LY

Stage of
completion

ZIEE

Expected
date of
completion
st
ZIAH

Percentage
held by

the Group
TEE
a2

1. Changbaishan Ground Pine 623,979
Township International Resort
(RAWEERNNARRE ),
Guosong Village Donggang Town,
Fusong County,

Baishan, Jilin Province,
PRC

hEENE
BILHRIRE

R

Rl ME

=1l
BERINE

BIBRE R

2. Guangze China House 43,370
Phase I(A)
(BEH=—(AH)
North of National Highway 201,
Hunjiang District,
Baishan, Jilin Province, PRC
hEEHE
ALEIR
201 BLEL A
BEFF—(NH

3 Guangze Jiuxi Red House 67,400
(BENEAR)
Xinli Vilage,
Jijiao Street Office,
Jiutai District,
Changchun, Jilin Province,
PRC
PEEHE
RENGR
NAETEME R

Residential
and commercial
(including hotels)
FEREE
(BEEE)

Residential
and commercial
FEREE

Residential
FE

Residential: 2082
Commercial: 2052
e ZBN=F
[ it

Residential: 2084

Commercial: 2054
2 ZF\mE
(e

2090
“ENEF
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Construction
suspended
E2RET

Construction in
progress

T

Construction in
progress

=Ly

N/A
TEH

2022

—F——
=
&5

100%

100%

100%



COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE FEHEEERME

Approximate
gross floor Percentage
area Year of held by
Address (sq. m) Uses Lease expiry Completion the Group
B4
BEER r5E
it (F5HXK) Jiike W TIFH it
1. Portion of Guangze International 13,579 Residential, Residential: 2083 2014 100%
Shopping Centre, retall and FE:ZZN\=F ZT-NmF
135 Hunjiang Dajie, car parks
Hunjiang District, AER
Baishan, Jilin Province, =Ed
PRC
FEENE
HEIE
BIIRE135%
EEEREYD LD
2. Guangze China House Phase | 32,113 Residential and Residential: 2084 2019 100%
(BEBE=—H) commercial Commercial: 2054 —Z—hF
North of National Highway 201, FEREE FE: ZT\WEFE
Hunjiang District, Y —TRNE
Baishan, Jilin Province,
PRC
REEHE
BIEIR

201 EiEdL
EEH=—14
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Schedule of Principal Properties

EBYER

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE BFEHESERYEE (&)
(continued)

Approximate

gross floor Percentage

area Year of held by

Address (sq. m) Uses Lease expiry Completion the Group
8L

BREEE K5E

3t (£5HXK) R HEER TIFH RSt

3. Guangze Red House Phase | 1,137 Residential, Residential: 2084 2016 100%
(ERA[F—H), commercial Commercial: 2054 ~—Z—"F
South of Gongyuan Road, and car parks F=: Z2\mF
East of Jindalai - BmER BF —TImF
North Street, Yanji, FE5
Jilin Province,

PRC

RE#EHE

TtE
REBEEAIREER
TR
BEAT T —HA

4. Guangze Red House Phase Il 1,524 Residential, Residential: 2085 2018 100%
(BB, commercial Commercial: 2055 ~—Z—/\F
West of Jindalai, and carparks fFx: —TNRE
North Street, FE BER B% —ThhF
South of Lihua Road, FES
Yanxi Street, Yanji,

Jilin Province,

PRC

hEENE

&M

ERILE

PRl R F AT
3]

BEA T =5
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COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

HEHEE B (&)

(continued)
Approximate
gross floor Percentage
area Year of held by
Address (sq. m) Uses Lease expiry Completion the Group
BH
BEEE S .|
3t (EAK) ke HEEm TELER AL
5. Guangze Red House Phase Il and 3,380 Residential and Residential: 2085 2019 100%
Relocated District commercial Commercial: 2055 —Z— %
(BRI =HNEER), FEREE FE: ZEN\RE

*

East of Wenhua East Street,
Yaniji, Jilin Province,

PRC

REEHE

TE™

XA RERE
BELF=ANEERE

Those completed properties held for sale were classified as assets
associated with disposal group classified held for sale and the disposal was

completed in June 2021.

¥ —THREF

ZERFEHEDERMED DB REREH
EZhEERNERZEERZLERHE_F

= EavH e
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Five-year Financial Summary

hF BB E

(Expressed in RMB million, (RIBEHN 2B Year ended 31 March
unless otherwise stated) ARBEERES) HE=A=1-HL%EE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—B-Cf It S it Sl 3 —ZNE —E)\E
(Restated) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(E31) (231) (&31)
(note 1) (note 2) (note 8)
G (Mft2) (fsE3)
Revenue Wk 1121 1563.3 242.7 654.5 920.0
Gross profit l0ss) EF(ER) 31.8 (84.5) (44.6) 1745 164.8
(Loss) profit for the year from REFBEERKL
continuing operations (B8R EH (57.0) (515.2) (1367.5) 16 59.2
(Loss) profit for the year from REBRILEEEH L
discontinued operations FE(58) &7 - - (416.9) 14 (8.8)
(Loss) profit for the year £ (B8 &M (57.0) (515.2) (1,784.4) 23.0 50.4
Basic (loss) earnings from continuing ~~ REBELLEB 2 ER
operations per share (RMB cents) EA(EB) BH
(AE%5) (0.84) (8.94) (25.99) 0.22 13
Total assets BEE 2,0720 2,281.3 2,555.8 4,8307 5,300.2
Total liabilties Bak 2,021.5 2,246.2 2,103.9 2,502.4 3,044.6
Net assets BAE 445 35.1 451.9 2,328.3 2,264.6
Net assets value per HREEFE
share (RMB) (ARE) 0.007 0.005 0.09 0.44 0.43

(1) The figures in respect of total liabilities, net assets and net assets value
per share were restated as certain repayments of loans from a controlling
shareholder during the year ended 31 March 2021 inadvertently recorded
in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income as exchange

differences on translation of foreign operations.

) BE-_Z-_—F=A=+—HIHFE 7@
maE FEEREBREEFEZEFCEE
B —RERBRERZETER  LRER
SEMEEAKEREIARSREGINER
EEZERER -

(2) The figures in respect of profit or loss items have been re-presented to reflect ~ (2) BRGFIKEIEBEEMEAFTLEEEY UK

the continuing and discontinued operations caused by the Fengrun Disposal.

IR ETS -

REASHEEFEMERNFELLERER

(3) The figures in respect of profit or loss items were re-presented to reflect  (3) BEGFEIEBEEMEAFTLEDEY - UK

the continuing and discontinued operations caused by the disposal of
telecommunications retail sales and management service business in

Shanghai in June 2017.
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